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Dear Fellow Shareholders:

| am pteased to write my first letter to Wendy's®
shareholders since being appointed to the role of
Chairman of the Board of Directors last April.

As a member of Wendy’s Board for the past.25
years, | have had the privilege of working with
every Chief Executive Officer in Wendy's history,‘
and I've had the good fortune of spending

countless hours with our Founder, Dave Thomas. '

Over many years, | observed how Dave ingrained '
his values in this Company. Since being
appointed as Chairman, | have tried to guide thi_s
Company's Board with those values - by doi"ng

the right thing, leading with mtegrtty and focusrng '

on increasing profrtabrltty

I've had the privilege and opportunity to1w'atc':h'.’ K
the successes and experience the ,cr)atlenges as
this Company has grown into a giant in the
Quick-Service Restaurant business, and I'm
proud to have been a part of such a suCCess
story. And 0, over the past year as we faced the
challenge of apporntlng the next generation of -
Ieadershlp of our Company, the Board of
Directors searched first and foremost for
someone who was capable of carrying on Dave's -
legacy. v )

On November 9, 20086, the Boalrd concluded a
naticnal search by namrng Kerrii Anderson as
Chief Executive Off icer and President in a
unanimous decision. We chose Kerrii because
she has a passion for-the Wendy’s brand, is
committed to bdildint::; strong relationships with
our francnisees and commands the respect and
support of the Wendys management team
among other reasons.

_ Sincerely, .

. during the second half ,

-and other stakeholders

Kerrii demonstrated
her leadership ability

of 2006, whenwe ' -
created significant .

value for our

shareholders through-a-series of strategic
initiatives and the development of a new strategic
plan that is already ‘beginning‘t‘o improve-tne
performance of our core Wendy's business. In her
letter, Ke'rrii'w.ill discuss .i"n greater detail our 2006

cresults, as well as the positive steps we are taking

to further increase shareholder value. -

In my role as Chairman, | will 'cOntinLre to focus on
teadlng the Board followrng best practices in
corporate governance directing our long-term
strategy, and supporting tc Ithe-utmost our
franchisees, management and employees.

P

lam honored to serve as your Chairman, and |
fook forward to working with the Board and our -
management team to continue"producing'strong
returns and creattng value for our shareholders

James V. Pickett
Chairman




CEO’s Meééa_ge to Shareholders

As your Chief Executive Officer and President, |
am committed to improving the performance of
our Company and maximizing shareholder value. |
dedicated myself to those tasks after being -, .d
named interim Chief Executive Officer in Apnl
20086, and | have continued working toward those
goals since my appointment. as CEQ and '
President in November.

In 2006, we completed several strategic
initiatives, including the Inltlal public offering and |
spin-off of Tim Hortons® and the sale of Baja
Fresh® Mexican Grill. We also approved the
prospective sale of Cafe Express and completed
a modified “Dutch Auction” tender offer through )
which we répurchased 22.4 million shares for
$804.4 milion, as part of more than $1 bilion in |
share repurchases during the entire year. These
initiatives, along with operating improvement at
our flagship Wendy’s brand, drove our share price
to a record high during the year

| am pleased with the progress we are making on'
our efforts to revitalize the Wendy's brand, '
streamline and improve restaurant operations,
reclaim innovation leadership and enhance store
economics. We saw progress with many of these'
initiatives in cur 2006 results. Some operational
highlights from the Wendy’s brand during the past
year include the following:

m Total 2006 revenues were $2.4 billion,
approximately flat W|th 2005.

& Same-store sales increases were 0. 8% for U S
company-operated restaurants and 0.6% for
U.S. franchised restaurants in 2006. We ended
2006 with seven consecutive months and three:
straight quarters of positive same-store sales.

& We opened a total of 122 new Wendy's o
restaurants during the year. The openings '
consisted of 25 company-operated restaurants
in North America and 80 franchised restaurants -
in North America, as well as 16 International "
franchised restaurants and one International ¢
company-operated restaurant.

m Company-operated restaurant margins were
8.9% in 2006 compared to 8.6% in 2005,
reflecting improvements in cost of sales, primarily
due to favorable commodity costs. Company-
operated restaurant marging consist of sales
from company-operated restaurants minus cost
of sales frorm company-operated restaurants and
company restaurant operating costs, divided by

sales from
company-cperatet)
restatirants.

m Adjusted eamings
before interest,
taxes, depreciation
and amortization
{EBITDA) from :
continuing operations was $220.7 m|II1on in
2006, compared to $260.9 million in 2005,
EBITDA from continuing operations was $164.0
million in 2006, compared to $304.9 million in
2005. (See “Disclcsure regarding non-GAAP
financial measures” on page iv for reconciliations
of adjusted EBITDA,) .

& Reported 2006 pretax income from continuing
operations was $42.5 milfion compared (o]
$136.8 milion in 2005, The Cornpany reported
after-tax income from continuing operations of
$37.0 million, or $2.32 per shara, in 2006
compared to $85.1 milion, or $0.73 per share,
in 2005. '

m We ended 2006 with strong momentum,
positive same-store sales and significantly
reduced overhead and administrative costs.

Our new strategic plan, ‘Quality-Driven: Wendy’s
Recipe for Success,’ enabled us to take
important actions that will help us substantially
enhance profitability and create future shareholder
value. The plan focuses on the core elements that
have made the Wendy’s brand SYNonymous with
quality and freshness, and it is already.resulting in
operational improvernents.

The components of the plan include the following: :

m Revitalize Wendy's brand - We have re-
established our brand essence, “Quality Made
~Fresh,” centered on,our core hamburger .
business (see sidabar on page i), and are
continuing to evolve our marksting message )
accordingly. -

m Streamline and improve operations - We
believe we can significantly improve operations
attributes such as order accuracy, friendliness,
cleanliness, and speed of service, clearly ¢
positioning Wendy's as the best operator in_
quick service and resulting in significantly
improved store-level profits {see sidebar on
page iv).

m Reclaim innovation leadership — We expect
to introduce more than 10 new products that




reinforce our “Quality Made Fresh” brand
image during 2007, including exciting
sandwiches and salads,:as well as beverages
that are unigue to Wendy's.

m Strengthen franchisee commltments We
are focused 1.0n- driving sales and improving
profitability- across the entire system. To help ~
garner support we are providing financiaks’
incentives to franchisees who re-invest in their

[T

existing restaurants.

# Capture new opportunities — We will seek to
drive growth beyond our existing business,
including the expansion of our breakfast

program to approximately 20% to 30% of our -

system in 2007 and more than half of our
system by late 2008.

m Embrace a performance-driven culture - We
have redesigned our incentive compensation
program by creating a more direct link between
Company performance and individual pay.

This plan and the improvements we expect to
realize from it give us the confidence to commit
1o returning capital to our shareholders, including
a 47% increase in our annual dividend rate, from
$0.34 per share to $0.50 per share, beginning
with our May quarterly dividend payment.

During 2006 we restructured the Company and
unlocked significant value for our shareholders.
We intend to build on this momentum and drive
even stronger results in 2007 and beyond, as we

leave no stone unturned and examine every facet ’

of our business for improvement. Qur business is
undergoing a dramatic transformation, and we
are excited about the potential to realize
significant improvement in the coming year.

| lock forward to communicating with you
throughout the year and am eager to continue
adding value for our shareholders. | encourage
you to refer to our Investor Relations Web site,
www.wendys-invest.com, for the most current
information and updates about cur Company. .

Sincerely,

Honis b Pednid

Kerrii B. Anderson
Chief Executive Officer and President

" experienced at the end of 2006, we hired

.. ,-,saatchl and kirshenbaum bond + pat‘tjm"" ;
i early 2007. Both agencies have earngd a-

“ithey excel at creatlng!, marketing

. what it has been in recent years:

~ taste, and fresh - neVver frozen - ground

. confident these efforts will help us stand:. -

Revitalizing the Wendy’s
brand: Our evo|V|ng medla
strategy

To help us restage our brand and build on
the positive sales mormentum we Lo

two new advertising agencies, Saatchi _&

reputation for mnovatlon and creatrvlty and .

approaches for established brands that
connsect with consumers,

of t mendous opportu ity Du
2007 we will allocate 35 to 40 percent of ¢
our advertising budget to our core &
hamburger business; which is nearly double

Our advertising will eimphaStze morg ciearly
our points of- d;fferenimatuon from our o ¢
competition, including higher quality, great

beef. We will also look to capitalsze;o 't
overall trend in lndutgent {large, juicy and
muitiple-flaver) sandw_:ches. We are

out from the competmon prompting our -
core customners to v:srt us more often: and" 4
bringing new people; into our restaurants, -
increasing our mark?t share and helplng us ;
reclaim our leadership position in the ™

hamburger category,




Driving compeliing
economics through
improved storefelevel margins

- w

: We recognlze that our restaurant marglns in

+ 'service restaurant lndustry andt ose'of our’
franchisees. In an effort to close these gaps,
we have set-a goal to aggressively improve -
our company-operated restaurarit margins in
200?. _

The key to this goal is producing same-store *
sales growth of at least 3 to 4 percent, with
transaction and check growth. However, as we.
are growing sales, we also established cost-
_ Wcutting targets for food Iabor store expenses

oais; y reducrng manager hours inour -
festaurants, physrcaliy reposrtlonlng our in- -
store personnel and reducing opening labor
via the implementation of on-line preparation,
Most significantly, we believe we can realize
significant savings through the implementation
of new cash management: processes that wilt .
increase the amount of time store.managers
spend in our restaurants.

We have also created a new Restaurant

Services group to improve system-wide

operatlons processes and standards. Inciuded

in this group is a new operatlons functlon T _

known as Inspection Services that consists of
.experienced QSC (Qual:ty Servrce and
" Cléantiness) Managers iho are rmplementrng

&1

g a formahzed process for. more thorough

: expeact these efforts to s:gnn“ cantiy'lmprove “
our customer service and our bottom line.

Disclosure regarding non-GAAP
financial measures

EBITDA is used by management as a performance
measure for benchmarking against its ‘peers and
competltors The Company believes EBITDA is useful
to mvestors because it is frequently used by securities .
analysts, investors and other Interésted. parties to
evaluate companies in the restaurant industry. EBITDA
is not a recognized term under generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP).

The Company also uses adjusted EBADA, which
accounts for certain items unrelated to ongoing .
operations, as an internal measure of business
operating performance. Management believes adjusted
EBITDA provides a meaningful perspective of the
underlying operatingy performance of the business.

Below is a reconciliétion of 2006 reported operating
income to 2006 EBITDA and 2006 adjusted EBITDA:

2006 reported operating income $ 40.3 million
2006 depreciation and amortization $123.7 million
2006 EBITDA from continuing ops $164.0 million
2006 restructuring charges . $ 38.9 million
2006 incremental advertising expense  $ 25.0 million

2008 joint venture impact’ $ (7.2 milion)
2006 adjusted EBTDA from
continuing ops $220.7 million

Below is a reconciliation of 2005 reported operating
income to 2005 EBITDA and 2005 adjusted EBITDA:

2005 reported operating income: $175.9 million
2005 depreciation and amortization:  $129.0 million

2005 EBITDA from centinuing ops: $304.9 million
2005 net gain on property sales $ (35.6 miillion)
2005 joint venture irnpact’ $ (8.4 million)
2005 adjusted EBITDA from

continuing ops $260.9 million

‘With the spin-off of Tim Hortons, the Company will
lose 50% of the income from its 50/50 joint venture
with Tim Hortons.
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PARTI. : -t .

Item 1. Business

The Company . : . . -

Wendy’s International, Inc. was incorporated in 1969 under the laws of the State of Ohio. Wendy’s International,
Inc. and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to herein as the “Company.”
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of operating, developing and franchising a system of
distinctive quick-service restaurants serving high quality food. At December 31, 2006,[lhere were 6,673 Wendy's
restaurants (“Wendy’s™) in operation in the United States and in 20 other countries and territories. Of these
restaurants, 1,465 were operated by the Company and 5,208 by the Company’s franchi'se_e's.

On March 29, 2006, the Company completed its initial public offering (“/P0") of TimjHortons Inc. (“THI"). A
total of 33.4 million shares of THI were offered at an initial per share price of $23.162(($27.00 Canadian). The
shares sold in the IPO represented 17.25% of total THI shares issued and outstanding and the Company retamed '
the remaining 82.75%. On September 29, 2006, the Company completed the spin-off of its remaining 82.75%
ownership in THI, the parent compény of the business previously reported as the Hortons segment. Accordingly,
the results of operations of THI are reﬂected as discontinued operations for all periods presented and the assets
and liabilities are reflected as discontinued operauons at January 1, 2006. Dunng the thlrd quarter of 2006, the
Company’s Board of Directors approved the sale of Baja Fresh and on November 28, 2006 the Company
completed the sale and, accordingly, the results of operations of Baja Fresh are reflecte!d as discontinued
operations for all periods presemed and the assets and liabilities of Baja Fresh are reflelcted as dmcontmued
operations at January 1, 2006 On October 9, 2006, the Company’s Board of Dlrectors approved the future sale of
Cafe Express and, accordmgly the results of operations and assets and liabilities of Caife Express are reflected as
discontinued operations for all penods presented (see Note 10'to the Consohdated Financial Statements). Baja

Fresh and Cafe Express were previously reported as the Developmg Brands segment. } o

Operdtions

Each Wendy's restaurant offers a relatively standard menu featuring hamburgers and filet of chicken breast
sandwiches, which are prepared to order with the customer’s choice of condiments. Wendy s menu also includes
chicken nuggets, chili, baked and French fried potatoes, prepared salads, desserts, soft lclrmks and other
non-alcoholic beverages and klds meals. In addmon the restaurants sell a variety of promouonal products on a
limited basis,

The Company strives to maintain quality and uniformity throughout all restaurants by publishing detailed
specifications for food products, preparation and service, by continual in-service training of employees and by
field visits from Company supervisors. In the case of franchisees, field visits are madelby Company personnel
who review operations, including quality, service and cleanliness and make recommendations to assist in
compliance with Company spec1ﬁcauom o Cos ' ‘

P

Generally, the Company does not sell food of supplies, other than sandwich buns and luds meal toys, to its
Wendy’s franchisees. However, the Company has arranged for volume purchases of many of these products.
Under the purchasing arrangements, independent distributors purchase certain products directly from approved
suppliers and then store and sell them to local company and franchised restaurants. These programs help assure
availability of products and provide quantity discounts, quality control and efficient distribution. These.
advantages are available both to the Company and to its franchisees.
The New Bakery Co. of Ohio, Inc. (“Bakery”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is a producer of buns
for Wendy's restaurants, and to a lesser extent for outside parties. At December 31, 2006, the Bakery supplied -

1




640 restaurants operated by the Company and 2,340 restaurants operated by franchisees. At the present time, the
Bakery does not manufacture or seil any other products.

See Note 15 on pages 76 and 77 of the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item 8 herein,
for financial information attributable to certain geographical areas. Lo et

Raw Materials ‘ v 3 . ot
R . » -l Lo .

The Company and its franchisees have not experienced any material shortages of food, equipment, fixtures or

other products which are necessary to restaurant operations. The Company : anthlpates no such shortages of

products and allemate suppliers are available. ' o

i . - i 4 . Tkt

Trademarks and Service Marks of the Compaﬁy

The Company has registered certain trédem;lrks and service marks in the United States Patent and TrEcide.meirk
office and in international jurisdictions, some of which include “Wendy’s”, “Old Fashionéd Hamburgers and
“Quality Is Our Recipe”. The Company believes that these and other related marks are of material 1mportance to
the Company’s business. Domestic trademarks and service marks expire at various times from 2007 to 2017;"
while international trademarks and service marks have various durations of five to 20 years. The Company

- generally 1ntcnds to renew tradernarks and servrcc marks wh1ch are scheduled to expire. ‘
The Company entered into an Assignment of Rights Agreement with the Company’s Founder, R. David Thomas,
and his wife dated as of November 5, 2000 (the “Assignment”). The Company has used Mr. Thomas, who was
Senior Chalrman of the Board until his death on January 8, 2002, as a spokesperson and focal point for its
products and'services for many years. With the efforts and attributes of Mr. Thomas, the Company has, through
its extensive investment in the advertising and promotional use of Mr. Thomas’ name, likeness, image, voice,
caricature, endorsement rights and photographs (the “Thomas Persona”), madc: the Thomas Persona well known ’
in the U.S. and throughout North America and a valuable asset for both the Company and Mr. Thoms” estate.
Under the terms of the Assignment, the Company acquired the entire right, title, interest and ownership in and to
the Thomas Persona, including the sole and exclusive right to commercially use the Thomas Persona. - - ~

N

Seasonality ' ' ’ . . ’

The Company’s busmess i moderately seasonal. Wendy ] average restaurant sales are normally higher during
the summer months than during the winter months. Because our business is moderately seasonal, results for any
quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for anv other quarter or for the full fiscal
year.

! et

Working Capital Practices . . _ ' ‘ » ot

Cash flow from operations, cash and investments on hand, possible asset sales, and cash available through -
existing revolving credit agreements and through the possible issuance of securities should provide for the
Company’s projected short-term and long-term cash requirements, including cash for capital expenditures,
potential share repurchases, dividends, repayment of debt, future acquisitions of restaurants from franchisees or
other corporate purposes.

Competition

¢

Each company and franchised restaurant is in conipetition with other food service operations within the same
geographical area. The quick-service restaurant segment is highly competitive. The Company competes with
other organizations primarily through the guality, variety and value perception ¢f food products offered. The

2




number and location of units, quality and speed of service, attractiveness of facilities, effectiveness of marketing
and new product development by the Company and its competitors are also important Ifactors. The price charged
for each menu item may vary from market to market depending on competitive pricing and the local cost

structure. ;

T ' . . + f

P . P ' 3 N toer - t, : .- ' . N ' R
The Company’s competitive position at its Wendy’s restaurants is enhanced by its use/of fresh ground beef, its
unique and diverse menu, promotional products, its wide choice of condiments and the atmosphere and decor of

its restaurants.

Research and Development * -+

The Company engages m research and deve]opment on an ongoing basis, testing new products and procedures
for possible 1ntroductlon mto the Company’s systéms. While research and development operations are considered
to be of prime ‘importance to the Company, amounts expended for these actlvmes are generally not deemed
material.

-

Government Regulations: -« , - - .7 - bt . : T

A number of states have enacted legxslatlon which, together with rules promulgated by the Federal Trade
Commission, affect companiés involved in franchising. Much of the legislation and rules adopted have been
aimed at requiring detailed disclosure to a prospective franchisee and periodic regxstranon by the franchisor with
state administrative agencies: Additionally, some states have enacted, and others have considered, legislation "
which governs the termination or non-renewal of a franchise agreement and other aspects of the franchise -
relationship. The United States Congress has also considered legislation of this nature! The Company has
compliéd With requirements of this type in all applicable jurisdictions. The Company cannot predict the effect: -on
its operations, particularly on its relationship with franchisees, of future enactment of additional legislation.
Various other government: initiatives such as minimum wage rates and taxes can all have a significant impact on
the Company 8 performance S : - + ' :

vt - : o4

Environment and Energy

Various federal, state and local regulations have been adopted which affect the discharge of materials into the
environment or which otherwise relate to the protection of the environment, The Company does not believe that
such regulations will have a material effect on its capital expenditures, earnings or, competitive position. The .

Company cannot predlct the effect of future environmental legislation or regulations.
The Company s'principal sources of energy for its operations are electricity and natural gas. To date the supply*
of energy available to the Company has been sufficient to maintain normal operauons

(L. -t

Acquisitions and Dispositioné'

The Company has: from time to time acquired the interests of and sold Wendy’s restaurants to franchisees, and it
is annclpated that the Company may haye opportunities for such transactions in the future. The Company
generally retains a right of first refusal in connection with any proposed sale of a franchisee's interest. The
Company will continue to sell and acquire Wendy s restaurants in the future where pr'udent T

See Notes 7 and 8 on page 64 of the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item 8 herein, and
the information under “Management’s Qutlook” in ltem 7 herein for further information regardmg acqmsmons
and dispositions. . R ST e . ‘ . .




International Operations

Markets in Canada are currentty being developed for both company owned and franchised restaurants of
Wendy's. The Company is evaluating expansion into other international markets but to date has not made
significant investments in these markets. The Company has granted development nghts for the countries and
territories listed under Item 2 on page 13 of this Form 10-K

Franchised Wendy’s Restaurants
As of December 31, 2006, the Company's franchisees operated 5,208 Wendy's restaurants in 50 states, Canada -
and 18§ other countries and territories.

The rights and obligations governing the majority of franchised restaurants operating in the United States are set
forth under Wendy's Unit Franchise Agreement. This document provides the franchisee the right to construct,
own and operate a Wendy's restaurant upon a site accepted by Wendy’s and to use the Wendy’s system in
connection with the operation of the restaurant at that site. The Unit Franchise Agreement provides for a 20-year
term and a 10-year renewal subject to certain conditions. Wendy’s has in the past franchised under different
agreements on a multi-unit basis; however, Wendy’s now generally grants new Wendy's franchises on.a- -
unit-by-unit basis.

The Wendy's Unit Franchise Agreement requires that the franchisee pay a royalty of 4% of gross sales, as
defined in the agreement, from the operation of the restaurant, The agreement also typically requires that the
franchisee pay the Company a technical assistance fee. In the United States, the standard technical assistance fee
required under a newly executed Unit Franchise Agreement is currently $25,000 for each restaurant.

The technical assistance fee is used to defray some of the costs to the Company in providing technical assistance
in the development of the Wendy's restaurant, initial training of franchisees or their operator and in providing
other assistance associated with the opening of the Wendy’s restaurant. In certain limited instances (like the
regranting of franchise rights or the relocation of an existing restaurant), Wendy’s may charge a reduced
technical assistance fee or may waive the technical assistance fee. The Company does not select ot cmploy
personnel on behalf of the franchisees.

Wendy's has in certain instances in the past offered to qualified franchisees, pursuant to its Franchise Real Estate
Development program, the option of Wendy’s locating and securing real estate for new store development and/or
constructing a new store. Under this program, Wendy’s obtains all licenses and permits necessary to construct
and operalte the restaurant, with the franchisee having the option of building the restaurant or having Wendy's
construct it. The franchisee pays Wendy's a fee for this service and reimburses Wendy’s for all out-of-pocket
costs and expenses Wendy’s incurs in locating, securing, and/or constructing the new store, Wendy’s has
announced that it does not intend to offer the Franchise Real Estate Developmeat program in the future.

The rights and obligations governing franchisees who wish to develop internationally are cuirently contained in
the Franchise Agreement and Services Agreement (the “Agreements”) which are issued upon approval of a

- restaurant site. The Agreements are for an initial term of 20 years or the term of the lease for the restaurant site,
whichever is shorter. The Agreements license the franchisee to use the Company’s trademarks and know-how in
the operation of the restaurant. Upon execution of the Agreements, the franchisce is required to pay a technical
assistance fee. Generally, the technical assistance fee is $30,000 for each restaurant. Currently, the franchisee is
required to pay monthly fees, usually 4% based on the monthly gross sales of the restaurant, as def'med in the
Agreements, . :

See Schedule Il on page 86 of this Form 10-K, and Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 20 through

36 and Note 9 on pages 64 and 65 of the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item 8 herein
for further information regarding reserves, commitments and contingencies involving franchisees.

4




Advertising and Promottons : '

The Company participates in two advertising funds established to collect and adrmmster funds contrlbuted for
use in advertising through television, radio, newspapers, the internet and a variety-of promotlona! campaigns.
Separate advertising funds are administered for Wendy’s U.S and Wendy’s of Canada. Contributions to the -
advertising funds are required to be made from both company operated and franchise restaurants and are based
on a percent of restaurant retail sales. In addition to the contributions to the various ad\ltertlsmg funds, the-
Company may requtre additional contributions to be made for both company operated 'and franchisee restaurants
based on a pefcent of restaurant retail sales for the purpose of local and regional advemsmg programs Required '
franchisee contributions to the advertising funds and for local and regional advertising programs are governed by
the Wendy's franchise agreement. Required conmbuuons by company operated restaurants for advertising and
promottona] programs are at the same percent of retail sales as fl'ﬂ.llChlSCd restaurants ‘.{rtthm the Wendy s system.

See Note 14 on page 76 of the Financial Statements and Supplemen_tary' Data included|in Ttem 8 herem, for
further information regarding advertising. ' S

B t

Personnel . . . L. e AR "

As of December 31, 2006, the Company employed approximately 46,000 people, of whom approximately 45,000
were employed in company operated restaurants. The total number of full-time employees at that date was
approximately 7,000. The Company believes that its employee relations are sattsfactory Co ", Ce

] . [N . R “ vt .k . ‘].‘-’“ ST LR LT

Availability of Information

[} ’ f . . '*.r“-

The Company makes available through its internet website (www.wendys-invest. com) 1ts annual report on Form
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10- Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or .
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 a‘s amended as soon as
reasonably practicable after electronically filing such material with the Securitie$ and Exchange Comtmssxon
(“SEC™). The reference to the Company s websité address does not constitute mcorpo{'atton by reference 'of the ™
information contained on the websue and should not be conmdered part of this document e

Item 1A, Risk Factors

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements within the meanmg of the Prwate -
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. A forward-looking.statement is neither a prediction nor a guarantee of
future events or circumstances, and those future events or circumstances may not ocer, Investors should not
place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this report. The
Company.is under no obligation to update or alter any forward-looking statements, wnemer as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise: These forward-looking statements are all based on currently available
operating, financial and competitive information and arc subject to various risks and dncertainties. The
Company’s actual future results and trends may, differ materially depending on a vanety of factors mcludmg, but
not limited to, the risks and uncertainties discussed below. U ¢
'y o Lt - t.
The quick service restaurant segment is highly competitive, and that compentwn could Iower revenues,
margins and market share. PR . R ‘

The quick service restaurant segment of the foodsetvice industry is mtensely competlttve regardmg price,
service, location, personnel and type and quality of food. The Company and its francht:sees compete with
international, regional and local organizations primarily through the quality, variety and value perception of food
products offered. Other key competitive factors include the number and location of restaurants, quality and speed
of service, attractiveness of facilities, effectiveness of advertising and marketing programs, and new, product-
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development by the Company and its competitors. The Company anticipates intense competition will continue to
focus on pricing. Some. of the Company’s competitors have substantially larger marketing budgets, which may
provide them with a competitive advantage. In addition, the Company’s system competes within the food service
market and the quick service restaurant segment not only for customers but also for management and hourly -
employees, suitable real estate sites and qualified franchisees. If the Company is unable to maintain its
competitive position, it could experience downward pressure on prices, lower demand for products, reduced

~ margins, the inability, to take advantage of new business opportunities and the loss of market share. . "

Changes in economtc, market and other condmons could adversely affect the Company and its frtmchtsees,
' and thereby the Company s operating results. - "

A

The qu:ck—servrce restaurant mdustry is affected by changes in international, nanonal regional, and locaI
economic conditions, consumer preferences and spendmg patterns, demograph;c trends, consurmer perceptions of
food safety, weather, trafﬁc patterns, the type, number and location of competing restaurants, and the effects of
war or térrorist activities and any govemmental responses thereto. Factors such as inflation, food costs, labor and.
benefit costs, legal claims, and the availability of management and hourly employeés also affect restaurant
operations and administrative expenses. The ability of the Company and its franchisees to finance new restaurant
development, improvements and additions to existing restaurants, and the acquisition of restaurants from, and -
sale of restaurants to, franchisees is affected by economic conditions, including interest rates and other
government pohcres 1mpactmg land and constructnon costs and the cost and avzilability of borrowed funds.

K i . - UE 1

Events reported in the meafta, such as mctdents in volvmg Jood-borne illnessey or food tampering, whether or
not accurate, can cquse damage to the Company’s reputation and swiftly affect sales and profitability.

Reports, whether true or not, of food-borne illnesses (such as E. coli, avian flu, bovine spongiform
encepha]opathy, hepautrs A, trichinosis or salmonella) and food tampering have in the past severely injured the
reputauons of partlcrpams in the qurck service restaurant segment and could i in the future affect the Company as
~well. The Company s reputatmn is an tmportant asset to the business; as a result, anything that damages brand
reputatlon ‘could 1mmedtately and severely hurt systernmde sales and, accordingly, revenues and profits. If
customers, become ill from food- bome lllnesses the Company could also’be forced to.temporarily close some
restaurants. In addmon mstances of food-borne illnesses or food tampenng, even those occurring solely at the

" restaurants of competitors, could, by resulting in negative publicity about the restaurant industry, adversely affect
system sales on a local, regional or systemwide basis. A decrease in customer traffic as a result of these health

" concerns or negative publtcrty, or as aresult of a temporary closure of any of th: Company’s restaurants, could
matenally harm the Company s busmess ‘

L. . . . N

Fatlure to: successfully implement the Company’ s growth strategy could reduce, or reduce the growth of, the
Company s revenue and net mcame. . .
f . . 4
The Cempany'plans 1o increase the number of Wendy’s restaurants over the next five years, but may not-be able
to achieve.its growth objectives and any new restaurants may not be profitable. The opening and success of
restaurants depends on various factors, including: T ot
"+ coimnpetition from other quick service restaurants in current and future markets A
* the degree of saturation in existing markets; - '
* the identification and-availability of suitable and economtcally viable locations;
* saleslevels at existing restaurants; - - ‘
* the negotiation of acceptable lease or purchase terms for new locations:. ' : B
* permitting and regulatory compliance;
» the ability to meet construction schedules; . SRR :
»  the availability of qualified franchisees and their financial and other development capabilities (mcludmg
*  their ability to obtain acceptable financing),” - e i e ' o
v+ ~the ability to hire and train qualificd management personnel and v ! o
*  general economic and business conditions, . .




If the Company is unable to open new restaurants as planned; if the stores are less prof}table than anticipated or if
the-Company.is otherwise unable to successfully implement its growth strategy, revenue and profitability may
grow more slowly or even decrease, which could cause the Company s stock price to decrease. \

The Company mtends to expand mto the breakfast daypart where competitive conditions are challengmg, the
Wendy’s brand is not well known and markets may prove d:fﬁcult to penetrate.

The Company plans o expand breakfast to more than 50% of its reslaurants by late 2008. Many of thc markets
into which the Company intends to roll out breakfast will have challenging compenuve conditions, varied
consumer tastes and discretionary spending patterns that differ from its existing daypans In addition, breakfast
sales could cannibalize lunch sales and may have negative implications on food and labor costs and restaurant
margins. The Company will need to build breakfast brand awareness through greater investments in advertising
and promotional activities. Capital investments will also be required at company operated restaurants and
franchised restaurants where breakfast will be served and franchisees could elect not to participate in the
breakfast expansion. As a result of the foregoing, breakfast sales and profits therefrom! may take longer to reach-:
expected levels or may never do so. ‘ : v .

The Company and its franchrsees are affected by commodity market Sfluctuations, whu:h could reduce .
profitability or sales and shortages or interruptions in the supply or delivery of peris hable Jood products could |
damage the Company’s reputation and adversely affect its operating results. . o

The Company and its franchisees purchasé large quantities of food and supplies, which can be subject to si ignificant
price fluctuations due to seasonal shifts, climate conditions; industry demand, changes in international commodity -
markets and other factors. The Company and its franchisees are dependent on frequent deliveries of perishable food
products that meet certain specifications. Shortages or interruptions in the supply of perishable food products caused
by unanticipated demand, problems in production or distribution, disease or food-borne illnesses, inclement weather
or other conditions could adversely affect the availability, quality-and cost of ingredients, which would likely lower
revenues, damage the Company’s reputation and otherwise harm its business. T :

Current restaurant locatwns may become unattmctwe, and attractwe new locations may‘ not be available for a
reasonable price, if at all.

% *
-

The success of any restaurant depends in substantial part on lts locanon There can be no assurance that current
locations will continue to be attractive as demographic patterns change. Nerghborhood or economic conditions
where restaurants are located could decline in the future, thus resulting in potentially reduced sales in those
locations. If the Company and its franchisees cannot obtain desirable locations at reasonable pnccs the abrhty to. )
effect the Company’s growth strategy will be adversely affected. -

Changing health or dietary preferences may cause consumers {0 avoul products o)ffered by the Company in
Javor of alternative foods . :

The foodservice industry is affected by consumer preferences and perceptions. If prevailing health or dietary
preferences and perceptions cause consumers to avoid these products offered'by the Company s restaurants in
favor of alternative or healthier foods, demand for the Company’s products may be reduced and its business
could be harmed. : LR - : R -

The Company is subject to health, employment env:ronmental and other government regulanons, and Jailure
to comply with existing or future government regulauons could expose the Company to Ittlgauon, damage ‘the
Company’s reputation and lower proﬁts - .- W :

The Company and its franchisees are sub_]ect to various federal state and local laws alffecnng their busmesses
The successful development and operation of restaurants depend to a significant exterllt on the selection and
acquisition of suitable sites, which are subject-to zoning, land-use (including the placement of drive-thru .
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windows), environmeantal (including litter), traffic and other regulations. Restaurant operations are also subject to
licensing and regulation by state and local departments relating:to health, food preparation, sanitation and safety .
standards, federal and state labor laws (including applicable minimum wage requirements, overtime, working and
safety conditions and citizenship requirements), federal and state laws prohibiting discrimination and other laws
regulating the design and operation of facilities, such as the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. If the .
Company fails to comply with any of these laws, it may be subject to governmental action or litigation, and its

" reputation could be accordingly harmed In_]ury to the Company 8 reputatlon would in turn, likely reduce
revenues and profits. - .

: +

-

I L ) ey
In recent years, there has been an increased legislative, regulatory and consumer focus on nutrition and - g
advertising practices in the food industry, particularly among quick service restaurants. As a result, the Company
may become subject to regulatory initiatives in the area of nutrition disclosure or advertising, such as
requirements to provide information about the nutritional content of its food products, which could increase
expenses. The operation of the Company’s franchise system is also subject to franchise laws and regulations
enacted by a number of stales and rules promulgated by the U.S. Federal Trade Commission. Any future ‘
legislation regulating franchise relationships may negatively affect the Company’s operations, particularly its- -
relationship with its franchisees. Failure to comply with new or existing franchise laws and regulations in any
jurisdiction or to obtain required government approvals could result in a ban or temporary suspension on future
franchise sales. Changes in applicable accounting rules imposed by governmeéntal regulators or private governing
bodies could also affect the Company’s reported results of operations, and this cause its stock price to fluctuate
or decline. : 5 '
Lu‘tgatwn Jrom customers, fmnch:sees empioyees and others could harm the Company S mputahon and
zmpact operating results ! ' v '
. . [ . : . : N N
Clalms of illness or injuiy relatmg lo food quality or food handhng are commor in the food service industry. In
addition, class action lawsuils have been filed, and may continue to be filed, aguinst various quick service
restaurants alleging, among other things, that quick-service restaurants have failed to disclose the health risks
associated with high-fat foods and that quick service restaurants’ marketing practices have encouraged obesity.
In addition to decreasing the Company’s sales and profitability and diverting management resources, adverse
publicity or a substantial judgment against the Company could negatively impact the Company’s reputation,
hindering the ability to atiract and retain qualified fr?nchisees and grow the business.
Further, the Company may be subject to employee, franchisee’and other claims in the future based on, among other
things, discrimination, harassment, wrongful termination and wage, rest break-and meal break issues, including
‘those relating to overtime compensation. These types of claims, as well as other types of lawsuits to which the
Company is subject to from time to time, can distract management’s attention from core business operations.

The Company may not be able to adequately protect its intellectual property, which could decrease the value of
the Company and its products.

The success of the Company’s business depends on the continued ability to use =xisting trademarks, service
marks and other components of the Company’s brand in order to increase brand awareness and further develop
branded products. The Company may not be able to adequately protect its trademarks, and the use of these
trademarks may result in liability for trademark infringement, trademark dilution or unfair competition. All of the
steps the Company has taken to prolect its mtellectual propetiy may not be adequate

: . o ot N .
The Company s earnings and business growth Strategy depends in large part on the success of its franchisees,
and the Company’s reputation may be harmed by actions taken by franchisees that are outside of the
Company’s control. ‘

A portion of the Company’s earnings comes from royalties, rents and other amounts paid by the Company’s
franchisees. Franchisees are independent contractors, and their employees are not employees of the Company.
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The Company provides training and support to, and monitors the operations of; its franchisees, but the quality of

their restaurant operations may be diminished by any number of factors beyond the C
Consequently, franchisees may not successfully operate stores in a manner consistent

Oimpdlly s control.
with the Company’s high

standards and requirements and franchisees may not hire and train qualified managers :and other restaurant
personnel. Any operational shortcoming of a franchise restaurant is likely to be attributed by consumers to the -
Company’s system, thus damaging the Company's reputation and potentially affecting revenues and profitability.

o .
H

Ownership and leasmg o_f srgmf icant amounts of real estate exposes the Company to poss:ble liabilities and

losses. : o T N "

L

The Company owns the land and building, or leases.the land and/or the building, for many-system restaurants.

Accordingly, the Company is subject to all of the risks associated with-owning.and lealsmg real estate. In r

particular, the value of the Company’s assets could decrease, and its costs could incre

ase, because of changes in

the investment climate for real estate, demographic trends and supply or demand for tljle use of the restaurants,
which may result from competition from similar restaurants in the area, as.well as llablhty for environmental
conditions. The Company generally cannot cancel these leases. If an existing or future|store is not profitable, and
the Company decides to close it, the Company may nonetheless be committed to perfo’nn its obligations under
the applicable lease including, among other things, paying the base rent for the ba]ance of thie lease term. In
addition, as each of the leases expires, the Company may fail to negotiate renewals, either on commercially:
acceptable terms or at all, which could cause the.Company to close:stores in desirable locations. - '

. - . . ‘ ' [N P ‘ .
The Company’s annual and guarterly financial results may fluctuate depending on

*

various factors, many of

which are beyond.its control, and, if the Company fails to meet the expectations of s e_cufities analysts or

investors, the Company’s share price may decline,

The Company s sales and operating results can vary from quaner to quarter and year to year depending on

various factors, many of which are beyond its control. Certain events and factors may
decrease demand for the-Company’s products. If customer demand decreases rapldly,
operations would also decline precipitously. These events and factors lnclude
.* variations in the timing and volume.of the Company § sales and franchlsees
+ sales promotions by the Compzmy and its competitors; . ., ., . .
* changes in average same-store sales and customer visits; ’
* variations in the price, availability and shipping costs of supplies;
« seasonal effects on demand for the Company,’s products; -
* unexpected slowdowns in new store development efforts;
= changes in competmve and economic conditions generally, ,
*+ changes in the cost or avallablhty of mgred1ents or labor;
« weather and’ acts of God; s S gt
+ changes i in. the number of franchlse agreement renewals and
. forelgn currency exposure

oy " , e, - +

Catastrophic evenis may dzsrupt the Company (Y busmess. R e

L e ’ ! L i

directly and immediately
the Company’s results of

sales;

Unforeseen events, mcludlng war, terrorism’ and other 1nternat10nal conflicts, public health issues, and natural
disasters such as earthquakes, hurricanes or other adverse weather and climate conditions, whether occurring in
the United States or abroad, could disrupt the Company s operations, disrupt the. operauons of franchisees,
suppliers or customers, or result in political or economic 1nstab1hty These events could reduce demand for the

Company s products or make it dlfficult or 1mposs1ble recelve products from supphers

The Company’s internatiofial operatmns are subject to various facrors of uncertam

o R

oy,

The Company’s business outside of the United States is subject to a number of additional factors, mcludmg
international economic and political conditions, differing cultures and-consumer preferences, currency - -

9 .

.




regulations and fluctuations, diverse government regulations and tax systems, uncertain or differing .
interpretations of rights and obligations in connection with international franchise agreements and the collection
of royalties from international franchisees, the availability and cost of land and construction costs, and the
availability of experienced management, appropriate franchisees, and joint venture partners. Although the .
Company believes it has developed the support structure required for internatienal growth, there is no assurance
that such growth will occur or that international ‘operations will be profitable::

The Company may from time to time sell real estate and company operated n'staurants fo its franch:sees.

The disposition of company operated restaurants to new or existing franchisees is part of the Company’s strategy -
to develop the overall health of the system by acquiring restaurants from, and gisposing of restaurants to,
franchisces where prudent. The realization of gains from future dispositions of restaurants depends in part on the
* ability of the Company to complete disposition transactions on acceptable terms. The sale of real estate
previously leased to franchisees is generally part of the program to improve the Company’s return on invested
capital. There are various reasons why the program might be unsuccessful, including changeés in econotnic, credit
market, real estate market or other conditions, and the ability of the Company to complete sale transactions on -

dcceptable terms and at or near the prices estimated as attainable by the Company. R

Item IB. Unresolved Sta_ff Comments ) l .

In November 2006, the Company received written comments from the staff of the SEC regarding the Company s
Annual Report on Form 10-K.for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2006, to which the Company has provided an
initial response. The staff of the SEC has recently verbally requested that the Company provide additional
information with respect to one of its responses and the Company is in the process of responding to that request.
Thé Company does not expect its response to the staff’s verbal request to have a matenal effect on its ﬁnancnal
statements. . - : S

Item 2. Propemes o . L .

Wendy's uses outside contractors in ‘the construction of its restaurants. The restaurants are builf to Company _
specifications 4s to exierior style and irterior decor The ma]onty are free-standing, one-story brick buildings, :
substantially uniform in des1gn and appéarance, constructed on'sites of approximately 40,000 square feet, with
parking for approximately 45 cars. Some restaurants, located in downtown areas or shopping malls, are of a store-
- front type and vary according to available locations but genérally retain the standird'sign and interior decor. The
typical new free-standing restaurant contains approximately 2,900 square feet and has a food preparation area, a
" dining room capacity for approximately 90‘persons"and a double pick-up window for drive-through service. The
restaurants are generally located in urban or heavily populated suburban-areas, and their success depends upon
serving a large number of customers. Wendy’s prov1des a facility for niral'and less popu]ated areas that has a
building size of approximately 2,100 square feet and approximately 60 seats. This unit provides full double drive-
through capacity. Wendy’s also operates restaurants in special site locations such as travel centers, gas station/
convenience stores, military bases, arenas, malls, hospltals alrports and college Ci unpuses '

There are also a number of existing Wendy's and TH[ concepts combmed in smgle free-standing units which
average about 5,780 square feet. These units are leased from the 50/50 restaurant real estate joint venture

* between Wendy's and THI and share a common dining room seating from approximately 100 to.130 persons.
Each unit has separate Wendy’s and THI food preparation and storage areas ancl most have separate pick-up
windows for each concept. The Company does not intend to open a significant number of new combo units going
forward. - T L

The Company remodels its restaurants on a periodic basis to mamtam a fresh image, providing convemence for
its customers and i mcreasmg the overall efﬁmency of restaurant operations.

1(-(

At December 31, 2006, the Company and its franchlsees operated 6,673 Wendy s restaurants. Of the 1 465
company operated Wendy’s restaurants, the Company owned the land and building for 644 restaurants, owned
the building and held long-term land leases for 570 restaurants and held leases covering land and building for 251
restaurants. The Company’s land and building leases are generally written for terms of.10 to 25 years with one or
more five-year renewal options. In certain lease agreements the Company has the option to purchase the real
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estate. Certain leases require the payment of additional rent equal to a percentage, generally less than 6%, of
annual sales in excess of specified amounts. Some of the real estate owned by the Company is subject to

. mortgages which mature over various terms. The Company also owned land and bulldmgs for, or leased, 248
Wendy’s restaurant locations which were leased or subleased to franchlsees “Surplus fand and buildings are
generally held for sale.

The Bakery operates two facilities in Zanesville, Ohio that produce hamburger buns for Wendy's restaurants. The
hamburger buns are distributed to both company operated and franchisee restaurants llxsmg primarily the Bakery’s
fleet of trucks. As of December 31, 2006 the Bakery employed approximately 353 people at the two facilities that
had a combined size of approximately 205,000 square feet, :
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The location of company and franchise restaurants is set forth below. .. .-

|

Wendy’s -*°

Domestic Subtotal

N
i

12

v - " .- State --'Company Franchise -

‘ “Alabama =~ Lo ol o8
Alaska , fet - 8

Arizona 48 - 54

Arkansas ¢ p—_ 64

' Califomif'i o 66 228

i Colorado - . v 470 . 82
Connecticut . - P i 8 43

Delaware — 15

. Florida 200 302
) Georgia 33 243
' Hawaii | 7 =
. Idaho ' — .29
) 1llinois | 94 87
Indiana 5 171

lowa . — 47

Kansas | 19 55

‘ Kentucky 3 139
’ Louisiana 70 65
. Maine | 4 17
' Maryland ° — 115
Massachusetts 61 34

Michigan 30 248

, Minnesota - 69
' Mississippi 8 90
Missouri, 24 49

Montana’ — 16

Nebraskar — 34

Nevada | — 47

New Hampshire 4 23

New Jersey 17 126

New Mexico — - 38

. ~ New York 67 156
‘ North Carolina 40 206
North Dakota — 8

Ohio | 89 353

Oklahoma — 41

Oregon ! 24 31

Pennsylvania 80 187

~ Rhode Island 10 12

South Carolina — 128

South Dakota — 9

Tennessee — 183

Texas . 84 314

Utah | 61 23

Vermont | —_ 6

Virginia ' 48 164

Washington 27 46

' West Virginia 22 - 50
Wisconsin — 65

' Wyoming: _ 14
District of Columbia — 6

1,317 . 4,638

H
|




- Wendy’s "

A

Countryfl‘emmry Company Franchise
' " Aruba e 3
Bahamas " 7
Canada 146 231
* Cayman Islands * ' — 2
" Costa Rica -— : 2
Dominican Republic — 1.
El Salvador —_ 12
Guam . 2. —
Guatemala — 6
Honduras o 4
.. Indonesia <20
- Jamaica L — 2
Japan . — 78
, N Mexico — ' 17
' New Zealand —_ 16
Panama : —_ 6
Philippines - — 40
Puerto Rico P — 61
Venezuela P — 39
? Virgin Islands v—s 3
International Subtotal - . 148 = 570
. Grand Total “ at . 1,465 5,208

\ Ny A N y

Item 3. ‘

'Legal Prdceédirigs ‘

N

The Company and its subsidiaries are parties to various legal ‘actions and complamts arising in the ordinary
course of business. Many of these are covered by the Company's self-insurance or other insurance programs.
Reserves related to the resolution of legal proceedings are included on the Company’s Consolidated Balance
Sheets, as a liability under “Accrued Expenses Other.” It is the opinion of the Company that the ultimate
resolution of such matters will not materially affect the Company’s financial condmon or ea.mmgs

Item 4.

None.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
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PARTII

item' 5 Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockhalde: Matters and Issuer Purchase of
Equity Securities

Wendy’s International, Inc. common shares are traded on the New York, Boston, Chicago, Pacific and
Philadelphia Stock Exchanges (tradlng symbol: WEN) Options in Wendy’s shares are traded on the Pacific
Stock Exchange. .

Market Price of Common Stock

2006 t High Low Close

First Quatter - ' et $66.35  $53.90 $62.06
Second Quarter , - O 63.65 5625 5829
Third Quarter o 67.19 5754  67.00
Fourth Quarter () S 3595 375 33.09
2005 B _. High Low Close
" First Quarter ' N $41.15  $36.73  $39.15
Second Quarter ! . 48.50 38.04 47.64
Third Quarter ' | ot 53.62 4358  45.15
- Fourth Quarter ' Ry 56.40 43.88 55.26

. (1} On September 29, 2006, the Company distributed 1.3542759 shares of THI common stock for each
outstanding share of Wendy's common stock in the form of a pro rata stock dividend. After the
distribution, the market price of the Company’s stock reflected the value of the Company excludmg
THI. See Note 6 of the Financial Statements and Supplementary Datu included in Ttém 8 herein for
addmanal mformanon on the THI dtsrr:bunon

- |. S

P

P I | 1._ ) PR

1y . . e

At February 23,2007, the Company had appromr?ate]y 107, 500 shareholders of record

Dividends Decldred and Paid Per Share ~ o T e e
. TS  t [ ' ! ' + LI

Quarter . 2006 2005

First : S S\ T N KL S
Second : , 17 135
Third | 17 a3
Fourth | 085 .17

(1) On September 29, 2006, the Company distributed 1.3542759 shares of THI common stock for each
outstanding share of Wendy's common stock in the form of a pro rata stock dividend. After the
distribution, the Company reduced its dividend to 3.085. The Company's adjusted annual dividend rate
beginning in the fourth guarter of 2006 of $0.34 plus the value of the THI annual dividend of $0.25 per
share U.S. (as of October 2006) times the spin-off distribution ratio of 1.3542759 is equivalent to the
Company’s previous $0.68 annual dividend prior to the spin-off. See Note 6 of the Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item 8 herein for additional information on the THI
distribution.

See Note 6 on pages 61 through 64 of the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item 8
herein for information on related stockholder matters.
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The following table sets forth, as of the end of the Company’s last fiscal year, (a) the number of securities that**
could be issued upon exercise of outstanding options and vesting of outstanding restricted stock units and
restricted stock awards under the Company’s equity compensation plans, (b) the welghted-average exercise pnce
of butstanding options under such plans, and (¢} the number of securities remaining available for future issuance
under such plans, excluding securities that could be issued upon exercise of outstanding options.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
' N | Weighted- . Number of securities
Number of securities ' average . remaining available
to be issued upon exercise price of 1| for future issuance under
exercise of outstanding outstanding equity compensation
‘ options, warrants options, warrants | plans (excloding securitles
Plan Category and rights (a) and rights (b) reflected in column (a)) (c)
Equity compensation plans ' o : -
approved by security holders : 2,502,603 $15.6476 818,075
Equity compensation plans not . o
_approved by security holders 381,499 $13.7075 497,009
Total .. 2,884,102 $15.2293 | 1,315,084
. . 1l . : 5 o '

Included inthe 2,884,102 total number of securities in column (a) above are appmx:malely 1.0 million
. restricted stock units and restricted stock awards. The weighted-average exercise price in column (b) is

based only on stock options as restricted stock units and restricted stock awards have no exercise

price. -

On August 2, 1990, the Board of Directors adopted the WeShare Stock Option Plan (thc “WeShare Plan”), a
non-qualified stock option plan that provided for grants of options equal to 10% of ciach eligible employee’s
earnings, with a minimum of 20 options to be granted to each eligible employee annually. Beginning in 2002,
options equal to 8-12% of each eligible employee’s earnings could be granted annua'l]y under the WeShare Plan.
The percentage of cach eligible employee’s carnings was determined by the Company’s annual performance as
measured by eamings per share growth and the Company’s three-year average total shareholder return relative to
< the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index. Most employees of the Company and its submdnanes who were full-time *
employees on the grant date and on December 31 of the year preceding the grant date were eligible employees.
On August 2, 1990, the Board of Directors adopted the 1990 Stock Option Plan (“1990 Plan”) for issuance of .
equity awards to key employees.and outside directors. On April 22, 2004, the Company’s shareholders approved
the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan (2003 Plan”) for issuance of equity awards to emplc;yees and outside directors. In
aggregate 1.3 million shares are reservecl under the WeShare Plan, the 1990 Plan and the 2003 Plan as of .
December 31, 2006. i

Options granted under the WeShare Plan, 1990 Plan and 2003 Plan had a term of 10 years from the grant date
and became exercisable in installments of 25% on each of the first four anniversaries of the grant date. Under the
original terms of these grants, these exercise dates could be accelerated if the Comp’any was involved in certain
meérger, consolidation, reclassification or exchange of securities transactions as speélﬁed in each of the respective
plans. If an employee’s employment is terminated for any reason other than death, dlsablhty, termination without
cause in connection with the disposition of one or more restaurants or retirement, th'c options will be canceled as
of the date of such termination. If the employee’s employment is terminated by reas'on of his or her death, .
disability or termination without cause in connection with the disposition of one or more restaurants {“disposition
termination”), the options will become immediately exercisable and may be exercised at any time during the
12-month period after his or her death, disposition termination or date of becoming|disabled, subject to the stated
term of the options. If the'employee’s employment is terminated by reason of his or her retirement, the options
may be exercised during the 48-month period after the retirement date, subject to the stated term of the options.
The Company had granted options under the WeShare Plan annually to several thm'lsand employees. However,
the Company rio longer makes grants of options under the WeShare Plan or the 1990 Plan and did not make any
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option grants under the 2003 Plan in 2006. The WeShare Plan has not been subinitted to the shareholders of the
Company for approval as permitted under current New York Stock Exchange listing requirements, .

t
Restncted stock unit grants under the 2003 Plan generally. vest over a 30 month period for employees in Canada

and over a four year period for U.S. employees.

On October 27, 2005, the Compensation,Cormnillée (the “Committee”) of the Board of Directors of the
Company, after discussion with the Board, approved accelerating the vesting, effective October 27, 2005, of
approximately 3.2 million stock options, representing all then outstanding, unvested stock options granted under
the Company’s (i) 1990 Plan, as amended; (ii) WeShare Plan, as. amended; and (iii) 2003 Plan; as amended
(collectively, the “Plans™), that were held by then current emiployees, including all executive officers, and
employees who retired with unvested stock options after having attained age 35 with at least 10 years of service
with the Company or its subsidiaries. The vesting of stock options held by the independent directors of the
Company was not changed by this action. Except as described below for executive ofﬁcers all other terms and
conditions of each stock option award remain the same.

The Committee’s decision to accelerate lh'e vesting of all then outstanding, unvested stock options granted under
the Plans only affected stock option awards granted from October 31, 2001, through 2004. It did not affect stock
option awards granted prior to October 31, 2001 and prior years since those options had already vested and no
stock options were granted by the Company in 2003 as the Company transitioned from stock options to restricted
stock and restricied stock unit awards. The Committee’s acceleration decision did not affect restricted stock-unit
awards. Of the total number of stock options accelcrated approximately 463,000 were held by executlve officers
at October 27, 2005.

The Committee imposed a holding period that will require all executive officers o refrain from selling shares
acquired upon the exercise of these accelerated options (other than shares needed to cover the exercise price,
applicable transaction fees and satisfying withholding taxes) until the date on which the exercise would have
been permitted under the option’s original vesting terms or, if earlier, the executive officer’s death, disability or
termination of employment. The decision to accelerate the vesting of these stock options was made primarily to
reduce non-cash compensation expense that would have been recorded in future periods following the
Company!s adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 123, “Share Based Payment
{revised 2004)” (“SFAS 123R"). In addition, the decision to accelerate the vesting of stock options is expected to
have a positive effect on employee morale, retention and perception of value at various levels of the enterprise.
The acceleration of vesting does not alter the vesting of restricted stock, restricted stock units or performance
shares held by directors, officers and employees of the Company. SFAS No. 123R: (i) generally requires
recognizing compensation cost for the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity-based compensation
over the requisite service period; (ii) applies to all awards granted, modified, vesting, repurchased or cancelled
after the required effective date: and (iii) was effective for the Company as of the beginning of its first quarter
2006. The future expense that was eliminated as a result of the acceleration of the vesting of these options is .
estimated to be approximately $8 million, $3 million and $1 million in 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. In
2005, as a result of modifying the vesting period of the options, the Company’s continuing operations included
$3.5 million in compensation expense in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certain .
Transactions Involving Stock Compensation”, The expense represents the estimated number of stock options that
would have been forfeited according to the original terms of the options that will no longer be forfeited due to the
acceleration of the vesting, at the intrinsic value of the options on the date vesting was accelerated. ‘

On September 29, 2006, the Company compleied the spin-off of THI. The distribution took place in the form of a
pro rata common stock dividend to the Company’s shareholders of record as of Friday, September 15, 2006..
Shareholders received 1.3542759 shares of THI common stock for each share of the Company’s common stock
held. Cash was paid for fractional share interests. In total, the Company distributed 159,952,977 shares of THI
common stock to its shareholders, representing all of the shares of THI that Wendy’s owned as of September 29,
2006. In conjunction with the spin-off of THI, directors, officers and employees of the Company holding options,
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restricted stock units (including accrued dividend equ:lvalenl units) and perfo}"man}:e shares did not receive s.llarésl
of THI in the spin-off distribution on the common shares underlying those equity awards. Pursuant to the

provisions of the Plans, to preserve the economic value of those equity awards as they existed
off, the Committee approved an adjustment 1o all outstanding options, restricted stock
dividend equivalent units) and performance shares. The equity award adjustment was effected

number of shares underlying the equity awards by 0.4828 and by multiplying the stock option

prior to the spin-

units (including accrued

by dividing the
exercise price by ,

the same adjustment ratio. This adjustment ratio was obtained by dividing the “ex-dividend” opening price of the:
Company’s common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on October 2, 2006 ($32.35), the first trading day -

]
]

after the spin-off, by the closing price of the Company’s common stock in the “regular way’

market on . ;

September 29, 2006 ($67.00). There was no compensation expense charge associated with this conversion., ..

The fo]lm‘ying table presents the Company’s repurchases of its common stock for each
included in the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2006:

' ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY 'SECUllliTIES
L 1 .:ff" h . B DU L N

of the three periods-

b L

g

PR

. . ‘ (d) Mximum Nimber
e & ' (or Approximate
3 (¢) Total Number, . Dollar Value) of
* " of Shares Purchased  Shares that May Yet
f ¢ . as Part of Piblicly - be Purchased Under’
(a) Total Number (b) Average Price  Announced Plans or . the Plans
Period 7 of Shares Purchased  Paid Per Share ‘ ._or Programs (1) .
Period 10 (October 2, 2006 * R o e
— November 5, 2006) 0 b 0 0" - #35400,000
Period 11 (November 6, 2006 ‘-j' . o 'I' T .
" — December 3, 2006) 22,413,278 - $35:75 - 22:413,278 7 ' 12,986,722
Period 12 (December 4, 2006 . . ‘ e ICEE
,~—December 31, 2006) 0 $ 0 o 0. ' 12,986,722
' Total 22,413,278 £35.75 22,413,_i78 T 12,986,722 -

(1) On October 9, 2006 the Comp

common shares of the Company to
authorization replaced all prior authorizations, including the $907.3 million authorization

any’s Board of Directors authorized the repurc'}lése'bf up to 35.4 mil}i()n" .
be implemented over 18-24 months from the|date of authorization. This™

remaining at = "

October 1, 2006. The 22.4 million shares repurchased in Period 11 were repurchlased'liursuém to the terms '_‘

]

November 16, 2006,

! . v 1
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of a modified-“Dutch Auction” tender offer, which was initiated on October 18, 9006 and compléted on
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Item 6.  Selected Financial Data T

Selected Financial Data i . .
(Information included below excludes amounts related to discontinued operations, except where otherwise noted)
Operations (in millions) - - o 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Revenues @ . ’ : , o § 2,439 2455 2,502 2,252 2,060
Sales @ ' . ' © % 2,155 2,138 2,194 1,960 1,78t
In¢ome from continuing operanons before income taxes ST $ 42 137 176 182 192
Income from continuing operations ‘ oo $ 37 -8 106 120 122
Income (loss) from-discontinued operations ®  + : : $ 57 139 (34 116 97
Net income & $ 94 224 52 236 219
Capital expenditures ‘ i ' o % 110 181 166 0214 - 240
Per Share Data . '
Diluted earnings per common share from conunumg operations $ .32 73 92 104 106
Diluted earnings (ioss) per common share from discontinued operations $ .50 119 (47 101 83
Total diluted earnings per common share (mcludmg discontinued

operations) ‘$ 82 192 45 205 1.39
Dividends declared and paid per common share ‘ $ 60 38 48 24 24
Market price at year-end ¢ ' ' $ 23.09 5526 3926 39.24 2707

Financial Position (in miltions)

Total assets (including discontinued operations) - $ 2,060 3,440 3,198 3,133 2,680

Long-term debt to equity @
Debit to, total capitalization (10

Property and equipment, net $ 1,226 1,348 1,512 1462 1,324
Long-term obligations $ 556 540 539 639 645
Shareholders’ equity (including discontinued operations) C % 1,012 2,059 1,716 1,759 1,449
Ratios . o
Company operated store margins ; ... % B9 86 109 131 145
Pretax profit margin ©® F N % 1.7 56 70 81 63
‘Return on average assets® ., 7 % 28 70 17 84 92
Return on average equity ® o L % 47 119 29 149 170

% 55 26 31 36 45
% 3 21 23 2 3l

Price to camings 0. L ' 49 29 8 19 14

(1)
{2)

{3)
4

5)

{6)
{7}
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Fiscal year includes 53 weeks.

During the year, the Company revised its presentation of the sale of kids® meal toys to reflect the sales on a grosy Versus net basis under
the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF "} 99-19. “Reporting Revenue Gross as  Principal versus Net as an Agent”. The
revised presentation had no impact on eperating income or net income. Amounts related to the prior years were not material, but were
revised for purposes of comparability. The revisions increased sales and cost of sales 359.4 million, $61.6 million, $69.1 million, $61.0
million and 349.8 million for fiscal years 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Includes results of operations for THI, Baja Fresh and Cafe Express.

On September 29, 2006, the Company distributed 1.3542759 shares of THI common stock for each outstanding share of Wendy's
common stock in the form of a pro rata stock dividend. Aﬂ‘er the distribution, the market price of the Company’s stock reflected the value
of the Company excluding THI. See Note 6 of the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item 8 herein for additional
information on the THI distribution.

Company operated store margins are compulted as store sales less siore cost of sales and company restaurant oeperating costs, divided by
store sales.

Pretax profit margin is computed by dividing income from continuing operations before income taxes by revenues.

Return on average assets is computed by dividing net income (including discontinued operations) by average assets over the previous
five quarters, excluding advertising fund restricted assets.

Return on average equity is computed by dividing net income (including discontinued operations) by average shareholders’ equity over
the previous five quarters. '

Long-term debt to equity is computed by dividing long-term debt (excluding discontinued operations) by shareholders’ equity.

{10) Debt to total capitalization is computed by dividing long-1erm debt (excluding discontinued operations) by total capitalization.
{11y Price o earnings is computed using the year-end stock price divided by the diluted earnings per share for the year including

discontinued operations. .
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Other Information

}

2004% 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998* 1997 1596

Restaurant Data 2006 2005
North American Wendy's open at year-end S C
Company 1,463 1,497 1482 1460 1,316 1,223 1,148 1,082 1,021 1,186 1,306
Franchise - S 4,869 4,808 4,837 4,668. 4,587 4,431 4,271 4,079 3922 3,634 3292
International Wendy’s open at year-end . . :
Company 2 5 5, 5 4 5 3 30 .15 16 9
Franchise ' 339 346 ‘347 348 346 384 368 336 .375 371 326
Total Wendy’s” 6,671 6,481 6,253 6,043 5,792 5,527 5,333 5,207 4,933

Average net sales per domestic
Wendy's restaurant (in thousands)

6,673 6,746

{. .

Company . $1,400 1,365 1,416 1,389 1,387 1,337 1,314 1,284 1,174 1,111 1,049
Franchise ‘ "$1,276 ‘1,263 1,291 1268 1,251 1,164 1,130 1,102 1,031 1,017 978
Total domestic $1,303 1,286 1:319 1,294 1,280 1,199 1,167 1,138 1,062 1,042 998
Per Share Data ' ' S " :
Dividends . $ .60 58 .48 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24
Market price at year-énd ¥ $3309 '55.26_39.26 39. 24 21.07 29 17 26. 25 2081 21.81 2288 20.88

. Fzscal year includes 53 weeks .

**  On September 29, 2006, the Company d:srnbmed 1 3542759 shares of THI common stock for each oum‘ randmg share of Wendy's
common stock in the form of a pro rata ‘stock dividend. After the distribution, the market price of the Company's stock reflected the value
of the Company excluding THI. Seé Note 6 of the Fi inancial Statements and Supplememary Data included in Item 8 herein for additional

*-information on rhe THI distribution.

P
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Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analjsis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

N
i

Executive Overview

Wendy’s International, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company’) completed the initial public offering (“JPO") of
Tim Hortons Inc. (“THT") in March 2006, the spin-off of THI on September 29, 2006 and the sale of Baja Fresh
on November 28, 2006. During the fourth quarter 2006, the Company also approved the prospective disposition
of Cafe Express. Accordingly, the after-tax operating results of THI, Baja Fresh and Cafe Express appear in the -
“Discontinued Operations” line on the income statement for all years presented.

The Company reported net income of $94.3 million compared to $224.1 million in 2005 and $52.0 million in
2004. Income from continuing operations declined from $85.1 million in 2005 to $37.0 million in 2006 reflecting
$25.0 million pretax ($15.5 million after tax) in incremental contributions to the Wendy's National Advertising
Program (“WNAP”), incremenial costs incurred in connection with the Company’s restructuring initiatives of
$38.9 million pretax ($24.1 million after tax), the decline of franchise rent revenue of $16.8 million pretax ($10:4
million after tax) due primarily to the sale of properties previously leased to franchisees, higher general and
administrative expenses of $16.7 million pretax ($10.3 million after tax) and the impact of 2005 store closure and
asset sales. The 2005 amounts included $62.7 million pretax ($39.0 million after tax) on the sale of certain
properties previously leased to franchisees and $27.1 million pretax ($16.8 million after tax) related to'store
closures, asset impairments and other costs related to sites no longer considered for development. These net
decreases were partially offset by a $33.9 million pretax 2006 increase in interest income, due primarily to higher
cash balances from the THI IPQ, and lower pretax interest expense of $7.4 million due primarily to the
repayment of $100 million in debt in 2005.

Income from continuing operations declined froni $106.1 million in 2004 to $85.1 million in 2005, primarily
reflecting average same-store sales declines, higher beef costs (up 12%) and $27.1 million pretax ($16.8 million
after tax) in restaurant closure and fixed asset impairment charges, all partially offset by $62.7 million pretax
($39.0 million after tax) in gains on sales of propérty previously leased to franchisees.

One of the key indicators in the restaurant industry that management monitors o assess the health of the
Company is average same-store sales. This metric provides information on total sales at restaurants operating
during the relevant period and provides a useful comparison between periods, in addition to the opening of new
stores. Average same-store sales results for domestic company operated and domestic franchised restaurants are
listed in the table below. Franchisee operations ar? not included in the Company’s financial statements; however,
franchisee sales result in royalties and rental income which are included in the Company’s franchise revenues.

2006 Average Same-Store Sales Increases/{Decreases)
1# Quarter 2™ Quarter 3~ Quarter 4% Quarter 2006

Domestic company restaurants : (4.8)% 0.7% 4.1% 31% 0.8%
Damestic franchise restaurants : (5.2)% 1.0% 3.9% 2.7% 0.6%

For comparative purposes, average same-store sales changes at domestic company operated and domestic
franchised restaurants for 2005 are shown in the table below.

! 2005 Average Same-Store Sales Increases/(Decreases)

1% Quarter 20 Quarter 3@ Quarter 4t Quarter 2005

Domestic company restaurants (2.2)% (4.6)% (5.00% (29% (3.7Y%
Domestic franchise restaurants : (1.0)% (3.9% (5.5)% (1.8% (B.1)%
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Other financial and operating highlights include: s

@ The Company and its franchisees opened a total of 122 new restaurants during 2006, including 26 company
operated restaurants and 96 franchised restaurants. This reflects the slowing of store development as the
Company focuses on improving store margins. B T

® During 2006 the Company announced a restructuring program to eliminate approximately $100 million of -
costs, including $80 million from its reported continuing operations. Although some of the savings from this
effort were realized in 2006, most of the savings will be reatized in 2007. SR I ’ _ :

® The Company repurchased 26.2 million shares in 2006 for $1.0 billion, including 22.4 million shares for
$804.4 million in a‘modiﬁed “Duitch Auction” tender offer in'the fourth quarter. S '

® In February 2007, the Company announced its intention {o increase its annual cash dividend from $0.34 pet
share to $0.50 per share beginning with the quarterty dividend to be paid May 2007 ‘

A summary of sysie‘m»\;ide restaurants is included on page 35.

Company Operated Restaurant Margins

The Company’s restaurant margins are computed as store sales less store cost of sales and company restaurant
operating costs, divided by store sales, Depreciation is not included in the calculation of company operated-
restaurant margins. Company operated restaurant margins improved to 8.9% in 2006 clompared to 8.6% in 2005,
primarily reflecting improvements in cost of sales. The 2005 company operatéd restaurant margins declined from
10.9% in 2004 to 8.6% primarily reflecting lower average same-store sales and higher beef costs. .

'

Sales . o N

' . -

: P ' L G4 o t r:' . :r ‘ .
The Company’s sales are comprised of sales from company operated restaurants, sales of kids” meal toys to
franchisees and sales of sandwich buns from the Company’s bun baking facilities to ﬁanchiseesﬁ.vlfrhnchisee sales
are not included in reported sales. Of total sales, domestic company store sales compr sed approximately 88% in

each period presented, while the remainder primarily represented Canadian company store sales.

The $16.2 million increase in sales in 2006 versus 2005 primarily included the impact from a sgrengthcning .
Canadian dollar of approximately $13 million and the impact of higher average same-store sales.at company
operated restaurants, offset by fewer U.S. company operated restaurants open during the year, as the Company .
closed 29 underperforming company operated restaurants in 2006. o , '

s
.
B ’ " L.

The $55.7 million decrease in sales in 2005 versus 2004 primarily represents lower average same-store sales at
company operated restaurants and the impact of 2005 being a 52-week year versus SS'I weeks in 2004, partially
offset by an increase in the number of company operated restaurants open: Total company opetated restaurants -

open at year-end 2006 were 1,465 versus 1,502 at year-end 2005 and 1,487 at year-end 2004.;

The following table summarizes various restaurant statistics for, domestic company operated restaurants for the |

years indicated: . : SRR ER AN

2066 - -y 20058 - 2004
Average same-store sales increase (decrease) 0.8% (3. 1% 2.9%
Company operated restaurants open at year-end ' 2 ) b 1,345 1,328
Average unit volumes . . . . | $1,400,00'0 $1,365,000 $1,416,000
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Franchise Revenues

The Company’s franchise revenues include royalty income from franchisees, rantal income from properties
leased to franchisees, gains from the sales of properties to franchisees and franchise fees. Franchise fees cover
charges for various costs and expenses related to establishing a franchisee’s business.
b

The $32.4 million decrease in franchise revenues in 2006 versus 2005 primarily reflects $16.8 million in lower
rental income due to the sale of sites previously leased to franchisees during 2005 and early 2006. The decrease
also reflects the absence of $16.3 million in gams on sales of properties leased to franchisees that occurred in

2005.

#

The $8.9 nulhon increase in franchise revenues in 2005 versus 2004 primarily reflects a higher number of
franchise restaurants open and 2005 gains of $16.3 million on sales of propertics leased to franchisees. These
increases were partially offset by an extra week of revenues in 2004 and average same-store sales decreases in

franchise restaurants. ;

i

The following table summarizes various rcstauranl statistics for domestic franchised restaurants for the years
indicated:

]

2006 2005 2004
Average same-store sales increase (decrease) 0.6% 3.1)% 1.8%
Franchise restaurants open at year-end ‘ 4,638 4,673 4,607
Average unit volumes ‘ . $1,276,000  $1,263,000 $1.291,000

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales includes food, paper and labor costs for company operated restaurants, and the cost of goods sold to
franchisees related to kids' meal toys and from the Company’s bun baking facilities. Of the total cost of sales,
domestic company operated restaurant cost of sales comprised approximately 87% in each period presented,
~while the remainder primarily represented Canadlan company operated restaurants. Overall, cost of sales as a
percent of sales was 62.7% in 2006, 63.7% in 2005 and 62.4% in 2004. e '

Domestic company operated restaurant cost of sales were 61.5% of domestic company operated restaurant sales
in 2006, compared with 62.5% in 2005 and 61.1% in 2004. Domestic food and paper costs were 32.8% of
domestic company operated restaurant sales in 2006, comparéd with 33.8% in 2005 and 33.3% in 2004. The
decrease in 2006 versus 2005 primarily reflects lower commodity costs, including an approximate 8% decline in -
beef, and improved menu management, with the introduction of higher-margin products. The increase in 2005
versus 2004 primanly reflects an increase in commoduy costs, including hlgher beef costs of approximately

12%. b

Domestic labor costs were 27.8% of domestic company operated restaurant sales in 2006, compared with 27.8%
in 2005 and 26.8% in 2004. The increase in 2006 versus 2005 primarily reflects an average labor rate increase of
2.3%, partially offset by the favorable impact from the closure of lower volume stores in 2005, an average same-
store sales increase in company operated restaurants and productivity improvements. The increase in 2005 versus
2004 primarily reflects the impact of lower average sales. _ :

‘Company Restaurant Operating Costs | ,

'

Company restaurant operating costs include costs necessary to manage and operate company restaurants, ex'cept
cost of sales and depreciation. Of the total company restaurant operating costs, domestic company stores -
comprised approximately 90% in each period presented, while the remainder primarily represented Canadian
company stores. ) !
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As a percent of company operated restaurant sales, company restaurant operating costs were 28.5% in 2006,

27 8% in 2005 and 26.9% in 2004. The 2006 increase versus 2005 primarily reflects higher utilities of $6.6
million, higher performance-based incentive compensation of $4.4 million, as well as higher costs for property
management, insurance and supplies. These increases were partially offset by lower group insurance reserves of
$4.1 million due to favorable claims experience. The 2005 increase as a percent of company restaurant sales
versus 2004 primarily reflects negative average same-store sales in 2005.

Operating Costs

Operating costs include rent expense and other costs related to properties subleased to franchisees, other
franchisee related costs and costs related to operating and maintaining the Company’s bun baking facilities.

The $26.3 million increase in operating costs in 2006 versus 2005 primarily reflects a $25.0 million special
contribution to the WNAP, as well as $3.4 million in payments related to a distribulor: commitment and $1.2
million in 2006 for franchise remodel incentives. These increases were partially offset by Jower rent expense due
to the fact that a 50/50 joint venture between Wendy's and THI is no longer consolidated as a result of the
spin-off of THI in September 2006, and therefore, this rent is no longer included in operating costs. For the first
nine months of 2006, this rent totaled approximately $6 million.

Total operating costs in 2005 were essentially even with 2004.
Depreciation of property and equipment’

Consolidated depreciation of property and equipment decreased 4.2% in 2006 and increased 16.7% in 2005. The
decrease in 2006 versus 2005 primarily reflects a reduction iri the number of compan'y operated restaurants, The
increase in 2005 versus 2004 primarily reflects additional restaurant development and a depreciation expense

reduction recorded in 2004 related to a lease correction.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased $16.7 million, or 7.6%, to $237.6 milllion versus 2005, As a
percent of revenues, general and administrative expenses were higher in 2006 at 9.7% versus 9.0% in 2003. The
dollar and percent increase in 2006 includes incremental expense for performance-based incentive compensation
of $10.9 million, $9.2 million in incremental consulting and professional fees and $7.4 million in higher costs
related to breakfast. These increases were partially offset by lower salary and benefit costs of $14.8 million. |

In 2005, general and administrative expenses increased $10.7 million, or 5.1%, to $2|20.9 million versus 2004. As
a percent of revenues, general and administrative expenses were higher in 2005 at 9.0% versus 8.4% in 2004.
The dollar and percent increase in 2005 includes incremental compensation expense: of $8.9 million related to the
Company’s restricted shares award program implemented in the second quarter of 2004, compensation expense
related to the accelerated vesting of the Company’s outstanding stock options of $3.5 million, higher salaries and
wages of $3.9 million and a decrease in revenues. These increases were partially offset by reduced performance-,
based incentive compensation of $10.4 million.

Other Expense (Income), Net

Other expense (income), net includes amounts that are not directly derived from the Company’s primary.
business. These include expenses related to store closures, restructuring costs, salestof properties to
non-franchisees, joint venture rent revenue and reserves for legal issues.
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The following is’a summary of other expense (income), net for each of the yeais indicated:
[ r ' . - St .
{In thousands) . ) AR ‘ v 2006 .2005 2004

Restructuring costs’ S . $38914 $ 0 % 0
Store closing costs o . P o o 16,737 24,696 0
Rent revenue S ' (14,021) (16,359) (14,401)
(Gain) loss from property dispositions ‘ (6,833) (46,855) 464
Equity investments and other, net i 2,671 4,255 - 12,608

Other expense (income), net l $ 37,468 $(34,263) $ (1,329)

4 - : vt

Restructuring costs

In the first quaxtér of 2006, the Cdr’r‘ipa‘:iy announced its plans to reduce general and administrative and other
costs $100 million, including $80 million in the continuing Wendy’s business. In order to accomplish this, the
Company offered a voluntary enhanced retirement plan to certain full-time employees who were 55 years of age
and had at least 10 years of service. Benefits primarily included severance and healthcare coverage. In -
accordance with SFAS No. 88, “Employers’ -Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit
Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits”, in 2006, the Company recorded $16.5 million in charges related to
the individuals that accepted the offer. This amount also includes $2.5 million of additional stock compensation
expense for unvested restricted stock units resulting from the acceleration of vesting to the employees’ retirement
dates, in accordance with the Company’s stock compensation plan, In the fousth quarter of 2006, the Company
recognized a $3.9 million settlement charge as a result of distributions from the Company’s defined benefit |
pension plan, primarily related to those individuals“ who participated in the voluntary enhanced retirement plan.

In the second quancr of 2006, the Compan|y mltlated a reduction in force, also intended to contribute to the cost
reductions. In accordance thh SFAS No. 112, “Employers Accounting for Poslemploymcnt Benefits”, in 2006
the Company recorded severance and related costs of $13.3 million related to this reductton in force, which
includes $4.1 million of severance costs related to certain senior executives who left the Company in 2006.
Substantially all of the $13.3 million of costs began being paid in the third quarter of 2006 and will continue
through 2007, Approximately $1.0 million of these costs represented additional stock compensation expense
related to the modification of stock-based equity awards. In the third quarter of 2006, the Company revised its
estimate related to the expected payout for certain employees included in the reduction in force. This revision of
estimates resulted in a reduction of expense of $1.9,million. -
In addition to the employee related costs above, the Company incurred professional fees of $3.5 ﬂll]llon in 2006
in connection with the cost reductioninitiatives described above, all of which have been paid. Also, the Company
incurred $1.9 million in relocation and employee bénefit costs in the 2006 associated with the cost reduction
initiatives, the significant majority of which have been paid.

- ; ,
Store closures ‘ S - ‘ T
The Company recorded store closure charges of $16.7 million and $24.7 million in 2006 and 2005 respectively,
including asset impairments and lease termination costs. e

[ L

Rent revenue

Rent revenue included in other (income) expense, net represents rent paid by THI to a 50/50 restaurant real estate
joint venture between Wendy's and THI. After the spin-off of THI on September 29, 2006, this joint venture is
no longer consolidated in the Company’s financial statements and only Wendy’s 50% share of the joint venture
income is included in other (income) expense, net, under the equity accounting method. ' .
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{Gain) loss from property dispositions ' - ’ . “ L o

The 2006 gain from property dispositions includes $5.5 million of gainé fclaled to properties held for sale. The

2005 gain from property dispositions includes a gain of $46.2 million related to the sale of 130 Wendy’s real
estate properties to a third party for $119.1 million.

Equity investments and other, net

Equity investments and other, net in 2006 includes equity income recorded in the fourth’ quarter from the
Company’s 50/50 restaurant real estate joint venture with THI. Prior to the fourth quarter this joint venture was’
consolidated. Equity investments and other, net in 2005 and 2004 primarily includes eqll.lity losses from other equity
investments held by the Company, legal reserves, including approximately $8 million in 2004 and other costs: . 7,

Interest Expense h

The $7.4 million decrease in interest expense in 2006 versus 2005 primarily reflects tihe repayment of the
Company’s $100 million, 6.35% Notes in December 2005. Interest expense in 2005 was $43.1 million and

comparé‘BIe to 2004 interest expense':o_f $42.0 million.

1

]

Interest Income
The $33.9 million increase in interest income in 2006 versus 2005 primarily-reflects interest earned on the funds
received from THI after-its IPO in late March, which also included borrowings by THI paid to the Company.

Interest income only increased-$1.5 million in 2005 as compared to 2004.. - ' ! !

Income Taxes

The effective income tax rate for continuing operations for 2006 was 12.8% compared to 37.8%.for 2005 and
39.8% for 2004. The rate for 2006 was favorably impacted by the resolution of the IRS audit for 2001 through
2004 along with audits for various statcs'. Additionally, the rate in 2006 benefited fro:m federal tax credits eamned
throughout the year for hiring employees in the Gulf Zone subsequent to Hurricane Katrina, The rate for 2005
compared to 2004 was favorably impacted by new state tax legislation enacted in the! second quarter of 2005 and

by Katrina-related credits eamed in the fourth quarter of 2005.

Income {Loss) from Discontinued Operations
" i : . ‘ L t, K
The Company completed its spin-off of THI on September 29, 2006 and completed its sale of Baja Freshon -
November 28,-2006. During the fourth quarter 2006, the Company also approved the prospective sale of Cafe -
Express. Accordingly, the after-tax operating results of THI, Baja Fresh and Cafe Exlpress appear in the .
“Discontinued Operations” line on the income statement for all years presented. Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of tax, was $57.3 million, $139.0 million and $(54.1) million in 20061 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The results for 2006 include a Baja Fresh $46.9 million pretax goodwill impairment charge, $84.5
million and $9.2 million of Baja Fresh and Cafe Express pretax intangible and fixed assct impairment charges,
respectively, and a tax benefit of $11.5 million to recognize the outside book versus tax basis differential on the
sale of the stock of Baja Fresh. Also, the results from discontinued operations includiled only nine months of THI
results in 2006 compared to a full year of THI results in 2005 and 2004, The results for 2005 include $25.4
million and $10.7 million of THI and Cafe Express pretax goodwill impairment char'gcs, respectively, and $18.5
million and $4.0 million of pretax asset impairment charges of THI and Cafe Expres:s, respectively. The 2004
results include $190.0 million in nga Fresh pretax goodwill impairment charges and $21.7 million in pretax

P

: . . v . | L N .
store closure and fixed assct impairment charges, See also Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
. : 8 o .

' COMPREHENSIVEINCOME © *

Coniprehensive income was lower than net income by $16.0 million in 2006, and higher than net income by -
$12.1 million and $55.9 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively. The decrease in comprehensive income in 2006
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primarily includes a pension liability adjustment of $21.5 million, offset by $5.4 million in favorable translation
"adjustments. The increases in comprehensive income over net income in 2005 and 2004 primarily reflect
favorable translanon adJustments on the Canadlan dollar. . . : "

FINANCIAL POSITION b IR

Overview

The Company generates considerable cash flow each year from net income excluding depreciation and
amortization. The main recurring requirement for cash is capital expenditures. In the last three years the
Company has generated cash from continuing operating activities in excess of capital expendiiure spending. The
sale of properties has also provided significant cash to continuing operations over the last three years. Share

. repurchases are part of the ongoing financial strategy utilized by the Company, and normally these repurchases

" come from cash on hand and the cash provided by option exercises. In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company
also used approximately $800 million of funds received from THI after its TPO in late March to complete a
“Dutch Auction” tender offer share repurchase. In the short term, the Company expects cash provided from
option exercises and the cash used for share repurchases should decrease as the Company has not granted options
over the last two years and only approximately 2 million options were outstanding as of December 31, 2006. The
Company plans to begin granting options again in 2007 and intends to seek approval for a new equity award
‘program at its 2007 shareholders’ meeting in Aprili2007. In February 2007, the Company announced its intention
to increase its annual cash dividend from $0.34 per share to $0.50 per share beginning with the quarterly
dividend to be paid May 2007. The Company currently has a $500 million shelf registration and $200 million
line of credit which are unused as of December 31, 2006. -

The Company maintains a strong balance sheet. Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s rate the Company’s senior .
unsecured debt BB+,and Ba2, respectively. The long-term debt-to-total equity ratio for the Company’s continuing *
‘operations increased to approx1matcly 55% at year-end 2006 from approximately 26% at yéar-end 2005, pnmarlly
reﬂectmg a $1.0 billion decline in équity in 2006 due to common share repurchases of $1. 0 billion. '

Total a{ssets from continuing operations increased $0.1 million in 2006 to $2:1 b]l]lon Net property and
equipment decreased $0.1 million, primarily reflecting the sa]e and closure of certain restaurants and depreciation
expense partially offset by new restaurant openings. Return on average assets was 2.9% in 2006 and 7.0%-in
2005, The decrease reflects a reduction in net income. Return on average assets is computed as net income
divided by average assets over the previous five quarters, excluding advertising fund restricted assets. Current
advertising fund restricted assets are separately presentcd on thie Company’s balance sheets. The Company 1is
restricted from utilizing these assets for its own purposes. See also Note 14 of the Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data mcluded in Item 8 herein for further mformatlon ' il ‘

Total shareholders’ ‘equity decreased $140 billion in 2006 due primarily to common share repurchases. THI net-
IPO proceeds of $716.7 million increased shareholder’s equity, while shareholders’ equity was reduced by '
$638.9 million at the time of the spin-off of THL Return on average equity, defined as net income divided by
average eqmty over the previous five quarters; was 4 7% in 2006 and 11.9% in 2005. ' St
Compa;‘ativle Cpsh Flows o ' : o . -
Cash ﬂows from operations prov1ded by continuing opcratlons were $I43 9 million, $190.8 m1I110n and $24O 8
million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The 2006 decrease was pnmanly due to tax benefits of $29.2
million related to equity award grants which were classified as financing activities versus operating activities in
accordance with SFAS No. 123R “Share Based Payment” and higher working capital cash cutflows in 2006
versus 2005, The 2005 decrease compared to 2004 was primarily related to lower net income, net of 2005 net
gains from property dispositions. -
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Cash flows from operations provided by discontinued operations were $127.5 million, $286.5 million and $261.6
million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, tespectively. The 2006 decrease was primarily due to htgher tax and interest
payments of $30.1 million, 2006 foreign currency hedge payments of $28.0 million; and higher working capital
cash outflows in 2006 versus 2005. The increase in 2005 over 2004 cash flows provrded by discontinued -
operauons includes hlgher earmngs fromTHL ..~ . L . .

Net cash used in 1nvest1ng actrvmes from contmumg operatlons totaled $62 6 mllhon in 2006  compared to' cash
provided of $3 7 million in 2005 and cash used of $113.4 million in 2004. The $66.3 rmllron difference between
2006 and 2005 pnmanly reﬂects a decrease in proceeds from property dispositions of 51133 .2 million pnmanly
due to the 2005 sale of propemes previously leased to franchisees, partlally offset by lower 2006 capital
expenditures of $71.8 million. The $117.1 million difference between 2005 and 2004 primarily reflects the
higher proceeds from property dispositions of $138.9 million primarily due to the. 2005 {sale of properties- . .
previously leased to franchisees, partially offset by higher 2005 capital expenditures of $14.8 million Capital .
expenditures are the largest ongoing component of the Company’s investing activities and include expenditures
for new restaurants, improvements to existing restaurants and other capital needs. A summary of continuing
operations capital expenditures for the last three years follows.

Capital Expenditures, . - , o . ) L. | S .
dnmillions) " v o 7 oo T 2006 2005 2004
New restaifants ~ - o o !$44 Cs101 0 S 64
Restaurant improvements L o R s6 ° ' 56 ' 60
Other capital needs . . , . . ‘ ) 10, 24 ) 42

Total capltal expendltures : Lo - . $110 . - $181 $166

Net cash used in 1nvestmg act1v1t1es from dlscontmued operations totaled $88.3 rmllron 1n 2006 compared to $190.9
million in 2005 and $209.1 million in 2004. The decrease in net cash used in 2006 pnmanly reflects a $76.5 million
decrease in capital expenditures for new store development and higher development costs in 2005 for THI’ 5 new
distribution center and $25.0 miltion in net proceeds from the sale of Baja Fresh in 2006.)The decrease in net cash
used in 2005 versus 2004 primarily-reflects $44.3 million in cash used by THI in 2004 toacquire Bess Eaton and
$10.9 million in cash used by Baja Fresh for the acquisition of franchises in 2004. These cash'flows were partially
offset by a $24.7 million cash inflow received by THI in 2004 from the maturity of a short-term investment, and-
higher capital expenditures in 2005 versus 2004 of $15.4 million. A

Net cash ‘used in ﬁnancmg activities from contmumg operations totaled $854.9 mtlhon in 2006 compared to $77 4
million in 2005 and $181.3 million in 2004. The $777.5 million increase in net cash used from continuing
operations in 2006,compared to 2005 primarily reflects higher share repurchases of $925 ‘4 millionand $96.1
million in lower 2006 proceeds from employee exercises of stock options, partially, offset by $94. 0 million in - ,
proceeds from debt established through the sale of a portion of the Company’s royalty stream and 2005 et debt
repayments of $124.3 million. The $103.9 million decrease in net cash used in financing activities from continuing
operations in 2005 compared to 2004 primarily reflects higher 2005 proceeds from employee exercises of stock
options of $184.5 million and lower share repurchases of $38.6 million, partiaily offset by higher debt repayments
of $107.8 million. Dividends paid in 2005 increased $11.4, million due to a 12.5% mcrease in the dividend rate in
the first quarter of 2005 and a 25% increase in the dividend rate in:the third quarter of 2005 o -

Fmancmg act1v1t1es from dlscontmued operatlons provrded $796 9 million in 2006 compared toa cash use of
$0.1 m1ll1on in 2005 and $2.4 million in 2004. The increase 'in 2006 is pnmanly related to net proceeds of $716. 8
million, related to the THI IPO and THI proceeds from the issuance of debt. Offsetting|these i increases were
hlgher net prmcrpal payments on debt obligations of $183.1 million, pnmanly reflecting THI's repayment of its
$200 million Canadlan bridge facﬂlty in May 2006 and the ehmmatlon of $170 6 million of THI cash. '

Liquidity and Capltal Resources P

1]

Cash flow from continuing operations,.cash and investments on hand, possible asset sales, and cash available -
through existing revolving credit agreements and through the possible issuance of securities, should provide for
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the Company’s projected short-term and long-term cash requirements, including cash for capital expenditures,
potential share repurchases, dividends, repayment of debt, future acquisitions of restaurants from franchisees and -
other corporate purposes. In the past three years, cash provided by operating activities, borrowings, proceeds
from stock options and other sources was used to primarily fund continued growth in restaurants, other capital
expenditures, investments, dividend payments and repurchases of shares of common stock. In November 2006,
the Company purchased 22.4 million of its common shares at a purchase price. of $35.75 per share, for a total cost
of $804. 4 million by conductmg a modified “Dutch Auction” tender offer. In the'first quarter of 2006, the
Company acquired 3 75 million shares in an accelerated share repurchase (“ASR”) for an initial value of $220.1
million or $58.64 per share. Cashused to acqurre the shares in Novembeér 2006 was recerve(l from THI after its
IPO in late March and included borrowmgs by THI paid to the Company -

b o

The Company expects 2007 capital expenditures to be in the range of approxrmately $125 million to $155
million for néw restaurant development, remodeling, maintehance and technology initiatives. In 2007, the
Company plans to open new company operated and franchised restaurants which, inthe aggregate, would total
between 80 and 110 compared to 122 in 2006. Development in 2007 is expected to be concemrated in North -
Amenca

As in prior years, the Company may also invest in new business opportunities. In October 2004, the' Company
invested an additional $4 million in Pasta Pomodoro, bringing its investment t that time to approximately 29%
on a fully diluted basis. The Company will evaluate other opportunities as they arise. '

The Company used cash totaling $1.0 billion, $99.5 million and $138.1 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, to repurchase common shares. Generally, the Company’s objective in its share repurchase program
is to enhance shareholder value and offset the dilution impact of the Company’s equity compensation program.

. Since 1998 through the end of 2006, the Company has repurchased 68.6 million common and other shares -
exchangeable into common shares for approximately $2 billion. In the last five years, the Company has rewurned
more than $2 bllhon to shareholders in the form of share repurchasas and cash dlvrdends
In the founh quarter of 2006 the Company entered into an agreement to sell approxrmately 40% of the
Company’s U.S. royaity stream for a 14-month period 10 4 third party in rewarn for a cash payinent in 2006 of
$94.0 miliion. Royalties subject to the agreement relate to royalties payable to a subsidiary of the Company for
both company operated and franchised stores. The $94.0 million received in 2006 is classified as debt as of
December 31, 2006. This recorded debt amount is expected to be repaid through May 2008 as roya]tles are
received. The agreement related to this transaction will conclude in May 2008

{ A . PR
In February 2007 the Company announced that based on its strong cash position and strategic direction, it

intended to increase its common stock dividend by 47%, from $0.34 to $0.50 ‘mnually, begmmng w1th the May
2007 payment 'I‘he Company s target for its d1v1dend yieldis 1. 4% to 1.6%.

In 2004, the Cornpany s-shareholders approved a'new equity-based compensation program for diréctors and ,
employees featuring restricted stock shares, restricted stock units and performance shares rather than stock |
options which had previously been used exclusively, This program will permit up to 3,6 million common shares-

to be issued. The Company has only issued restricted stock shares, restricted stock units and performance shares

in 2006 and 2005 under this new plan. The 2004 program combined with significant option exercises over the

last two years have reduced * overhang (all approved but unexercrsed options and shares divided by shares

outstanding plus all approved but unexercised optlrons and shares). Other types of incentives could also be

awarded under the program. The Company also mtends to seek approval of a new equity-based compensatlon

program at its 2007 shareholders meetmg The Company expects that approximately 50% of the value of equity

awards made in 2007 and subsequent years will be comprised of stock options, with the remaining 50% of the

value comprised of performance awards. :

In 2003, the Company filed a shelf registration statement on Form.8-3 with the SEC to issue up to $500 million
of securities. On March 1, 2006, the Company entered into a new $200 million revolving credit facility, which -
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expires on March 1, 2008 and which replaced the Company’s previous $200 million revolving credit facility
entered into in-2003: The new revolving credit facility contains various covenants whi}:h, among other things,
require the maintenance of certain ratios, including indebtedness to total capitalization: and a fixed charge
coverage ratio, and limits on the amount of assets that can be sold and liens that can be placed on the Company’s
assets. The Company is charged interest on advances that varies based on the type of a:dvance utilized by the
Company, which is either alternate base rate (greater of prime or Federal funds plus 0.5%) or a rate based on
LIBOR plus a margin that varies based on the Company’s debt rating at the time of the advance. The Company is
also charged a facility fee based on the total credit facility. This fee varies from 0.07% to 0.20% based on the
Company’s debt rating. The Company’s Senior Notes and debentures also have limits !on liens that can be placed
on the Company’s assets and limits on sale leaseback transactions. As of December 31, 2006, the Company was
in compliance with its covenants under the revolving credit facility and the limits of itl§ Senior Notes and
debentures. As of December 31, 2006, no amounts under the credit facility were c_hjawh and all of the $500

million of securities availab]e under the above-mentioned Form $-3 filing remairied unused. |

Standard & Poor’s and Moody's rate the Companiy’s senior unsecured debt as BB+ and Ba2, respectively. The
ratings were reduced in 2006 and are considered below investment grade. As a result, the Company could incur
an increase in borrowing costs if it were to enter into new borrowing arrangements anfl can no longer access the
capital markets through its commercial paper program. If the rating should continue to decline, it is possible that
the Company would not be able to borrow on acceptable terms. Factors that could be éigniﬁcant to the '
determination of the Company’s credit ratings include, among other things, sales and cost trends, the Company’s
cash position, cash flow, capital expenditures and stability of earnings. ‘

The Company does not have significant term-debt maturities until 2011. The Company believes it will be able to
pay or refinance its debt obligations as they become due based on its strong financial condition and sources of
cash described above. The Company’s significant contractual obligations and cqri_lmitlments as ‘S:f December 31,
2006 are shown in the following table. Purchase obligations primarily include commitments for advertising
expenditures and purchases for certain food-related ingredients. N ' o

Payments Due|by Period -

Contractual Obligations(® Less Than ! After
(In thousands) 1 Year 1-3 Years  3-5 Years 5 Years Total
Long-term debt, including interest and current

maturities '$127,367 - $ 83,189 $265,03§ . $ 454422 % 930,016
Capital leases 2,131 . 4403 3,86§ 21,374 31,776
Operating leases . 58,063 110,878 . 90,37|3 705,925 965,239
Purchase obligations .o 149,610 . 4314 - 2,138 ) 0 156,062
Total Contractual Obligations . $337.171 . $202,784 $361.4 17 $1,181,721 $2,083,093

(1) As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s pension plans were funded such that pension assets are app'roximatcly equal to the projected
 benefit obligation. The Company made contributions totaling approximately $2 million into its pension plans in 2006. Estimates of

reasonably likely future pension contributions are heavily dependent on expectations about future events outside of the pension plans,
such as future pension asset perfonna.née, future interest rates, future tax law changes and future chanlges in regulatory funding
requirements. The Company estimates contributions to its pension plans in 2007 will not exceed $10 1:;ni1iion, unless the Company would
settle a significant portion of its pension liabilities related to the planned termination of its pension plans. It is possible future legislative
changes could require significant future contributions. Certain execuiive employees are also eligible to participate in the Company’s
supplemental executive retirement plan. Under this plan, each participating employeg’s account reflects amounts ¢redited by the
Company based on the employee’s eamings plus or minus investment gains and losses of specified investments in which amounts
credited by the Company are deemed to be invested. The supplemental executive retirement plan is not funded, but account balances of
approximately $14 million, which are included in other long-term liabilities on the Consolidated Ba]a:nct Sheet as of December 31, 2006,
are payable to participating employees when they retire or otherwise are no longer employed by the Company. Estimates of reasonably
likely future payments by the Company under the supplemental executive retirement plan are heavily dependent on future events outside
of this plan, such as the timing of participating employees leaving the Company, the performance of the investments and the time period
aver which employees elect to receive distributions from the supplemental executive retirement plan. Due to the significant uncertainties
regarding future pension fund contributions and payrhent§ under the Company’s supplemental executive retirement plan, no pension fund
contributions or supplemental executive retirement plan payments are included in the table. In addition, the Company also has liabilities
for income taxes, however the timing or amounts for periods beyond 2006 cannot be determined.
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Other Commercial Commitments — , L Asof -

(In thousands) i . o, December 31, 2006
Franchisee lease and loan guarantees . . . i $171,310
Contingent rent on leases . d . L o 21,277
Letters of credit | | ] ' i ] 6,736

Total Other Commercla] Commttments ) b . ‘L $199,323
. t - ¥ ) i 1

The Company bas guaranteed certain leases and debt payments, primarily related to franchisees, amounting to
$171.3 million for the continuing Wendy’s business. In the event of default by a franchise owner, the Company
generally retains the right to acquiré possession of the relatéd restaurants. The Company is contingently'liable for
certain leases for the continuing Wendy’s business amounting to an additional $21.3 million. These leases have
been assigned to iinrelated third parties, who have ‘agreed to indemnify the Company against future liabilitiés
arising under the leases. These léasés expiré'on various dates through 2022. The: Company is also the guarantor
on $6.7 million in letters of credit with various parties for the continuing Wendy’s business, however,
management does not expect any 'material loss to result from these instruments because it does not believe
petformance will be required. The length of the lease, loan dnd other arrangements guaranteed by the Company
or for which the rCompan'y’ is co'ntiri‘gently liable varies. but geherally does not exceed 20 years. -

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation (“FIN”) 45, “Guarantor’s' Accounting
and Disclosure Requlrements for Guarantees, Includlng Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedriess of Others” and
based on available information, the Company has accrued for certain gouarantees and indemnities as of *
December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006, in amounts which, in total, are not material.

At December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006, the Company s reserves established for doubtful royalty receivables
were $3.1 million and $3.1 mlllmn respecnvely Reserves related to possible losses on notes receivable, real
estate, guarantees, claims’ and contingencies involving franchisees totaled $7.4 million and $7.4 million at *
December 31, 2006 and Janvary 1, 2006, respecnvely These reserves are included in accounts receivable, notes
receivable and other accrued expenses.

MANAGEMENT’S OUTLOOK @ - = |

New Comprehensive Plan to Focus on the Wendy’s Brand

. | .
In October 2006, the Company announced a new plan to drive restaurant-level economic performance focused on
product innovation, targeted marketing and operatiOns excellcncc. Components include:

* .« . Revitalize Wendy’s Core Brand—The Company will re-focus on its brand essence, “Quallty Made
Fresh,” centered on Wendy's core strength, its hamburger business.

« Streamline and improve operanons—lncludcs a new restaurant services group to improve system-wide
restaurant operatlons standards, while emphasmng improved store profits and operating margins.

e Reclaim Innovanon Leadershtp—Development of new products that reinforce Wendy's “Quality Made
Fresh” brand essence and drive new. consumers to its restaurants. The Company believes its new product
pipeline is now robust. o . :

* Investing approximately $60 million per yéar over the next five years mto thc upgrade and renovation of
its company- -operated restaurants. !

s Strengthen Franchisee Cammrtment——Prowdmg up to $25 million per year of incentives to franchlsees
for.reinvestments in their restaurants over the next-five years, and require franchisees to meet store
remodel standards.

*  Selling up to 50 in 2007 and targeting to sell up to 300 to 400 0f its company operated restaurants to
franchisees beginning in 2008, while improving store level profitablhty first.

¢ Capture New Opportunities—Seeking to drive growth beyond its existing business. The Company is
expanding breakfast and is following a disciplined process for product evelopment and operations, as
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well-as analyzing consumer feedback. With the QSR breakfast market estimated at $30 billion, breakfast
is a high priority for the Company that could generate significant sales and p1;|oﬁts. Also, the Company

' believes it has considerable opportunity to expand in the U.S. over the long-term and is making
infrastructure investments to grow its International business. The Company “:rill continue to moderate its
short-term North American development until restaurant revenues and operating cash flows improve.

s Embrace a Performance-Driven Culture—A redesign of its incentive compensation plan to drive future
performance to better reward individual employee performance and to better|align compensation with
business performance in the short and longer terrn., ‘

» , Maintaining its;strong corporate culture based on the values estabhshed by Wendy's founder Dave

"
Thomas.

"ot
r ".

Authorization of up to 35.4 million shares for repn'rchase o

In October 2006 ‘the Company s Board of Directors approved a Share repurchase program of up to 35.4 million
shares to be 1mplemented over the next 18 to 24 months. The Company utilized the majonty of this authorization
by conducting a modified “Dutch Auction™ tender offer under which in the fourth quaner of 2006 it purchased
224 million common shares at a purchase of $35.75. The Company purchased the shares tendetred in the offer
using existing cash on its balance sheet. As a result, as of December 31, 2006 13.0 mﬂllon shares remamed under
the Board of Dlrectors authonzauon oot ‘ S :

On February 20, 2007 the Company announced it had emered into an ASR transaction with a'broker-dealer to
purchase up to $300 million of its common shares. The common shares purchased will be placed into treasury to
be used for general corporate purposes. The number of shares that the Company may repurchase pursuant to the
ASR will not be known until conclusion of the transaction, which is expected to occur during the.Company’s first
quarter; however, the Company expects to repurchase up to approximately 9 million shares. The price per share
to be paid by the Company will be determined by reference to the weighted average price per share actually paid
by the broker-dealer to purchase shares during a hedge period expected to be approximately one month, subject
to a cap and a floor. The ASR agreement includes the option to settle the contract in cash or shares of the
Company’s common stock and, accordingly, the contract will be classified in equity.

LI Lo LY R TR TR Y N S N .

2007 Guidance ' . i

In February 2007, the Company reaffirmed its 2007 guidance of $330 t0 $340 million in continuing net income
earnings before interest, taxes depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) based on operatmg income of $215
million to $225 million and depreciation of $115 million. EBITDA is used by management as'a performance
measure for benchmarking against its peers and competitors. The Company believes EBITDA is useful to investors
because it is frequently used by securities analysts, investors and other interested pames 1o evaluate companies in
the restaurant industry. Also included as part of the Company’s February 2007 gu1dance for the 2007 year was:

*  Annual revenue growth of approximately 5% to 6%.

+  Same-store sales growth in a range of 3% to 4%, excluding the impact of breakfast.

» A 390 to 410 basis-point improvement in store operations margins in a rang'e of 12.8% 1o 13.0% in 2007

from a base of 8.9% in 2006.

+  General and admmlstratlve expenses in the range of 8 75% to 9 25% due to realization of prevnously
. announced cost reduction efforts. . ‘
* _ Asteady expansron ofa breakfast offering, _wrth a goal of reachmg breakeven in the day-part during 2007.
* An cffective tax rate of approxrmately 39.0%. ) :
. Opportumsuc share repurchases roughly offsetting dilution.
» Eamnings per share from continuing operations of $1.17 to $1.23

i

Ongoing Initiatives

The Company.continues to implement its strategic initiatives. These initiatives include leveraging the Company’s
core assets, growing average same-store sales, improving store-level productivity to enhance margins, improving
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underperforming operations, developing profitable new restaurants. and implementing new technology initiatives.
Management intends to allocate resources to improve returns on assets and invested capital, and monitor its
progress by tracking various metrics, including return on average assets, return on average equity and return on

invested capital, as well as comparing to historical performance, the Company’s peers and other leading
companies,

]
f '

The Company also continues to focus on its dividend policy, continued share repurchases, an equity-based
compensation program for employees and directors and stock ownership guidelines for Comipany officers 1o hold
Company stock, in-the-money stock options and other equity awards equal to their annual base salary, and the
named executive officers, as established in the proxy statement, to hold Company stock, in-the-money stock
options and other equity awards equal to three times their annual base salary.

r
(S

The Company intends to remain focused on established long-term operational strategies of exceeding customer
expectations, fostering a performance-driven culture, delivering a balanced message of brand equity plus value in
marketing and growing a healthy restaurant system. The Company believes its success depends on providing
everyday value, quality and variety, not price discounting. As a result, the Company provides a variety of menu -
choices and will continue to evaluate and introduce new products to meet the trends and desires of its customers.
Management believes in reinvesting in its restaurants to maintain a fresh image, providing convenience for its
customers and increasing the overall efficiency of restaurant operations. The goal of these strategies is to increase
average sales over time, primarily through greater customer traffic in the restaurants. The Company intends to
effectively manage corporate and field-level costs to control overall general and administrative expense.

New restaurant development will continue to be an important opportunity to the Company. Wendy’s is under
penetrated in key markets. The Company intends to grow responsibly, focusing on the markets with the best
potential for sales and return on investment. -A total of 122 new restaurants were opened in 2006. Current plans -
call for a total of 80 to 110 new company and franchise restaurant units to open in 2007. The primary focus will
be on core operations of Wendy’s in-North America, with the majority of units being standard sites.

[ ‘

Another element of the Company’s strategic plan is the evaluation of potential acquisitions of franchised
restaurants, the sale of company stores to franchisees and vertical integration opportunities that could add to the

Company’s long-term earnings growth, ) ,

. o ' [ T . '
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements . o
The Company has no “‘off-balance sheet” arrangements as of December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006 as that
term is described by the SEC, oL . L

Revenue Recognition

. r
. ! 4

Wendy’s has a significant number of company operated restaurants at which revenue is recognized as customers
pay for products ‘at the time of sale. Franchisé revenues consist of royalties, rents, gains from the sales of
properties to franchisees, and various franchise fees. Royalty revenues are normally collected within two months
after a period ends. The timing of revenue recognition for both retail sales and franchise revenues does not
involve significant contingencies and judgments other than providing adequate reserves agamst collectlons of
franchise-related revenues.

The Application of Critical Accounting Policies . ‘ .

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make.assumptions and estimates that can have a material impact on
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the results of operations of the Company. The earnings reporting process is covered by the Company’s system of .
internal controls, and generally does not require significant management estimates and judgments. However,
estimates and judgments are inherent in the-calculations of royalty and other franchise-related revenuc -
collections, legal obligations, pension and other postretirement benefits, income taxes, insurance liabilities,
various other commitments and contingencies, valuations used when assessing potenual impairment of goodwil;
other intangibles and other long lived asscts and the estimation of the useful lives of ﬁxed assets and other long-
lived assets. While management applies its judgment based on assumptions believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, actual results could vary from these assumptions. It is possible that matenally different amounts
would be reported using different assumpnons ' > . B R

The Company collects royalnes and in some cases rent, from franchisees. The Company provides for estimated
losses for revenues that are not likely to be collected. Although the Company generally enjoys a good relationship ¢
with franchisees, and collection rates are currently very high, if average sales or the financial health of franchisees

were to deteriorate, the Company might have to increase reserves against collection of franchiise revenues. .-

The Company is self-insured for most domestic workers’ compensanon, health care clalms general hablhty and
automotive liability losses. The Company records it§ insurance liabilities based on hlstoncal and 1ndustry trends
which are continually monitored, and accruals are ad]usted when warranted by changlng cucumstances Outside ' -
actuaries are used to assist in estimating casualty insurance obligations. Since there are many esnmates and '
assumptions involved in recording insurance liabilities, differences between actual futiure events and prior
estimates and assumptions could result in adjustments to these liabilities. Workers’ compensation insvrance can’
particularly involve significant time before the ultimate resolution of claims. Wendy $ had ‘accrued $47.3 million
and $43.4 million at year-end 2006 and 2003, respectively, for'domestic workers’ con'tpensatlon habllmes
domestic general liability, domestic automotive liability and other property liabilities. | In Canada workers’
compensation benefits are part of & government-sponsored plan and although the Company and 1ts employees .
make contributions to that plan, management is not mvolved in determmmg these’ amtl)unts '

P

~

Pension and other retirement benefits, including all relevant assumptions required by generally accepted
accounting principles, are evaluated each year with the oversight of the Company’s retirement committee. Due to
the technical nature of retirement accounting, outside-actuaries are used to provide as§istance in calculating the
estimated future obligations Market interest rates are reviewed to establish pension plan discount rates and 7
expected returns on plan assets are based on the mix of investments and expected matket returns. Since there are
many estimates and assumptions involved in retirement benefits, differences betweenl actual future events and
prior estimates and assumptions could result in adjustments to pension expenses and obhganons If the Company
were o change its discount rate by 0.25%, this would change annual pension costs by $0.2 million. If the
Company were to change its long-term return on assets rate by 0. 25%, this would change annual pensmn costs by
$0.3 million. .

K
. . P . T

In the normal course of business, the Company must make continuing estimates of potential future legal.
obligations and liabilities, which requires the use of management’s judgment on the o]utcome of various issues.
Management may also use outside legal advice to assist in the estimating process. However, the ultimate
outcome of various legal issues could be d1fferent than management estnmates, and adjustments to income could
be required. : . s : . ' o

. G . - . A Co T
The Company records income tax liabilities utilizing known obligations and estimates of potential obligations.” A
deferred tax asset or liability is recognized whenever there are future tax effects from|existing temporary v
differences and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. When considered necessary, the Company records a
valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets to.the balance that is more likely than not to be realized. - -
Management must make estimates and judgments on future taxable income, consv:lermg feasible tax planning
strategies and taking into account existing facts and circumstances, to determine the proper valuation allowance."
When the Company determines that deferred tax assets could be realized in greater or lesser amounts than w
recorded, the asset balance and income statement reflects the change in the period such determination is made.
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Due to changes in facts and circumstances and the estimates and judgments that: are involved in determining the
proper valuation allowance, differences between actual future events and prior estimates and judgments could
result in adjustments to this valuation allowance. The Company uses an estimatz of its annual effective tax rate at
each interim period based on the facts and circumsiances available at that time while the actual effective tax rate
is calculated at year-end. Depreciation and amortization are recognized using the straight-line method in amounts
adequate to amortize-costs over the following estimated useful lives: buildings and leasehold improvements and
property under capital leases, the lesser of the useful life of the asset {up to 40 years) or the lease term, as that
term is defined in SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases”, as amended; restaurant equipment, up to 15 years; and
other equipment, up to 10 years. The Company estimates useful lives on buildings and equipment based on
historical data and industry trends. The Company capitalizes certain internally developed software costs which
are amortized over a period of up to 10 years. The Company monitors its capitalization and amortization policies
to ensure they remain appropriate. Intangibles separate from goodwill are amortized on a straight-line basis over
periods of up to 30 years. Lives may be related to lega] or contractual lives, or must be estimated by management
based on specific circumstances.

Long-hved assets are grouped into operating markets and tested for impairment whenever an event occurs that
mdlcalqs that an 1mpa1rment may exist. The Company tests for impairment using the cash flows of the operating
markets. A sngmﬁcant deterioration in the cash flows of an operating market or other circumstances may trigger
1mpa1rment testing. If an impairment is indicated, the fair value of the fixed assets is estimated using the
discounted cash flows or third party appraisals ¢ of the operating market. The interest rate used in preparing
discounted cash flows is management’s estimate of the weighted average cost of capital. The Company tests
goodwnll for impairment annually (or in interim periods if events or changes in circumstances indicate that its
carrying amount may not be recoverable) by comparing the fair value of each reporting unit, as measured by
discounted cash flows and market multiples based on earnings, to the carrying value to determine if there is an
indication that a potential impairment may exist. One of the most significant assumptions is the projection of
future sales. The Company reviews its assumptlons each time goodwill is tested for impairment and makes
appropriate adjustments, if any, based on facts and' circumstances available at that time. In the fourth quarter of
2006, the Company tested goodwill for impairment and determined that no impairment was required.

Prior t6 January 2, 2006, the Company used the intrinsic value method to account for stock-based employee
compensation as defined in Accounting Principles Board (*APB") Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees”. Accordingly, bécause stock options granted prior to January 2, 2006 had no intrinsic value at date
of grant, compensation expense related to stock options was recognized using the Black-Scholes method only
when stock option awards were modified after the grant date. During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company
accelerated the vesting of all outstanding options, éxcluding those held by outside directors of the Company.
Prior to January 2, 2006, compensation expense recognized related to restricted shares was measured based on
the market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The Company generally satisfies share-
based exercises and vesting through the issuance of authorized but previously unissued shares of Company stock.
Restricted shares are generally net-settled with new Company shares w1thheld and not issued, to meet the
employee s minimum statutory w1thholdmg lax requm:mcnts '

'

On January 2, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No 123R “Share-Based Payment“ which requires share-based
compensation cost to be recognized based on the grant date estimated fdir value of each award, net of estimated
cancellations, over the employee’s requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period of the equity
grant. The Company elected to adopt SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective method, which requires
compensation expense to be recorded for all unvested share-based awards beginning in the first quarter of
adoption. Accordingly, the prior periods presented in this Form.10-K have not been restated to reflect the fair
value method of expensing stock options. Also, because the value used to measure compensation expense for
restricted shares is the same for APB Opinion No. 25 and SFAS No. 123R and because substantially all of the
Company’s stock option grants were fully vested ptior to January 2, 2006, the acloption of SFAS No. 123R did
not have a material impact on the Company’s operating income, pretax income or net income. The adoption did
require the Company to classify $29:2 million in tax benefits as a financing activity versus an operating activity
in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. :

34




WENDY'’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES "
SYSTEMWIDE RESTAURANTS - -
Increase/ l H Increase/
(Decrease) . (Decrease}
As of . As of From Prior As of * From Prior
December 31, 2006  October 1, 2006 Quarter Januery 2, 2006 Yea.r
Wendy's ‘ : e ‘h‘.‘ 7‘
Us. P [ Ll
Company 1,317 1,320 - '€)) 1,345 (28) ¥
Franchise 4,638 '4,692 -~ (54) 4673 ' (35)
5,955 6,012 " (5T) 6018 ‘(63)
Canada : VT .
Company 146 148 (2) L1820 (6)‘
Franchise 23 231 . 0 225 . .6 .
377 379 (2} 37_7 0
Other International e o
Company , 2 5 (3) ) 5 mo (3) .
Franchise 339 45 . . (6 346 (7N
M1 .350 (9) 351 {10).
Total Wendy’s o L e
Company - 1,465 1,473 @1 1502 G
Franchise -5,208 5,268 (60) 1 '5,244 (36)
) 6,673 6,741 68| - 6746 . (73)
Recently Issued Accoimting Standerds P ‘ ;- .

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) 1ssued Statement of Fmanmal

[

Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 158 “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Beneﬁt Pension and Other N
Postretirement Plans—an amendment of SFAS Nos. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)”. This statement requires the .

recognition of the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan (other than a

s

multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability in its consolidated balance sheet and to recognize changes in that
funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income. This statement also requires
the measurement of the funded status of a plan as of the date of the year-end consolidated balance sheet and

disclosure in the notes to financial statements additional information about certain effects on net periodic benefit’
cost for the next fiscal year that arise from delayed recognition of the gains or losses, .pnor service costs or
credits, and transition asset or obligation. This statement is effectivé for fiscal years endmg after December 15,
2006. As a result of SFAS No. 158, the Company reduced both the prepaid pension asset and the long-term

pension liability by $34.0 million.

2

L

il

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 “Fair Value Measurements”. Thls Statement defines fair .
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounfmg prmc:ples and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 creates consistency and comparability in fair value
measurements among the many accounting pronouncements that require fair value measurements but does not -
require any new fair value measurements. This Statement is effective for fiscal years begmnmg after-
November 15, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 157 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company,

financial statements.:

regarding the process of quantifying financial statement misstatements. The staff beli
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In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Aceounting Bulleﬁn (“SAB”) No. 108 -expressing the staff’s views  +i",

aye
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materiality evaluations of correcting a financial statement misstatement’ management should quantify the
carryover and reversing effects of prior year misstatements on the current year financial statements. The
cumulative effect of the initial application, if any, should be reported in the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities as of the beginning-of the fiscal year and the. offsetting adjustment to the opening balance of retained

. _eammgs This SAB is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB No. 108
~did not have a matena] impact on the Company’s ﬁnanclal slatements. :

- . v

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, “Accountmg for Uncertamty in Income Taxes” w}uch clarifies the

. accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with

SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. An uncertain tax position will be. recognized if it is determined that
it is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination. The tax position is measured at the largest amount of
benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of being reahzed upon ultimate settlement. The cumulative effect of

- applying the provisions of this Interpretation is to be reported-as a separate adjustinent to the opening balance of

retained earnings in the year of adoption. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2006. Upon adoption, management estimates that there will not be a significant adjustment to retained eamings for a
change in reserves for uncertain tax positions and 1s in the process of finalizing its analysis. . -

-
t

Safe Harbor Statement ST b e T
Certain information contained in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial. Condition and
Results of Operations”, particularly information regarding future economic performance and finances, .plans and
objectwes of management, is forward looking. In some cases, information regarding certain important factors
that could cause actual results to differ materially from any ‘such forward-iookin g statement appears together with
such statement In addition, the following factors, in addition to other possible fictors not listed, could affect the
Company s actual results and cause such results to, ‘differ matenally from those expressed in forward -looking
statemeiits. These factors include: competition w1thm the quzck—ser\ace réstaurant industry, which remains

“extremely intense, both domestlcally and-internationally, with- many competitors pursuing heavy price - -

fon mvestment or ot_her factors set forth in Item 1A ahd Exhibit 99 hereto

- discounting; changes in economic conditions; changes in consumer perceptions of food safety harsh weather,

particularly in the first and fourth quarters; changes in consumer tastes; labor and benefit costs; legat claims; risk-
inherent to international development (including currency ﬂuctuatlons) the continued ability of the Company

- and its franchisees to obtain surtable locations and financing for new restaurant development, govemmental o

initiatives such’as minimum wage rates, taxes and possible franchise: 1egtslatlon changes in ap-phcable
accounting rules; the' ability of the Company to successfully cornplete transactions desrgned to 1mprove its return

4
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Item 7A. Quantrtatwe and Quahtatwe Dtsclosures About Market Rtsk " B

,‘ I P 3 3 i oot

Inﬂatmn R A e,

Financial statements determmed on a historical cost basls may not accurate]y reﬂect all the effects of changmg
prices on-an enterpnse Several factors tend to reduce the impact of mﬂauon for the Company Inventories
approximate Current market prices, there is some ablhty to adjust prices and !1abtht1es are repald w1th dollars of
reduced purchasing power.

Foretgn Exchange Rlsk ' o ! S |
. - Cnt RN VRR T PRI IR

~ The Company s exposure to foreign.exchange risk is primarily related to fluctuations in the Canadlan dollar !
‘relative to the U.S. dollar. The impact.of foreign ex_change rates on the Company’s income stalement is -~

predominately related-to Canadian Wendy's operations, since.exposure outside of North America is limited to
royalties paid by franchisees. The exposure to Canadtan dollar exchange rates on-the Company’s 2006 cash flows
primarily includes imports paid for by Canadian operattons in U.S. dollars and payments from the Company’s -
Canadian operations to the Company’s U.S. operattons In aggregate, cash flows between the Canadian and U.S.

-dollar currencies were in excess of $200 million in2005. After the spm -off of THI, the Company’s exposure to

Canadian do]larforelgn currency risk is hot material. N " :

’ 36




The Company seeks to manage its cash flows and balance sheet exposure to changes in the value of foreign .
currencies. The Company may use derivative products to reduce the risk of a significant negative impact on its
U.S. dollar cash flows or income. The Company does not hedge foreign currency exﬁosure in a manner that ; ,
would entirely eliminate the effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates on net income and cash flows. :
The Company has a-policy forbidding trading or speculating in foreign currency and ldoes not hedge foreign
currency translation. In accordance with SFAS No. 133, the Company.defers unrealized gains and losses arising’
from foreign currency derivatives until the impact of the related transactions occur. Fair values are determined
from quoted market prices. A ‘ .

At the 2006 level of annual operatmg income generated from Canada, if the Canadian currency rate changes U, S
$0.05, or 4% compared to the average 2006 cxchange rate, for an entire year, the annual 1mpact on the”
Company’s diluted EPS would be less than one-half cent per share. At current royalty levels outside of North
America, if all foreign currencies moved 10% during each royalty collection period i m the same direction, at the..
same time, the anmual impact on the Company’s diluted EPS would be approx1mately one-half cent per share.

The Company has not hedged its exposure to currency fluctuations related to royalty Icollet:ttons outs1de North
America because it does not beheve the risk is matenal B )

i

Interest Rate Risk’ S e SR -

. .. . . o C -
The Company’s debt is denominated in U.S. dollars, at fixed interest rates. The Company 18 exposed to interest
rate risk impacting its net borrowing costs. The Company may seek to manage its exposure to interest rate risk”
and to lower its net borrowing costs by managmg the mlx of fixed and ﬂoatmg rate mstruments based on captta]
markets and busmess conditions. 7 - v -;
To manage interest rate tisk, the Company entered into an interest rate swap in 2003 effecuvely converting some’
of its fixed interest rate debt to variable interest rates. By entering into the interest rate swap, the Company
agreéd, at specified intervals, to receive interest at a fixed rate of 6.35% and pay mtet"est based on the floating -
LIBOR-BBA interest rate, both of which are computed based on the agreed-upon nononal principal amount of -
$100.0 million: The Company does not enter into speculative swaps or other financial contracts. The interest rate
swap matured in-December 2005 and met specific conditions of SFAS No. 133 to beconsidered a highly '
effective fair value hedge of a-portion of the Company’s long-term debt. Accordmg]y, gains and losses ansmg
from the swap were completely offset against gains or losses of the underlymg debt obltgatton

1 [T

Commodltyklsk‘ T S R L

]

The Company purchases certain products in the normal course of business, which are affected by commodity
prices. Therefore, the Company is exposed to some price volatility related to weather and various other market
conditions outside the Company’s control. However, the Company employs various ]I)urchasing and pricing
contract techniques in an effort to minimize volatility. Generally these techniques'car:t include setting fixed prices
with suppliers generally for one year, setting in advance the price for products to be delivered in the future -
(sometimes referred to’as “buying forward”), and unit pricing based on‘an average of commodity prices overa -
period of time. The Company has not used financial instruments to hedge commodtty prices, partly because of
the contract pricing utilized. While price volatility can occur, which would impact profit margins, there are
generally alternative suppliers available and, if the pricing problem is prolonged; the Company has some ab:llty
to increase selling prices to offset a rise in commodtty price increases. s - ¢ i

*

In instances such as reported cases of “mad cow discase” and xllnesses from the E. coli bacteria, it is possible the
Company may be exposed to risks other than price risk. The recent reported-cases of“mad cow disease” and -
illnesses from the E. coli bacteria in North America, however, did not significantly impact the Company’s sales
or earnings. There can be no assurance, however, that a future case of “mad cow disease” or illness from the .
E. coli bacteria or another food-borne illness would not have a. 51gn1ﬁcant impact on 1the Company ssalesand .-

earnings. . : e

37




Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company has cash balances in various domestic bank accounts above the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) guarantee limits. The Company subscribes to a bank rating system and only utilizes high-
grade banks for.accounts that might exceed these limits. At year- end 2006, the.amount in domestic bank accounts
above FDIC limits was approxrmately $30 mllllOl] :

b

Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Daia

Management’s Statement of ResponSIbllity for Fmanclal Statements and Report on Internal Contrul Over
Financial Reportmg '
Fihanéial-St.eitements : : . S

v v Lt L. . . , S ] - ¢

Management is responsible for prep;ratéon of the consolidated financial statements and other related financial
information included in this annual report on Form 10-K. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, .
incorporating management’s reasonable estimates and judgments, where applicable. :
Management’s Report ¢n Internal Control Qver F:i'naneiai Reporting . L -
This report is provided by managenient purshant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the SEC.
rules promulgated thereunder. Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
-control over ﬂnapcial reporting.and for assessing the effectiveness of internal control over ﬁnancialrreporting.

. a et . , i
The Company ] mternal contro] over f“mancnal reporting is a process desngned to prowde reasonable assurance _
. regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external-purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Company’s
internal control over financial reporting includes thése policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the Company; (ii) pr0v1de reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to, permit preparation
of financial statements in “accordance with accounting principles generally acceplied in the United States of
America, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with -
authorizations of management and Directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitions, -use, or disposition of the Company s assets that “y
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

. - ‘ ' v W ‘. -t -7 o
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect - |
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaloation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions; or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures.may deteriorate. - \ e : N
RV , , \

Management has assessed the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of Sponsoring:
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on the assessment of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting; management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, the Company’s mternal
control over financial reporting was' effectivc C Lo ton

' a1 . L -
v . [T . Lo

The Company‘s independent registered public accounting ﬂmi; PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, has audited

management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, as stated in their report which follows.
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally'accepted accounting pnn01ples and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 'made
only in'accordance with authoriZations of management and directors of the company; and (jii) provide réasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the fmancial statements.

.
1 3

Because of its inherent hmltatlons internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, ptOJectlons of any'eValuation of effeetweness to future penods are subject to the risk that
controls’ may become inadequate because of changes in condltlons or that the degree of compliance with the
pohc1es or procedures may deteriorate. ;

i '

" { . - H VT 4 i
/8/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP * . “
PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP o . -‘x . )
Columbus Ohio” .~~~ ' o o )
March',2007 © U S ' '
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Wendy’s International, Inc. and Subsidiaries—Consolidated Statements of Income . -

' ' Years ended December 31, 2006, January 1, 2006 and January 2, 2005

(In thousands, except per share data) 2006 2005 - 2004
Revenues ’ _
Sales $2,154/607 $2,138,365 $2,194,031
Franchise revenues 2841670~ 317,053 308,127
Total revenues .- 2,439;277 2,455,418 2,502,158 ‘
Costs and ex-f.tenses o . T ‘ R
Cost of sales 1,352,312 1,362,631 = 1,369,509
- Company restaurant operating costs 602,298 581,869 .- 577,294
.Operating costs 46,674 20,419 - - 21,058
Depreciation of property and equipment 122,636 127,998 : . 109,712
General and administrative expenses 237,575 220,891 ¢ . 210,156
Other expense (income), net 37,468 (34,263) . . (1,329)
Total costs and expenses 2398963 2,279,545 7,286,400
Operating income » 46,314; . 175873+ 215,758
Interest expense X ~ (33,711) . . (43,076) . +. (42,006)
Interest income 37,876 -~ 3,987"+ -.-2438
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 4;',4’79 . _13_6,784 o ." ' 176,190
Income taxes 5433 51,689 . 70,046
Income from continuing operations 3"7,046 ) 85,095 - 106,144
Income (lossi from discontinued operations 5"1,266 138,972 (54,109)
Net income $ 94312 § 224067 § 52035
Basic earnings per common share from continuing operations $ l033 s ° 074 § 0.93
Diluted earnings per common share from continuing operations - $.-1032 3 073 % 0.92
Basic earnings (loss) per common share from discontinued RS on .
operations $ 050 % 121" % (04D
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share from discontinued e
operations - : : $ 050 § ".1.19 % (0.47)
Basic earnings per common share $ 083 $ . . 195.$. 046
Diluted earnings per common share $ 082 § 192 .3 045
Dividends declared and paid per common share $ Joeo's’ 058 . 048
Basic shares 114,244 114,945 . - 113,832
Diluted shares 115325, 116,819 . 115,685

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Wendy’s International, Inc. and Subsidiaries—Consolidated Balance Sheets

P

December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006

(Dollars in thousands)

2006 2005
Assets
Current assets
. Cash and cash equivalents .. $ 457,614 % 230,560
Accounts receivable, net 84,841 62,190
- Deferred income taxes 29,651 23,847
Inventories and other 30,252 29,798
Advertising fund restricted assets 36,207 35,651
s Assets held for disposition 15,455 65,693
. Current assets of discontinued operations 2,712 - 308,827
Total current assets ' 656,732 756,566
Property and equipment, net 1,226,328 1,348,474
- .Goodwill 85,353 81,875
' Deferred income taxes 4,316 2,855
Intangible assets, net 3,855 4,843
Other assets . 82,738 77,097
++ Non current assets of discontinued operations 1,025 1,168,608
‘Total assets _ _ $ 2,060,347 33,440,318
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity '
. Current liabilities
i Accounts payable $ 93465 § 92,340
Accrued expenses
Salaries and wages 47,329 34,871
Taxes T 46,138 60,984
Insurance ' 57,353 58,147
Other v 32,199 34,079
Advertising fund restricted liabilities 28,568 35,651
- Currem portion of long-term obligations ' 87,39 2497
Current liabilities of discontinued operations 2,218 264,783
Total current liabilities 394,666 583,352
* Long-term obligations
“Term debt 537,139 521,800
Capital leases 18,963 18,336
Total long-term obligations 556,102 540,136
© Deferred income taxes 30,220 72,188
Other long-term liabilities 66,163 68,017
~ Non current liabilities of discontinued operations 1,519 118,036
* Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity
Preferred stock, Authorized: 250,000 shares
L Common stock, $.10 stated value per share, Authorized: 200,000,000 shares, --
Issued: 129,548,000 and 125,490,000 shares, respectively 12,955 12,549
Capital in excess of stated value 1,089,825 405,588
Retained earnings 1,241,489 1,858,743
Accumulated other comprehensive income (expense):
Cumulative translation adjustments 9,100 115.252
Pension liability (22,546) (1,096)
2,330,823 2,391,036
Treasury stock, at cost: 33,844,000 and 7,681,000 shares, respectively (1,319,146) (294,669}
Unearmed compensation — restricted stock 0 (37,778)
Total shareholders’ eguity 1,011,677 2,058,589
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 2,060,347 $3,440,318

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Wendy’s International, Inc. and Subsidiaries—Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows' ST
. Years ended December 31, 2006, January |, 2006 and January 2, 2005
(In thousands) . | 2006 2005 2004 .
Cash flows from operating activities o : o :
Income from continuing operations $ 37,046 $ 85095 $106,144
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities : . N
Depreciation and amortization . 123,700 129,000 110,839
Deferred income taxes =~ : o (31,781) (12,475)  (1.018)
{(Gain) loss from property dispositions, net 14,800  (48,060).  (5.886)
Equity based compensation expense : 11,413 16,194 3,802
Tax benefit on the exercise of stock options 29,189 - 37872 6,155
Excess stock-based compensation tax benefits (29,189 0. : [+
Net reserves for receivables and other contingencies 635 (81) 5,867
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acqmsmons and dlsposmons of ’
restaurants '
Accounts and notes receivable . {23,386) (1,984) (4,818)
Inventories and other ) . (2,000)  (4,607) (8,640
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (3,710)  (15,956) 16,309
Increase in other assets : . {1,038) (5,007} 2,506
Other, net ) 18,227 10,916 9,513
Net cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations ; 143,906 190,817 240,773
Net cash provided by operating activities from discontinued operations .00 127473 286,460 261,581
Net cash provided by operaling activities 271,379 - 477277 502,354
Cash flows from investing activities ) 3 -
Proceeds from property dispositions ) 62,885 196,036 . 57.134
Capital expenditures {109,533) (181,302) (166,499}
Acquisition of franchises . (13,263) (13,251} (5,601)
Principal payments on notes receivable 514 9,838 6,463
Investments in joim ventures and other investments (1,701) (2,420) (5,888)
Other investing aclivities ) . (1,540) (5,216) 963
Net cash provided by {used in) investing activities from continuing operations {62,638) 3,685 (113,428)
Net cash used in investing activities from discontinued operations (88,279) (190,898) (209,058)
Net cash used in investing activities | (150,917) (187.213) (322,486)
Cash flows from financing activities
. Proceeds from issuance of debt . o . 127,973 0 25,000 -
Proceeds from employee stock options exercised 119,846 215,938 31,436
Excess stock-based compensation tax benefits - 29,189 0 0
Repurchase of common stock +(1,024,963), (99,545 (138,132)
Principal payments on debt - (37,306) (127.675) * (44,864)
' Dividends paid on common shares - (69,667 (66,137) (54,710)
Net cash used in financing activities from continuing cperations ’ (854,928) (77.419) (181,270)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities from discontinued operations 796,946 94) ° (2,385)
Net cash used in financing activities (57,982) (77.513) (183,655)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash- continuing operations (246) 265 1,387
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash- discontinued operations : ’ - 4412 3,676 7,943
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - ) 66,646 216492 5,543
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 230,560 64,679 110,683
Add; Cash and cash equivatents of discontinued operations at beginning of period ) 162,681 112,070 60,523
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 66,646 216,492 5,543
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations at end of period ' (2,273 (162,681) ,(112,070)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period : ) - $ 457,614 $ 230,560 $ 64,679
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: ’ : - .
Interest paid from continuing operations $ 35369 § 43,167 § 41,666
Interest paid from discontinued operations 16,783 6,675 5,407
Income taxes paid 110,453 88,845 119,351
Dividend of THI net assets in conjunction with THI spin-off, including cash of $166.0 million 638,858 0 0
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Capital lease obligations incurred from continuing operations $ 1,432 § 3852 % 278
Capital lease obligations incurred from discontinued operations 3,854 3,871 4,137
See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
43




Wendy’s International, Inc. and Subsidiaries—Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

. - Years ended December 31, 200¢, January 1, 2006 and January 2, 2005
(In thousands) - - . i - - 2006 005 - 2004

Common stock at stated value S ‘
Balance at beginning of period ST % 12,549 $ 11809 § 11,676
Exercise of options and restricted stock vesting 406 740 133
Balance at end of period 12,955 12,549 11,209
Capital in excess of stated value , .
‘Balance at beginning of period - 405,588 111,286 54,310
'Exercise of options, including tax beneﬁts of $25,440, : .o
$37,816, and $6,159 145,049 257,589 37.651
Initial Public Offering of THI 716,680 ¢ 0
THI Minority Interest ‘ {140,288) 0 0
Unearned compensation — restricted stock (37,778) o - -0
Restricted stock awards and other equity-based compensatlon- . 8,282 36,713 - 19,325
- Tax adjustments related to the THI spin-off (7,708) 0 0
~ __ Balance atend of pcnod . 1,089,825 405,588 111,286
Retained earnings N : ' -
Balance at beginning of period : 1,858,743 1,700,813 1,703,488
Net income : 94,312 224,067 .52,035
Dividends , (72,708) ~  (66,137) (54,710)
Spin-off of THI (638,858) 0 0
- Balance at end of period : , 1,241,489 1,858,743 1,700,813
Accumulated other comprehensive income - : (1‘3,446) 1i4,156 102,037
Treasury stock, at cost T ) . )
Balance at beginning of period \ (294,609) (1_95,124) (56,992)
Purchase of common stock T (1,024,477) (99,545  (138,132)
Balancé at end of period ‘ (1,319,146) (294,669) (195,124)
Unearned. compensation - restricted stock 0 (37,778) (15,132)
Shareholders’ equlty : $ 1,011,677 $2,058,589 $1,715,689
Common shares ) S o ' S
Balance issued at beginning of period ) . 125,490 118,090 116,760
Exercise of options and restricted stock vesting . 4,058 7,400 1,330
Balance issued at end of period ' ' - 129,548 125,490 118,090
Treasury shares ) S :
Balance at beginning of period " '(7,681) (5,681) (2,063)
Purchase of common stock (26,163) (2,000) (3,618)
Balance at end of period : - T (33,849) (7,681) (5,681)
Common shares outstanding ] T - 95,704 117,809 112,409

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Wendy’s International, Inc. and Subsidiaries—Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years ended December 31, 2006, January 1, 2006 and Janvary 2, 2003

(In thousands) | 2006 2005 2004
Net income $94,312 $224,067 $ 52,035
Other comprehensive income (expense) :
Translation adjustments, net of tax 5,402 10,820 55,980
Cash flow hedges: ' '
1:Net change in fair value of derivatives, net of tax (7,705)  (3,289) (2,418)
. -Amounts realized-in earnings during the period, net of tax 7,758 4,771 2,246
Total cash flow hedges ~ ' 53 1,482 (172)
Pension liability (net of a tax expense of $13,033 and $100 for the years o -
ended December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006 and tax benefit of $65 . ‘
for the year ended January 2, 2005, respectlvcly) (21,450) . (183) 105
Total other comprehenswe income (expense) n (15,995) 12,119 55913
Comprehensive income - «- ' ' $ 78,317 $236 186 $107,948

(1) In aa‘dmon t0 the amounts, presemed for 2006 above, accumulared other comprehensive income on the

. Consolidated Balance Sheets reflects the distribution of $112.2 million of acFumulared translation
adjustments as part of the spin-off of THI (see Note 6 to the Consohdated Financial Statements).

; . .
Nt [ L Lt '
o

See accompanying Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements '
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Wendy’s International, Inc. and Subsidiaries ‘ ‘ R N U o0
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES * oo

Description of business A o b
The principal business of Wendy’s International, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the .“Campa'ny") is the operation,
development and franchising of quick-service restaurants serving high-quality food. At year-end 2006, the
Company and its franchise owners operated 6,673 restaurants under the name “Wendy’s” in 50 states and i in 20
other countries and territories. As of December 31, 2006, total systemwide restaurants included 1,465 company

operated restaurants and 5,208 franchise restaurants. , '

On March 29, 2006, the Company completed its initial public bfferir'lg '(*‘i}“'O”) of Tim Hortons [n'g. (“THT"). A
total of 33.4 million shares of THI were offered at an initial per share' price of $23.1562 ($27.00 Canadian). The
shares sold in the [PO represented 17.25% of total THI shares issued‘and outstanding and the Company retained -
the remaining 82.75%. On September 29, 2006, the Company completed the spin-off of its remaining 82.75%.. .
ownership in THI, the parent company of the business prewously reported as the Hortons segment. Accordingly,
the results of operations of THI are reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented and ‘the assets
and liabilities are reflected as discontinued operations at January 1, 2006. During the third quarter of 2006, the
Company’s Board of Directors approved the sale of Baja Fresh and on November 2§, 2006, the Company
completed the sale of Baja Fresh and, accordingly, the results of operations of Baja Fresh are reflected as
discontinued operations for all periods presented and the assets and liabilities of Baji Fresh are reflected as
discontinued operations at January 1, 2006. On October 9, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the
future sale of Cafe Express and, accordingly, the results of operations and assets and liabilities of Cafe Express
are reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented (see Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements). Baja Fresh and Cafe Express were previously reported as the Developing Brands segment.

Fiscal year

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday nearest to December 31. The 2004 ficcal year consisted of 53
weeks and the 2006 and 2005 fiscal years consisted of 52 weeks.

Basis of presentation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the results and balances of the Company andf its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation (see
also Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for consolidation of the Compiny’s advertising funds),

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates over which the Company exercises significant influence but is not the
primary beneficiary and does not have control are accounted for using the equity method. The Company’s share
of the net income or loss of these unconsolidated affiliates is included in other expense (incomc), net. The
Company is a partner in a 50/50 restaurant real estate joint venture with THI. After the spin-off of THI on
September 29, 2006, this joint venture was no longer consolidated in the Company’s financial statements and
Wendy's 50% share of the joint venture is accounted for using the equity method. The income from this joint
venture is included in other expense (income), net on the Consolidated Statements of Income as it is directly
related to the operations of the Company.

During the year, the Company revised its presentation of the sale of kids’ meal toys t¢ reflect the sales on a gross
versus net basis under the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF) 99-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross
as a Principal versus Net as an Agent”. The revised presentation had no impact on operating income or net
income. Amounts relfated to the prior years were not material, but were revised for purposes of comparability.
The revisions increased sales and cost of sales $59.4 million, $61.6 million and-$69.1 million for fiscal years:
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Cash and cash equivalents o ' '

The Company considers short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less-as cash
equivalents, Cash overdrafis, which occur on bank accounts that are not funded until issued checks are presented
for payment, are recorded within accounts payable and totaled $14.0 million and $17.5 million at December 31,
2006 and January 1 2006 respectively.

Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requifes management to make assumptions and estimates. These affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Estimates and judgments are |
inherent in the calculations of royalty and other franchise-related revenue collections, [legal obligations, pension
and other postretirement ‘benefits, income taxes, insurance liabilities, variou$ other commitments and '
contingencies, valuations used when assessing potential impairment of goodwill, other intangibles and fixed
assets and the estimation of the useful lives of fixed assets and other long -lived assets; While management
applies its Judgmem based on assumptions belleved to be reasonable under the cnrcumstances actual results
could vary from these assumptions. It is p0351ble that materially different amounts would be reported using
different assumptions. '

In the normal course of business, the Company must make continuing estimates of potential future legal
obligations and liabilities, which requires the use of management’s judgment on the dutcome of various issues.
Management may also use outside legal advice to assist in the estimating process. Ho'wev'er the ultimate
outcome of various legal issues could be dlfferent than management estimates, and ad_lustments to income could
be required. © ° ' - - .

Inventories
Inventories, amounting to $17.2 million and $18.1 million at December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006,

respectively, are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market, and consist pnmanly of restaurant food
items, kids’ meal toys, new equipment and parts and paper supplies. :
Property'ﬁand eqruipineht '

" W 2

Depreciation and amortization are recognized using the straight-line method in amounts adequate to amortize costs
over the following estimated useful lives: buildings and leasehold improvements and property under capltal leases,
the lesser of the useful life of the asset (up to 40 years) or the lease term as that term is defined in Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 13, “Accounting for Leases”, as amended restaurant equipment, up
to 15 years; computer hardware, up to 5 years computer software, up to 10 years; VChlICICS up to 7 years; and other
equipment, up to 10 years. Interest associated with the corlstrucnon of new restaurants lS capllallzed Rent during
the construction of a restaurant is expensed as incurred. Major improvements are capltahzed while maintenance and
repairs arc expensed when incurred. Long-lived assets are grouped into operating marf:ets and tested for 1mpzurmcnt
whenever an event occurs that indicates an impairment may exist. The Company tests for impairment using the cash
flows of the operating markets ‘A significant deterioration in the cash flows of an operatmg market or other,
circumstances may trigger, xmpalrment testing (see also Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Gains and
losses on the disposition of fixed assets not sold to franchisees are classified in other e)'{pense (income), net.
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Property and equipment, at cost, at each year-end consisted of the following:

v

{In thousands) , 2006 2005
Land . e ) $ 259,303 $ 270,204
Buildings and leasehold 1mprovements e \ . . 994,874 1,036,371
Restaurant equipment 564,371 . 541,018
Capital leases 22,746 23,393
Computer hardware and software 114,842 111,613
Vehicles 23,190 34,965
Other _ . o . _ 20,074 . 18,900
Construction in progress. : - ' . 25,315 . 58,187
o . ) 2,024,715 - 2,094,651
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (798,387 (746,177)
. . R “l S : 7 ‘ $1,226,328 "'$1,348,474

In accordance with American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Statement of Position 98-1, *Accounting for
the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use”, the Company capitalizes certain
internally developed software costs which are amortized overa period of up to'10 years. At December 31, 2006 and
January 1, 2006, capitalized software development costs amounted to $66.8 million and $63.3 million, respecuvely,
which amounts are included in “Computer hardware and software™ above.

Leases ',

For operating leases, minimum lease payments, including minimum scheduled rent increases, are,recognized as .
rent expense on a straight line basis over the lease term as that term is defined in SFAS No. 13, as amended,
including any option periods considered in the lease term and any periods during; which the Company has use of
the property but is not charged rent by a landlord (“rent holiday™). Contingent rentals are generally based on
either a percentage of restaurant sales or as a percentage of restaurant sales in excess of stipulated amounts, and
thus are not included in minimum lease payments but are included in rent expense when incurred. Rent is
expensed during the construction of a restaurant. Leasehold improvement incentives paid to the Company by a
landlord are recorded as a liability,and amortized as a reduction of rent expense over the lease term. No
individual lease is material to the Company. ) ] "

When determining the lease term for purposes of recording depreciation and rent or for evaluating whether a
lease is capital or operating, the Company includes option periods for which failure to renew the lease imposes

an economic penalty on the Company of such an amount that a renewal appears, at the inception of the lease, to
be reasonably assured For example, such an economic penalty would exist if the Company were to choose not to _
exercise an option on leased land upon which the Company had constnicted a restaurant and, as a result, the
Company would lose the abllny to use the restaurant if the lease was not renewed.

Like other compames in the restaurant and retail mdusmeq in the fourth quarter of 2004 the Company reviewed
its accountmg pracuces with respec to leasing transactions. Followmg this reviesw, the Company corrected its
prior lease accounting practices. The cumulative reduction in expense to continuing operations as a result of the
change in lease accounting practices totaled $3.0 million pretax ($1.9 million after tax). The cumulative
adjustment was recorded in the 2004 Consolidated Financial Statements in the fourth quarter. The result of the
correction is primarily to conform the lease term used to amortize leasehold improvements on leased property
with the term used to rccogmze stralghl lme renl, 1ncludmg during “rent holiday penods whxle constructmg
leasehold impirovéments.

Goodwill and other intangibles

Goodwill is the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of acquired net assets. For purposes of
testing goodwill for impairment, the Company has determined that its reporting units are Wendy's U.S. and
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Wendy’s Canada. Each constitutes a business and has discrete financial information available 'which is regularly
reviewed by management. The Company tests goodwill-for impairment at least: annually by companng the fair
value of each reporting unit, using discounted cash flows or market multiples based on earnings, to the carrying -
value to determine if there is an indication that a potential impairment may exist (see also Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements).

¥ ‘ .
Definite-lived intangibles separate from goodwill are amortized on a straight-line basis over periods of up to -
15 years. Lives are generally related to legal or contractual lives, but in some cases must be estimated by
management based on spe(:lﬁc circumstances. The Company tests mtanglble assets for impairment whenever - .
events or circumstances indicate that an lmpmrment may exist. . '

- - — - s

Notes receivable, net

Notes receivable arise primarily from agreements by the Company, under certain circumstances, to a structured
repayment plan for past due franchisee obligations. The need for a reserve for. uncollet':uble amounts is reviewed
on a specific franchisee basis using information available to the Company, including past due balances and the
financial strength of the franchisee. Notes receivable, net were $8.9 million and $3.7 ml]llon at December 31,
2006 and January 1, 2006, respectively, of which $0.5 million and $1.8 million, respectlvely, was classified in’ ?
current assets.

Revenue”reéogﬁiti(’m ' : oot B o
Wendy's has a 51gn1ﬁcant number of company operated restaurants at which revenue lS recogmzed as customers
pay for products at' the ume ‘of sale. Franchise revenues consist of royalties, rents, gams from the sales of
propemes to franchisees, and various franchise fees. Royalty revenues are normally cbllecled within two months
after a period ends. The timing of revenue recogmnon for both retail sales and franchise revenues does not -
involve significant contingencies and judgments other than providing adequate reserv!es against collectlons of
franchise-related revenues.” Also, see discussion of “Franchise operations” below for further information
regarding franchise revenues. Cy

Franchise operations X . - N o S . v
o : . ! . L

The Company grants franchises to independent operators who in turn pay a technical assistance fee, royalties,
and in some cases, rents for,each restaurant opened (see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
amount of rent revenue included in franchise revenue for each of the last three yf:ars)| A technical assistance fee
is recorded as income when each restaurant commences operations. Royalties, based upon a percent of monthly
sales, are recognized as income on the accrual basis. The Company has established reserves related to the
collection of franchise royalties and other franchise-related receivables and commitments (see Note 12 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements).

h . Co * . . . . N
Franchise owners receive assistance in such areas as real estate site selection, conslru{ction consulting, purchasing
and marketing from company personnel who also furnish these services to company operated restaurants. These
franchise expenses are included in general and administrative expenses. e ‘

1 ' ; »

49




The following are changes in the Company’s fran;:hised locations for each of the fiscal years 2004 through 2006:

Franchise mmurant progressmn - - ¥ ‘ 2006 2005 2004

Franchise restaurants in operatlon—begmmng of year T 1 3244 - 5,184 5,016
Franchises opened ‘ 9% 155 226
Franchises closed : (162) (89 (88)
Net transfers within the system- . .. ‘ . 30 {6) .30
Franchise restaurants in operation— end-of year ! . 5,208 5,244 5,184
Company-owned restaurants— end of year f 1,465 1,502 1,487
Total system-wide restaurants— end of year S 6,673 6,746 6,671

Advertising costs .
I

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred with the exception of media development costs that are
expensed beginning in the month that the advertlsemem is first communicated (see Note 14 to the Consolidated
Financial Stalemems) - : .

Foreign operations

At December 31, 2006, the Company and its franchise owners operated 377 Wendy’s restaurants in Canada.
Additionally, there are 341 Wendy's restaurants in other foreign countries and territories, primarily operated by
franchisees. The functional currency of each foreign subsidiary is the respective local currency. Assets and
liabilities are translated at the year-end exchange rates and revenues and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the penod Resulting translation adjustments are recorded as a component of shareholders’
equity and in other comprehenswe income (expense). Total translation adjustments included in accumulated
other comprehenswe income (expense) at December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006 were $9.1 million and $115.9
million, rcspecuvely Total transaction (gains) losses included in other expense (income), net, were less than
$0.1) mllllon for 2()06, less than $0.1 million for 2IOO$ and were $0.2 million for 2004.

Derivative instruments

The Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk is primarily related to fluctuations between the Canadian
dollar and the U.S. dollar. The Company seeks to manage significant cash flow and income statement exposures
arising from these fluctuations and may use derivative procucts to reduce the risk of a significant impact on its
cash flows or income. These risks have included imports paid for by Canadian operations in U.S. dollars and
certain Canadian dollar intercompany payments ultimately transferred to U.S. entities as part of the Company’s
centralized approach to cash‘management. Historically, forward currency contracts have been entered into as
cash flow hedges primarily for the benefit of THI relative to foreign currency risks related to the THI Canadian
operations. The Company has investments in foreign subsidiaries. The net assets of these subsidiaries are
exposed to volatility in currency exchange rates. The Company may use derivative financial instruments to hedge
this exposure. The Company does not hedge foreign currency exposure in a manner that would entirely eliminate
the effect of chariges in foreign currency exchange rates on net income and cash flows. The Company has a
policy forbidding trading or speculating’in foreign currency. Derivative fair values used by the Company are
based on quoted market pnces '

The Company also seeks to manage its exposure to interest rate risk and to lower its net borrowing costs by
managing the mix of fixed and floating rate instruments. The Company entered into an interest rate swap in 2003
for the notional amount of $100.0 million, which matured in December 2005 and met specific conditions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS$™) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities”, to be considered a highly effective fair value hedge of a portion of the Company’s long-term
debt. Accordingly, gains and losses arising from the swap were completely offset against gains or losses of the
underlying debt obligation until the interest rate swap maltured. (See also Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements),

‘
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Other expense (income), net

The following represents the components of other expense (income), net as presented on the Consohdated
Statements of Income for each of the periods presented:

(En thousands) - : ’ 2006 1 2005 2004

Restructuring costs - o ' $ 38,914 - $ 0 ‘$ 0
Store closing costs : 16,737 24,696 0
Rent revenue ' B (14,021) (16,359) (14,401)
{Gain) loss from property dispositions S (6,833) (46,855) - 464
Equity investments and other, net . . 2,671 4,255 12,608
Other expense (income), net - _ $ 37,468 $(34,263) $ (1,329)

Rent revenue shown above represents rent paid by THI to a 50/50 restaurant real estatt, joint venture between
Wendy’s and THI. Since the spin-off of THI, this joint venture is no longer consolidated in the Company’s
financial statements, Wendy's 50% equity share of the joint venture income is mcludeld in other expense
(income), net and the rent revenue from THI is now included in other expense (income), net. See Notes 8 and 10
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of asset impairments and restructuring costs,
respectively. . : . . ., A

Net income per share

Basic earnings per common share are computed by dividing net 1ncome avanlable to common shareholders by | the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted computatnons are b"‘!tsed on the treasury stock
method and include assumed conversions of stock options, restncted stock and restricted stock units, when
outstanding and dilutive. '

.

The computation of diluted eamings per common share excludes options to-purchase 0 3 million and 4.3 million
shares in 2005 and 2004, respectively, because the exercise price of these options was’ greater than the average
market price of the common shares in the respective periods and therefore, they were 'anudllutlve There were no
options excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per commori share in 2006 as they were all dilutive. -
The computations of basic and diluted earnings per common share for each year are shown in the following table:

(In thousands except per share amounts) 2006 2005 2004
Income from continuing operations for the computation of basic T L
earnings per common share $ 37,046 $ 85,095 $106,144
Income from discontinued operations for the computation of basic o
earnings per common share 57,266 138,972 (54,109)
Net income for the computation of basic earnings per common o .
share ) S 94,312 | $224,067 $.52,035
Weighted average shares for computation of basic earnings per -, .
common share . 114,244 114,945 113,832
Effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock ] . 1,081 1,874 1,853
Weighted average shares for computanon of dlluted earnings per . '
common share: : ' 115,325 116,819 ' - 115,685
Basic earnings per common share from continuing operations $ 03 $ 074 $ 093
Basic earnings per common share from discontinued operations $ 050 5 L21 $- (0 47)
Total basic earnings per common share '$ 083 $ 195 $ 046
Diluted earnings per common share from continuing operations ._ $ 032 $ 073 . % 092
Diluted earnings per common share from discontinued operations $ 050 £ 119 $-(047)
Total diluted earnings per common share $ $ 192. . . 045

0.82
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Stock options and other equity-based compensation

The Company has various plans which provide stock options and, beginning in 2004 and 2005, restricted stock,
restricted stock units and performance shares (together “restricted shares”), for certain employees and outside
directors to acquire common shares of the Company. Grants of stock options and restricted shares to employees
and the periods during which such stock options can be exercised are at the discretion of the Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors. Grants of stock options and restricted shares to outside directors and the
periods during which such options can be exercised are specified in the plan applicable to directors and do not
involve discretionary authority of the Board. All options expire at the end of the exercise period. Options are
granted with exercise prices equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common shares on the date of grant.

Prior to January 2, 2006, the Company used the intrinsic value method to account for stock-based employee
compensation as defined in Accointing Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees”. Accordingly, because stock options granted prior to January 2, 2006 had no intrinsic value at date
of grant, compensation expense related to stock options was'récognized using the Black-Scholes method only

. when stock option awards were modified after the grant date. During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company
accelerated the vesting of all outstanding options, excluding those held by outside directors of the Company. As a
result of modifying the vesting period of the options, the Company recorded $3.5 million pretax in compensation
expense in continuing operations in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™)
Interpretation No. (“FIN) 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation”™. The
expense represents the intrinsic value, on the date vesting was accelerated, for the estimated number of stock
options that would have been forfeited according to the original terms of the options that will no longer be
forfeited due to the acceleration of the vesting. The decision to accelerate vesting of stock options was made
primarily to reduce non-cash expense in 2006, 2007 and 2008 of approximately $8 million, $3 million and $1
million, respectwely The Company's Compensatlon Committee 1mposed a holding period that will require all
executive officers to refrain from selling net shares acquired upon any exercise of these accelerated options, until
the date on which the exercise would have been permitted under the option’s original vesting terms or, if earlier,
the executive officer’s death, disability or termination of employment. Prior to January 2, 2006, compensation
expense recognized related to restricted shares was measured based on the market value-of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant. The Company generally satisfies share-based exercises and vesting through
the issuance of authorized but previously unissued shares of Company stock. Restricted shares are generally
net-settled with new Company shares withheld, and not issued, to meet the employee’s minimum statutory
w1thhold1ng tax requirements. - ‘

On January 2, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R “Share-Based Payment”, whlch requires share-based
compensation cost to be recognized based on the grant date estimated fair value of each award, net of estimated
cancellations, over the employee’s requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period of the equity
grant. The Company elected to adopt SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective method, which requires
compensatlon expense to be recordéd for all unvested share-based awards beginning in the first quarter of '
adoption. Accordingly, the prior periods presented in this Form 10-K have not been restated to reflect the fair -
value method of expensing stock options. Also, because the value used to measure compensation expense for
restricted shares is the same for APB Opinion No. 25 and SFAS No. 123R and because substantially all of the
Company'’s stock option grants were fully vested prior to January 2, 2006, the adoption of SFAS No. 123R did
not have a material impact on the Company's operating income, pretax income cor net income, In accordance with
SFAS No. 123R, tax benefits received of $29.2 million in continuing operations and $0.4 million in discontinued
operations related to equity award grants that are in excess of the tax benefits recorded on the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Income are classified as a cash inflow in the financing section of the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Also in accordance with SFAS No. 123R, the unearned compensation
amount previously separately displayed under shareholders’ equity was reclassified during the first quarter of
2006 to capltal in excess of stated value on the Company’s Consolidated Balance: Sheets. In March 2005, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bull:tin (“SAB”) No. 107 regarding
the SEC’s interpretation of SFAS No. 123R. The Company has applied the provisions of SAB No. 107 in its* *
adoption of SFAS No. 123R. .
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The Company recorded the following stock compensation expense:

T . s

. . Year Ended
(In thousands) ‘ ‘ L : 2006 2005 2004
Continuing operations: S _ L -
Before-tax _ . . " . $11.413 . $16,194 $3,802
After-tax, . T CLa 7,240 10,531 2,414
Discontinued operations: '
Before-tax 10,383 4,072 315
After-tax. ' 6,587 2,648 200
Total: - - T _ { '
Before-tax _ o . 21,796 20,266 4,117
After-tax . . $13, 827 $13,179 $2,614

The decrease in stock compensation expense recognized in continujng operations in 2(:)06 from 2005 is primarily
attributed to higher cancellations in 2006 as a result of the reduction in force in the second half (see Note 9 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements) and the impact of the stock option acceleration ch_{irge in 2005. In the first
quarter of 2006, the Company recorded a pretax adjustment of $1.7 million ($1.1 million net of tax) to correct
cumulative compensation expense. The adjustment was not material to the current year or to prior years. The
increase in stock compensation expense recognized in continuing operations in 2005 from 2004 is primarily”
attributed to additional performance award grants in 2005, the recognition of the first full year of restricted shares
expense in 2005 (the first restricted stock grants for continuing operations employees occurred in the second
quarter of 2004) and the stock option acceleration charge in 2005. The increase in stoc'k compensation expense
recognized in discontinued operations in 2006 compared to 2005 is primarily attnbuted to the acceleration of -
expense due to the THI spin-off, sale of Baja Fresh and additional 2006 grants awarded by THL. The increase in -
stock compensation expense recognized in discontinued operations in 2005 from 2004 is primarily attributed to
the first restricted shares grants for, THI employces occurring in the second quarter of|2005 and the stock opnon
acceleration charge in 2005.

Included in the continuing operations amounts above for 2006 is $2.5 million ($1.6 million after-tax) in
additional stock compensation expense recognized in connection with the Company’s' voluntary enhanced
retirement plan (see Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). This expense is included in restructuring
costs in other expense {income}, net.

In caicuiating the fair value of optnons issued 1o employees that received grants in 2004, the Company used the
following assumptions: '

P e - s

Assumption - 2004
Dividend yield - : I - s 1.2%
Expected volatility 27%
Risk-free interest rate ' l 2.8%
Expected lives o - ‘ © . 3.1 years
Per share weighted average fair value of options granted L. : . $8.22

In calculating the fair value of 2004 stock options issued to key employees and outside directors, the Company
used the following assumptioris:

Assumption L o .. . o * 2004
Dividend yield 1.2%
Expected volatility , L ! 3%
Risk-free interestrate 4 - ’ o, : 3.5%
Expected lives - - i : 4.9 years
Per share weighted-average fair.value of options granted , $11.89
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The pro-forma disclosures for 2005 and 2004 below are provided as if the Company had adopted the cost
recognition requirements under SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”. Under SFAS

No. 123, the fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. This model requires the use of subjective assumptions that can materially affect fair value
estimates, and therefore, this model does not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of the
Company’s stock options. Had compensation expense been recognized for stock-based compensation plans in
accordance with provisions of SFAS No. 123 in 2005 and 2004, the Company would have recorded net income
and earnings per share as follows: :

-

(In thousands, except per share data) 2005° 2004
Net income, as reported $224067 $ 52;035
Add: Stock compensation cost recorded under APB Opinion No. 25, net of tax 13,179 2614
Deduct: Stock compensation cost calculated under SFAS No. 123, net of tax . (47,283) (19,205)
Pro-forma net income . 5189,963 $ 35,444
Basic as reported ‘ o n - $ 195 § 046
Basic pro-forma o ‘ ‘ _ $ 165 § 031
Diluted as reported = - - % 192 % 045
Diluted pro-forma ' - $ 163 $ 031

+

The above stock compensation cost calculated under SFAS.No. 123, net of tax, was based on costs-generally
computed over the vesting period of the awards. Upon adoption, SFAS ‘No. 123R required compensation cost for
stock-based compensation awards to be recognized immediately for retirement cligible employees and over the
period from the grant date to the date retirement eligibility is achieved, if that period is shorter than the normal
vesting period. The table below shows the impact on the Company’s reported diluted earnings per share and the
above pro-forma diluted earnings per share as if the SFAS No. 123R guidance on recognition of stock
compensation expense for retirement eligible employees was applied to the periods reflected’in the financial
statements. . -

2006 2005 2004

Impact on: ) - .
Diluted as reported . : - 50,06 $(0.05) $(0.02)
Diluted pro-forma NA 5003 §0.0D)

The impact of applying SFAS No. 123R in these pro-forma disclosures is not necessarily indicative of future
results. ) ' '

NOTE 2 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The table below presents amortizable intangible assets as of December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006:

Gross ' Net

. Carrying  Accumulated  Carrying

(In thousands) Amount  Amaortization  Amount
2006 i - o o ’ .
Amortizable intangible assets: : : '

Patents and trademarks - § 452 $ 4290 $° 28

Purchase options . 7,500 (6,680) ° 820

Other 4,956 (1,949) 3,007

» - $12,908 $(9,053) $3,855
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' ) : - Gross - Net
, .- . Carrying  Accumulated . Carrying

(In thuu'saﬁd.é) ’ L ) ' ' ) ' Amount Amortization  Amount
2005 o
Amortizable intangible assets:

', - Patents and trademarks = . i . ) §: 452 $ (312) $ 140
Purchase options . . A TR . . 7,500 (6,001} 1,499
Other e e, o - ] . 4,806 (1,602} 3,204
Sra A . Lo $12758°  $(7.915) - $4.843

_ o
Inciuded in other above is $2.9 milfion and $3.2 million as of December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006,
respectively, net of accumulated amontization.of $1.9 million and $1.6 million, pnmanly related to the use of the
name and likeness of Dave Thomas, the,late founder of Wendy's.

Total 1ntang1blcs amomzauon expense was $1.1 million for the year-ended December 31, 2006 and $1. 1 million
for the year—ended January 1, 2006 The estlmated annual mtanglbles amomzauon expense for 2007 is
approx1malely $0.9 million. For thie years 7008 and 2009, the estimated mtang1bles amomzauon expense is
approx1matcly $0.5 mllhon annually and for the years 2010 and 2011 is appr0x1mately $0.3 million annually

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 200? are as follows:

(In lhousands) B ! L ‘ |

Balance as of January 1, 2006 ., B L - .$81,875
Goodwill recorded in connection with aéquisitions " P C ' - 3,486
Translation adjustments ) ' ] (8)
Balance as of December 31, 2006 . $85,353

The changés in the carrying amount of godci\}vill for the year ended January 1, 2006, a'rle' as follows:

{In thousands) L

Balance as of January 2, 2005 $76,937
Goodwill recorded in connection 'with acquisitioris ' 5,504
Goodwill related to dispositions— e s : . (660)
Translation adjustments 94
Balance as of January 1, 2006 $81,875

Under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangibles”, goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangibles must be
tested for impairment annually (or in interim periods if events indicate possible impairment). The Company '
tested goodwill for impairment as of year-end 2006 and 2005 and no impairment was indicated.

NOTE3 TERMDEBT ~° -

Term debt at each year-end consisted of the following:

e T ~ ERIE

(In thohsana‘éi T ) U ' i 2006 © 2005
Notes, unsecured, and mortgages payable with a wc1ghled average mtereqt ratc of 89%,

due in installments through 2009 $ 883 § 2,151
6.25% Senior Notes, due November 15, 2011 . 199,562 199,487
6.20% Senior Notes, due June 15,2014 . " . “ 224,551 224,505
7% Debentures, due December 15, 2025 . - Co : e 96,996 96,925
Other, with an interest rate of 11.1%, due May 2008 ' 93,977 - 0
Advertising fund debt at an interest rate of 6.75% due September 30, 2007 7,639 0

W CoL T I o , 623,608 523,068

Current portion of long-term obligations , S ‘ (86,469)  (1,268)

: - o . . . . $537,139. $521,800
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The U.S. advertising fund has a revolving line of credit of $25 million with an interest rate of 0.25% on the
unused portion. Wendy's is not the guaramor of the debt, The advemsmg fund debl was incurred to fund the
advertising fund operations.

The 6.25% Senior Notes were issued in 2001 in connection with the Company’s share repurchases (see Note 6 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements). The 6.20% Senior Notes were issued in 2002 in connection with the
Company’s purchase of Baja Fresh. The 6.25% and 6.20% Senior Notes are redeemable prior to maturity at the
option of the Company. The 7% Debentures are not redeemable by the Company pnor to maturity. All of the
Company’s notes and debentures are unsecured.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company entered into an agreement to'sell approximately 40% of the
Company's U.S. royalty stream for.a 14-month period to a third party in return for a cash payment in 2006 of
$94.0 million. Royalties subject to the agreement relate to royalties payable to a subsidiary of the Company for
both company operated and franchised stores. In accordance'w1th EITF 88-18 “Sales of Future Revenues”, the
Company has classified the $94.0 miltion of cash received in 2006 as debt which is reflected as other debt in the
table above. This amount will be amortized using the interest miethiod over the life of the agreement, which
concludes in May 2008. Changes in estimated cash flows will be réflected prospectively in interest expense.,

In March 2003, the Company entered into an interest rate swap that met the specific conditions of SFAS No 133
to be considered a highly effective fair value hedgc of the previously outstanding 6.35% notes. By entenng into
the inferest rate swap, the Company agreed to receive interest at a ﬁxed rate and pay interest at a varlable rate.
The interest rate swap matured in December 2005,

Based on future cash flows and current interest rates for all term debt, the fair value of the Company’s term debt*
was approximately $612 million and $560 million-at December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006, respectively.

-+

Future maturities for all term debt are as follows: . -

(In thousands)

2007 ’ . $ 86,469
2008 ' ' . 16,001
2009 ! : : , 29
2010 . . | . . .0
2011 , ) : . . ) . 199,562
Later years ) " . . 321,547

$623,608

The Company’s debt agreements contain covenants that specify limits on the-amount of indebtedness secured by
liens and the maximum aggregate value of restaurant property as to which the Company could enter into sale-
leaseback transactions. The Company was in compliance with these covenants as of December 31, 2006 and will
continue to monitor these on a regular basis.”

The Company currently has a shelf registration statement which would enable the Company to issue securities up
to $500 million. As of December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006, no secuntles under this shelf registration
statement had been issued.

On March 1, 2006, the Company entered into a new $200 million unsecured revolving credit facility, which
expires on March 1, 2008 and which replaced the Company’s previous $200 million revolving credit facility
entered into in 2003. The new revolving credit facility contains various covenants which, among other things,

56




require the maintenance of certain ratios, incliding indebtedness t6 total capitalization and a fixed charge
coverage ratio, and limits on the amount of assets that can be sold and liens that can bel placed on the Company’s
assets. The Company was in compliance with these covenants as of December 31, 2006. The Company is * -
charged interest on advances that varies based on the type of advance utilized by the Company, which is either an
alternate base rate (greater of prime or Fedéral funds plus’ 0. 5%) or a rate based on LIBOR plus a margin that
varies based on the Company’s debt rating at the time of the advance. The Company is also'charged a facility ‘fee
based on the total credit facility. This fee varies from 0.07% to 0.20%  based on the Company’s debt rating. As of
December 31, 2006, no amounts under this credit fac1llty were drawn. . .
In the first quarter of 2006, $35.0 million in‘commercial paper was issued for general corporate pu’r’pos'es and
repaid. In 2004, $25.0 mllllon in commercial paper was issued for general corporate purposes and was repatd in
the first quarter of 2005. Due to the Company’s current debt ratings, the Company does not currently have access

to its commercm.l paper pl' ogram , ¥ oo
s . .- T [ TR R I Y

At December 31, 2006 the Company’ s Canad1an sub51d1ary had a revolv'mg credn fac111ty wnh approx1malely
$6 million Canadian available at December 31, 2006. This facility bears interest at a rate of 6.0%, has no.
financial covenants and no amounts under the facility were outstandmg at December 31 2006.

noL A R . H . e ' 1

NOTE4 LEASES . e e S

Al
[ -

The Company occupies land and buildings and uses equipment under terms of numerous lease agreements, .
substantially all of which expire on various dates through 2046. Lease terms of land a{tld building leases are -
generally equal to ‘the -initial lease period of 10 to 20 years, while land only lease terms-can-extend-up-to 40 years.
Many of these leases provide for future rent escalations and renewal options. Certain ledses requnre contingent
rent, determined as a percentage of sales, generally when annual sales exceed specnﬁe'd levels Most leases also
obllgate the Company to pay the cost of maintenance, insurance and property taxes ‘

I PRV

At each year-end, assets leased under capital leases with the Company as the lessee consisted of the following: .

(In thousands) - o : . R .. [ L2006 0 e 2005

Buildings o " S T see 524018

Accumulated depreciation : o (8,889)  (11,086)
A $13,857 « § 13;832

At December 3 1,'2006, future minimum lease payments to be made by the Company for all leases, and the "
present value of the net minimum lease payments for capital leases, were as follows:

- . ' . ] "Capital  + " Operating
(In thousands) . ) Leases Leases

2007 - heo ‘ o 1 s 2131 © °$ 58063
2008 o L ., 2,168 55,441
2009 e . 2,235 55437
2010 RS 2,039 47,154
2011 - - SR : - 1 1,829 - 43219
Later years . 21,374 705,925
Total minimum lease payments 31,776 $965,239
Amount representing interest (11,886)

Present value of net minimum lease payments 19,890

Current portion ) , (927) .

' .| s18963 .
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Total minimum lease payments have not been reduced by minimum sublease rentals of $4.4 million under capital
leases, and $21.1.million under operating leases payable to the Company in the future under non-cancelable
subleases. - . . e ) :

Rent expense for each year is mcluded in company restaurant operatmg costs operatmg costs and general and
admmlstratwe expenses and amounted to: .’

N

2006 " 2005 2004

{In thousands) ~ L ror oy :

Minimum rents $75,663 $76,974 $84,487

Contingent rents ’ 9,937 10,277 12,062
o - S _ $85,600 _ $87251  $96.549

: ‘ . . .
In connection with the franchising of certain restaurants, the Company has leased or subleased land, buildings
and equipment to the related franchise owners. Most leases to franchisees provide for monthly rentals based on a’
percentage of sales, while others provide for fixed payments with contingent reat when sales exceed certain
levels. Lease terms are approximately 10 to 20 years with one or more five- -year renewal options. The franchise
‘owners bear the cost of mamtenance insurance and property taxes.

4

-r

The Company leases, as lessor, some building and equipment under fixed payment terms and accounts for these
leases as direct financing leases, The land portion of leases and leases with rents based on a percentage of sales
are accounted for as operating leases. At each year-end, the net investment in dlrect financing leases, included in

other assets, consisted of the followmg ' : o

(In thousands) e B - . 2006 2005
Total minimum lease receipts ‘ . . $10,087 . $12,363
Estimated unguaranteed residual value | _ 117 272
Amount representing uneamect interest ) o ‘ . .(5,086) . (6,248)
Current portion, included in accounts receivable (142) (199)

$4976  $ 6,188

At each year-end, company assets leased under operating leases with the Compeny as lessor is shown below. The
significant decrease from 2005 to 2006 is due pnmanly to the deconsolidation of the 50/50 restaurant real estate
joint venture between Wendy's and THI after the spin-off of THI

{In thousands) 2006 2005
Land $ 13,015 3 39,828
Buildings and leasehold lmprovements , . . 51,619 - 151,978
Equipment o ; - ‘ 8,383 . 9,237
o N : . 73,017 201,043
Accumulated depreciation (32,909) (57,344)
' - - - : $ 40,108 $143,699

_ At December 31, 2006, future minimum lease receipts were as follows:

Direct Financing Operating

(In thousands) Leases - Leases
2007 L. $ 453 $ 3,637
2008 : : ) : - 43] 3,204
2009 P ' 591 3,013
2010 o ) i 607 2,663
2011 . 615 2,229
Later years 5 . 7,390 11,841
' ' $10,087 $26,587




Rental income for each year is included in franchise revenues and amounted to:

(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Minimum rents $ 3,360 '$.5023 - § 5,108

Contingent rents 17,581 32,755 ' 36,108
$20941 | $37778 - 341,216

In addition to the rental income in the table above, there is rent revenue included in otller expense (mcome) net
which represents rent paid by THI to a 50/50 restaurant real estate joint venture between Wendy’s and THI. After
the spin-off of THI on September 29, 2006, this joint venture is no longer consolidated in the Company’s

financial statements.
NOTE 5 INCOME TAXES

Earnings from continuing operations before taxes:

(In thousands) ‘ 2006 . 2005 2004
Domestic . $32,173 $133,996 $165,891
Foreign 10,306 2,788 10,299
Total _ ., $42479 | $136,784 $176,190
The provision for income taxes on earnings from conitinuing operations consisted of the foll9wihg:
(In thousands) 7 ' ' ' 2006 [ 2005 2004
Current : .. s : ] . . . .
Federal $ 27,315 $ 52,316 $55,121
State and local : L : 2,923 6,649 10,192
Foreign 6,976 5,199 5,751
37214 | 64,164 71,064
Deferred _ - ' o ’
Federal (28,547) . (8,703) (3,185)
State and Jocal o (1,698) (2,602) 1,890
Foreign (1,536) (1,170} - 277
(31,781) (12,475) (1,018)
$ 5,433 $ 51,689 $70,046

+

The provision for foreign taxes includes withholding taxes.

The temporary differences which give rise to deferred tax assets and llabllmes each y
following:

ear-end consisted of the

(In thousands) 2006 2005
Deferred tax assets '
Lease transactions $ 14,323 $12,666
Property and equipment basis differences : T T 3426 2,710
Intangible assets basis differences 14,327 - 10,530
Benefit plans transactions 14,922 13,354
Reserves not currently deductible 21,361 19,296
Deferred income 35,092 3,288
Capital loss carryforward 81,000 0
All other 640 © 2,489
$185,091 564,333
Valuation allowance (81,000} 0
$104,091 $64,333
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(In thousands) . e .- . _ . . 2006 <o~ 2005 ¢
Deferred tax liabilities ' ’

Lease transactions o ' ' S % 1934 $ 2414
Benefit plans transactions 0 16,246
Property and equipment basis differences . - . . 77,03 68,765
Intangible assets basis differences . . o T U X} § 9,766
Capitalized expenses cleductcd fortax i 9,250 9,709
Allother - - e 1,510 T 2919

- s C $1(m2344 $109,819

Certain amounts in the above table for 2005 have been reclassified to conform 1o the current vear presentation.
These reclassifications had no impact on the Consolidated Balance Sheets prescntation.

The pension liability expense adjustment appearing in the shareholders’ equity section of thé balance sheet under
accumulated other comprehensive income is shown net of deferred taxes of $12.7 million and $0.7 million in™
2006 and 2005, respectively. Accordingly, these deferred taxes are not reflected in the table above.

A deferred tax asset has been established for the capital loss carryforward resuliing from the sale of Baja Fresh in
2006. Federal capital losses may be carried forward for five years. The Company has reviewed various SFAS

No. 109 tax planning strategies, including sale and leasebacks, which might be nsed to realize the benefit of these
loss carryforwards. These strategies, as of December 31, 2006, do not meet the * prudcnt and feasible” criteria of
SFAS No. 109 and accordingly the valuation allowance in the amount-of $81.0 million has been recorded as a
result of management’s determination that it is more likely than not these capital losses will not be used.  ~ K

A reconciliation of the statutory U. S federal income tax rate of 35% to the Company’s effective tax rate for each
year is shown below: _ _ . _ o

(In thousands) B ) : ; - 200:6 - 2005 2004

Income taxes at statutory rate $14,868 $47.874 $61,666
State and local taxes, net of federal benefit 78 3.434 10,453
Tax on foreign earnings, net of foreign tax credits - (361) (430) - (798) -
Work opportunity and jobs tax credits (2,223 . (1,709) “T(L,274)
Prior year tax adjustments _ (6,846) 2,332 (646)
Other , ’ ) ‘ &) 188 T 64S

b e . - PO

Tricome taxes at effective rate

$ 5,433 $51,689 $70,046
The prior year tax adjustments line item in the rate reconciliation above mcludes the effects of federal and state tax
exam settlements, statute of limitation lapses and changes in estimates used in calc ulating the income tax provnsnon

The determination of annual income tax expense takes into consideration amounts including interest and
penalties which may be needed to cover exposures for open tax years. The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS ™) is
currently conducting an examination of the Company’s U.S. federal income tax returns for the year 2005 and the
2006 year as part of the IRS’s Compliance Assurance Process program. The Company is'before the IRS Appeals
for the years 1998 through 2004 as it relates to a refund claim for the work-opportunity tax credit. The Company
is before the U.S. Competent Authority for the years 1999 through 2001 as it relates to transfer pricing on
royalties and fees between U.S. and Canada. The Company is involved with various audits at the state and local
level. The Company does not expect any material impact on earnings to result from the resolution of matters-
related to open tax years; however actual settlements may differ from amounts accrued. Amounts related to IRS
exammatmns of federal income tax returns for 2004 and prior years have been settled and paid. 1

U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes are not provided on undistributed earnings of foreign )
subsidiaries which are considered to be indefinitely reinvested in the operations of such subsidiaries. The amount
of these eamnings was approximately $4 million at December 31, 2006.. .
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The Company is a party to a Tax Sharing Agreement dated March 29, 2006 with THL, its former subsidiary,
which governs the: allocatlon of tax liabilities between the two companies. The income|tax provision reflects this
agreement. ' : T ’ :

“The Company adopted SFAS No. 123R in the first quarter of 2006 and elected to calculate the pool of excess tax
benefits under thie alternative, or “short-cut” method. - . ‘ s

NdTE 6 SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

On September 29, 2006, the Company completed its spin-off of THI, the parent compan y of the business formerly
reported as the Hortons segment. The net assets of THI of $638.9 million (including accumulated translation
adjustments of $112.2 million and a hedge fair value loss of $0.6 million in other comprehenqlve income) have been
reflected as a final dividend paid out of retained eammgs in 2006. The assets and liabilities of THI have been
recorded in current assets and liabilities and non current assets and liabilities of dlscontlhued operanons as of
January 1, 2006 (sec Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

On March 29, 2006, the Company completed its IPO of THI. A total of 33.4 million shares were offered at an
initial per share price of $23.162 ($27.00 Canadian). The gross proceeds of $769.2 rnillion were offset by $52.4
million in underwriter and other third party costs with all such costs paid as of Octobe'r 1, 2006. As a result of the
1PO, the Company recorded a $716.8 million increase to capltal in excess of stated value. The shares sold in the
IPO represented 17.25% of total THI shares issued and outstanding and the Company] retained the remaining
82.75% of THI shares until it completed the spin-off described above. The IPO was reflected as an increase to
capital in excéss of total value in accordance with SAB No. 51, “Accounting for Sated of Stock of a Subsidiary”,
because the Company expected to spin-off the remaining THI shares it held.

In each of 2002 and 2004, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the common stock repurchase program
of up to an additional $200 million. In 2005, the Board of Directors approved anothe incréase in the repurchase
program of up to an additional $1 billion. On October 9, 2006 the Company's Board of Directors authorized the
repurchase of up to 35.4 million common shares of the Company. The October 9, 2006 authorization replaced all
prior authorizations. At Decémber 31, 2006, approximately -13 million shares remame':d under the share |
repurchase authorization. During 2006, 2005 and'2004, 26.2 mitlion, 2.0 million and 3.6 million common shares
were repurchased pursuant to the program and cash disbursements related to share re]purchases totaled
approximately $1.0 billion, $100 rmlllon and $138 million, respcctlvely L :

On October 18, 2006, the Company commenced a modlﬁed “Dutch Auction” tender offer to purchase up to 1
22.2 million of its outstanding common shares in a price range of $33.00 to $36.00 per share. The shares sought .
represented approximately 19% of the Company’s shares outstanding as of October 12, 2006: The tender offer -
expired on November 16, 2006. As a result of the tender offer, the Company purchas'cd 22.4 million common
shares at a price of $35.75, for a total purchase price of $804.4 million, which was reflected in the treasury stock
component of shareholders’ equity, including $3.1 million of transaction costs.

In January 2006, 3.75 million common shares of the Company were repurchased under an accelerated share
repurchase (“ASR”) transaction for an initial value of $207.0 million, The initial pncle paid per share as part of
the ASR transaction was $55.21. The rcpurchased shares were also SUb_]CCt toa future contingent-purchase price
adjustment based upon the weighted average repurchase price during the period through March 23, 2006. The
ASR agreement included the option to settle the contract in cash or shares of the Company’s common stock and,
accordingly, the contract was treated as an equity transaction. In March 2006, the co'nlmgent purchase price.
adjustment was determined to be $13.1 million and was paid by the Company. The t'otal purchase price of $220.1
million was reflected in the treasury stock component of shareholders’ equity in the First quarter of 2006.

In 2005, 2.0 million common shares were repurchased under an ASR transaction fori an initial value of
approximately $98 million. The initial price paid per share as part of the ASR transarctlon was $49.10. The
repurchased shares were also subject to a future contingent purchase price adjustment based upon the welghled
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average repurchase price during the period from August 16, 2005 through September 16, 2005. The ASR
agreement included the option to settle the contract in cash or shares of the Comnpany’s common stock and,
accordingly, the contract was classified in equity. In September 2005, the contingent purchase price adjustment
was determined to be $0.5 million and was paid to the Company. The purchase price adjustment was reflected in
the treasury stock component of shareholders’ equity in the third quarter of 2005. In 2004, 1.4 million shares )
were acquired in a similar ASR transaction under which approximately $53 million was paid by the Company in
2004 and approximately $2 million was paid by the Company in 2003 representing the contingent purchase price
adjustment.

In accordance with SFAS No. 87, the Company has recorded a pretax minimum pension liability of $36.2 million_
($22.5 million after tax). (See also Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Staterents).

Stock option awards made by the (fompany generally have a term of 10 years from the grant date and become
exercisable in installments of 25% on each of the ﬁrst four anniversaries of the grant date. As discussed in Note .
1, during the fourth quarter of 2005 the Company accelerated the vesting of all outstanding options, excluding
those held by outside directors. Restricted share grants made by the Company generally vest in increments of
25% on each of the first four anniversaries of the grant date. Restricted share grants to Canadian employees vest
over a 30 month period. In accordance with the Company's equity plan, with respect to the disposition of a
subsidiary, outstanding restricted shares granted to Baja Fresh and U.S. THI employees vested at the time of the
sale and spin-off, respectively. The Company’s restricted shares granted to Canadian THI employees were
cancelled in May and August 2006 and the Canadian THI employces were granted THI restricted shares. The
THI restricted share grants immediately vested and THI common shares were distributed to these THI employees
under the THI 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.

Restricted shares generally have dividend participation rights under which dividends are reinvested in additional
shares. The Company granted 0.1 millien performance share awards in 2006 to certain key employees based on
achieving Company earnings targets. These performance shares settle in restricted shares based on specified
performance criteria and the earned restricted shares then generally vest over the following four years in
installments of 25% each year. The number of remaining shares authorized under all of the Company’s equity
plans, net of exercises, totaled 4.2 million as of December 31, 2006.

In accordance with the anti-dilution provisions in the Company’s equity plans, upon the spin-off of THI, all stock
options, restricted stock units and performance shares were adjusted in order to ratain the equivalent value to
employees. In accordance with SFAS No. 123R, no compensation cost was recorded as a result of this
adjustment. This adjustment is reflected.in the following schedules. Restricted stixck awards received the
dividend of THI shares and therefore were not adjusted. The THI shares distributed to participants holding
restricted stock awards are being held for-the benefit of these participants and will be issued to pamc:lpants in
accordance with the normal vesting period of the undcrlymg restricted stock awaxds.

Resiricted shares

The following is a summary of unvestéd restricted share activity for 2006:

-y

Restricted  Weighted Average

(Shares in thousands) . - ‘ Shares Fair Value
Balance at January 1, 2006 : 1,272 $41.77
Granted e e . o 342 - 61.42°
Vested : ) (483) - 4235
Canceled ) 534) 45.59
Adjustment due to THI spin-off “ 432 (20.98)
Balance at December 31, 2006 1,029 $ 29.02
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The adjustment due to the THI spin-off represents the impact of the conversion of the-nturnber of restricted shares
based on the adjusted market price of the Company’s stock, excluding THI. The conversion was necessary in
order to retain the total value granted to each employee after the spin-off of THI.

As of December 31, 2006, total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested share-based compensation
was $20.4 million and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.1 years. The Company
expects substantially all of its restricted shares to vest. The total fair value of restricted shares vested in 2006,
2005 and 2004 was $20.5 million, $4,7 million and $0.2 million, respectively. Approximately 0.9 million and .
0.5 mllllon restricted shares were granled m 2005 and 2004, respecuvely, at a weighted-average grant date fair
value of $42.97 and $40.37, rcspectwely o '

" : tos ) L] A

R N PRI R . N .

Stock Options

The use of stock options is currently not a significant component of the Company’s equity compensatlon
structure. The Company last granted stock options in 2004 and only approximately 26,000 stock options were
unveslcd as of December 31, 2006 ) .

The followmg isa summary of stock opuon activity for the year-to-date perlod ended {)eccmber 31, 2006:

RS TR oL .- . oo ‘ .Weighted +
. . Weighted Average, .-
Avernge  Remaining Aggregate

1

-- ¢ v Shares * Price(Per . Contractual Intrinsic

{Shares and aggregate intrinsic value in thousands) s Under Option Share Life Value
Balance at January 1, 2006 . ot . K . 4535 . % 32,74 6.6 .

. Granted ot : B | l 0 .

- Exercised . N EE T . (3,639) - -3301. Y .

Canceled oL (38). 33'.09 A
Adjustment due to THI spin-off.. .. - ... -~ - ) 915§ (16.31)
Outstanding at December 31,2006 -+ - -~ 11773 - $1523 54 - +$31,662
Exercisable at December 31,2006 '~ ' 1741 $15.25 54 $31,160

The adjustment due to the THI spm -off represents lhe lmpact of the conversmn of the number of optlons based
on the adjusted market pnce of the Company s stock, excludmg THI. Thc [conversion was necessary in order to
retain the total value gramed to each employee after the spin-off of TH]

No stock options were granted in 2005 and approxlmately 1.4 million stock’ optrons were granted i in. 2004 at a
weighted average pnce per share 'of $40. 56. The intrinsic value of a stock option is the amounit by which the
market value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price of the option. The total intrinsic value of stock
options exercised was $99.6 million, $129.4 million and $18.9 miltion for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Proceeds from stock options exercised were $119.9 million, $215.9 million and $31 4 million for 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively, and the tax benefit realized for tax deductions from stock options exercised totaled $25 4
million, $37 8 mllhon and $6 2 mllhon for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectlvely o AR
The Company has a Shareholder Rights Plan (“Rrghts Plan”) under Wthh one preferred stock purchase nght
(“Right”) was distributed as a dividend for each outstanding common share. Each Rréht entitles a sharehelder to *
buy one ten-thousandth of a share of a new series of preferred stock for $100 upon the occurrence of certain.
events. Rights would be exercisable once a person or group acquires 5% or more of the Company’s common
shares, or 10 days after a tender offer for 15% or more of the common shares is announced. No certificates will -
be issued unless the Rrghts Plan is activated.

' .o
\ *

Under certam c1rcumstances all nghls holders except the person or company holdlng 15% or more of the
Company's common shares, will be entitled to purchase common shares at about half the price that such shares
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traded for prior to the announcement of the acquisition. Alternatively, if the Company is acquired after the Rights
Plan is activated, the Rights will entitle the holder to buy the acquiring compary’s shares at a similar discount.
The Company can redeem the Rights for one cent per Right under certain circomstances. If not redeemed, the
Rights will expire on August 10, 2008.

NOTE 7 ' ACQUISITIONS AND INVESTMENTS . )

In 2006, the Company acquired 12 Wendy's restaurants in various markets from franchisees for $13.3 million. In
2005, the Company acquired 15 Wendy’s restaurants in various markets from franchisees for $13.3 million. In
2004, the Company acquired 14 Wendy’s restaurants in various markets for a total purchase price of $5.6
million. Goodwill acquired in ¢connection with thé Company’s acquisition of Wendy's restaurants totaled $3.5
million, $5.5 million and $3.8 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

NOTES DISPOSITIONS AND IMPAIRMENTS

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, the
Company has classified assets with a net book value of $15.5 million arid $65.7 million as assets held for
disposition in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006, respectively. The
assets are Wendy’s sites, are no longer being depreciated and have been classified as held for disposition based
on the Company’s intention to sell these assets within the next 12 months. During the year ended December 31,
2006, 31 sites previously classified as held for disposition as of Januvary 1, 2006 with a net book value of $23.6
million were reclassified from assets held for disposition to property and equipinent because these sites are no
longer intended to be sold to the previously identified purchasers and the Company elected to discontinue
marketing the sites for sale. The effect on the Consolidated Statements of Income related to the reclassification of
these sites from assets held for disposition was limited to depreciation expense and was not material. Also during
2006, certain additional sites and equipment were designated as held for disposition. These assets have a net book
value of $23.5 million, net of $7.6 million in impairment charges recorded to reflect the net realizable value of
these assets. At December 31, 2006, the net book value of assets held for disposition includes $10.7 million of
land, $4.5 million of buildings and leasehold improvements and $0.3 million of equipment and other assets.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company sold 70 sites and other equipment classified as held for
disposition during 2006, with a net book value of $49.8 million, for a net gain of $8.2 million, of which $5.5
million is classified as other expense (income), net and $2.7 million is classified as franchise revenue.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company completed the sale of 130 Wendy's real estate properties to a third
party for $119.1 million, resulting in a pretax gain of $46.2 million, which is included in other expense (income),
net on the Consolidated Statements of Income. The Company also sold 37 Wendy’s real estate properties in 2005
.to existing franchisees for $42.0 million, resulting in a pretax gain of $16.4 million, which is included in
franchise revenues on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

In 2006 and 2005, the Company incurred $16.7 _milIion and $22.6 million; respectively, of store closing and asset
impairment charges, which are included in other expense (income), net on the Consolidated Statements of
Income. In 2005, the charge primarily related to the closure of 47 underperforming Wendy’s restaurants, Total
store closing costs included asset write-offs and lease termination costs. There were no store closing costs
incurred in 2004.

NOTE Y RESTRUCTURING RESERVES \ o

In the first quarter of 2006, the Company announced its plans to reduce general and administrative and other
costs $100 million, including $80 million in the continuing Wendy's business. In order to accomplish this, the
" Company offered a voluntary enhanced retirement plan to certaini' full-time employees who were 55 years of age
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and had at least 10 years of service. Benefits primarily included severance and healthcare coverage. In
accordance with SFAS No. 88, “Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtmlm'ents of Defined Benefit
Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits”, in 2006, the Company recorded $16.5 nulhon in charges related to
the individuals that accepted the offer. This amount also includes $2.5 million of addmona] stock compensation
expense for unvested restricted stock units resulting from the acceleration of vesting to the employees’ retirement
dates, in accordance with the Company’s stock compensation plan. In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company
recognized a'$3.9 million settlement charge as a result of distributions from the Company s defined benefit
pension plan, primarily related to those individuals who participated in the voluntary enhanced retu-ement plan
(see also Note 13 to the Consohdated Financial Statements).

+
P

In the second quarter of 2006, the Company initiated a reduction in force, also intended to contribute to the cost
reductions. In accordance with SFAS No. 112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postemploymem Benefits™, in 2006
the Company recorded severance and related costs of $13.3 million related to this reductlon in force which
includes $4.1 million of severance costs related to certain senior executives who left the Company in 2006.
Substantially all of the $13.3 million of costs began being paid in the third quarter of 2006 and will continue
through 2007. Approximately $1.0 million of these costs represented additional stock compensation expense
related to the modification of stock-based equity awards. In the third quarter of 2006,the Company revised its
estimate related to the expected payout for certain employees included in the reduction in force. This revision of
estimates resulted in a reduction of expense of $1.9 million. S

In addition to the employee related costs above, the Company incurred professional fees of $3 6 million in 2006
in connection with the cost reduction initiatives described above, all of which have been paid. Also, the Company
incurred $1.9 million in relocation and employee benefit costs in the 2006 associated|with the cost reduction
initiatives, the significant majority of which have been paid. These amounts are included in professmnal fees and
other in the table below.

All of the above restructuring costs are included in the other expense (income), net li}le of the Consolidated
Condensed Statements of Income (see also Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

The table below presents a reconciliation of the beginning and endmg restructuring liabilities at January 1, 2006
and December 31, 2000, respectively:

Enhanced Reducﬁlm Professional

(In thousands) Retirement  in Force  Fees and Other Total
Balance at January 1, 2006 ) $ 0 3 IO $ 0 $ 0
Expensed during the year . 14,179 11,386 5,601 31,166
Paid during the year ' {13,925) (3, 035) (5,460) (22,420}
Adjustments (236) (1, 853) 0 _. (2,089)
Balance at December 31, 2006 $ 18 $ 6,498 $ 141 $ 6,657

NOTE 10 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
THI

On September 29, 2006, the Company completed the distribution of its remaining 82l .75% ownership in THI. The
distribution took place in the form of a pro rata common stock dividend to Wendy's shareholders whereby each

shareholder received 1.3542759 shares of THI common stock for each share of Wendy s common stock held (see
atso Note 6 to the Consolidated Fmanma] Statements). a )

65




The table below pré's'ents the'significant componel'lts of THI operating results included in income from
discontinuéd operatlons for2006, 2005 and'2004. THI represemed the: Hortons segment priof to the spin-off.

BT ‘ L s ® [T S aa o, e L,
(lnthonsands) TR C S I A T COM006 Y 2008 ¢ V2004
Revewes . = ' "~ 't T U T $1,040,945 $1,185.264 $995.638
Income before income taxes,.. - . . S T J . o $. 232,692 $ 242 405 | $237,199
Income tax expense ... ... . ., . TR IRV 48 605 .. 75060 78,285
Minority interest expense L S 23 603 , e - 0, .0
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax $ 160,484 $ 167,345 §$158,914

T A P NS G .o T B | ' . . eyl . o TR o PRE

The asscts and liabilities of THI reﬂected as dlscontmucd operauons in the consohdated balarice sheét as of
January 1, 2006 are shown below. No assets or habllmes of TH] are 1ncluded in the consohdatcd balance sheet as

ofDecembersl 2006, Lot S ‘- Lo
# e ST Ty b S R NI | T "-.‘,',._- P4 1Y Lt ty { . R s

{[nlhousands) o . Januaryl 2006
Cash .. oy, o e e T T S 60
Accoums recclvable net R 7 - o, o, 13698
Notes receivable, net ' : 9,929
Deferred income taxes, ., - .. . _ ..l - e o ‘ .o 3375
Inventories. and other .., - B C 32,108
Restricted assets ... .. . . R IR EE B R . 16,375
Assets held for dlsposmon T 1 e e e y 1,110
Total current assets ’ K ©$ 296,710
Property and equipment, net ‘ $ 910,869
Notes receivable: net'' - - T T e ’ 12,936
Intangible assets, net < - - H SRR T 3,630
Other non current assets ‘ 93,556
Total'mon cumreitagsets T o ot T g 000,991
Accounts payable _ . S ' $ 92967
Accrued liabilities - Y L ' 67,065
Restricted liabilities _ .. e T Ll el e 31439
Other current liabilities -, ‘ : ' .- ¢ . 60,138
Total current liabilities i ' : “Lo 0§ 251,609
‘Termdebt ' * o Foo 37253
Caplta] leases - : ‘~. Co ' R . : " 38,400
Defcrred_mc,ome taxes. ., ‘o L.l . el DN Ler L 11,400
Other long term liabilities . ) 29,724
Total non current liabilities BT e e 8 106,777
Impairment Charges :

W ey v IARCH B PRI il " Pt o

Under SFAS. No 142 goodwill and othcr mdeﬁmte llved mtanglblcs must bc tes ted for i lmpalrment annually (or
in interim periods if events indicate possible 1mpa1rmcnt) In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company tested
goodwnl] for impairment and recorded an impairment charge of $25. 4 million related to the THI U.S. busmess
The Company determined the amount of the charge based on an estimate of the fair market value of the reporting
unit based on historical performance and discounted cash flow projections. Lower than anticipated sales levels
and lower store development expectations were the primary considerations in the determination that the recorded
goodwill value was impaired. The impairment charges fully eliminated the balance of goodwill related to THI.
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In 2005, a pretax asset impairment charge of $18.5 million was recorded related to two [THI markets in New .
England that were acquired in 2004 as part of the Bess Eaton acquisition. These markets were underperforming
despite various strategies employed.to improve performance. The fair value of this markcl was determined based
on the estimated realizable value of the fixed assets using third party appraisals. oL .

Derivatives

In the th1rd quarter of 2005, THI entered into forward currency contracts that matured in Mamh 2006 osell
Canadian dollars and buy $427.4 million U.S. dollars to hedge the repayment of cross-border mtercompany notes
being marked- to-market begmmng in the third quarter of 2005. Previously, the translanorjl of these mtcrcompany
notes was recorded in comprehenswe income {expense), rather than in the Consolidated Statements of Income, in .
accordance with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation”. The fair value unreahzed loss on these contracts as
of January 1, 2006 was $3.2 million. On the maturity date of March 3, 2006, THI recelved $427.4 rmlllon from the
counterparties and disbursed to the counterparties the U.S. dollar equivalent of $500.0 mllllon Canadian, resultmg in
a net U.S. dotlar cash flow of $13.1 million to the counterparties. Per SFAS No. 95, “Smlement of Cash Flows”, the
net U.S. dollar cash flow is reported in the net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations line
of the 2006 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. These forward currency contracts remained highly effective
cash flow hedges and qualified for hedge accounting treatment through their-maturity. As a result; during the first
quarter of 2006, changes in the fair value of the effective portion of these foreign currency contracts offset changes

.in the cross-border intercompany notes and a $0.8 million gain was recognized as the meffectwe portion of the

foreign currency contracts in discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

In thé fourth quarter of 2005, THI entered into forward currency contracts to sell Canadian dollars and buy . °
$490.5 million U.S. dollars in order to hedge certain net investment positions in Canadlan subsidiaries. On the

" maturity dates in April 2006, THI received $490.5 million U.S. from the counterpames and disbursed to the

counterparties the U.S. dollar equivalent of $578.0 million Canadian, resulting in a net U.S. dollar cash flow of
$14.9 million to the counterparties. Per SFAS No. 95, the net U.S. dollar cash flow is r'eported in the net cash.
provided by operating activities from discontinued operations line of the 2006 Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows. The fair value unrealized loss on these contracts was $5.0 million, net of taxes 1of $3.0 million, as of
January 1, 2006. Changes in the fair value of these foreign currency net investment heflgcs are included in the
translation adjustments line of other comprehensive income. These forward contracts remained highly effective
hedges and qualified for hedge accounting treatment through their maturity. No amounts related to these net
investment hedges were reclassified into eamnings. )

Debr

On February 28, 2006, THI entered into an unsecured five-year senior bank facility with a syndicate of Canadian
and U.S. financial institutions that comprises a $300 million Canadian dollar term—loaln facility; a $200 million
Canadian dollar revolving credit facility (which includes $15 million in overdraft avallablhty) and a $100 r
million U.S. dollar revolving credit facility (together referred to as the “senior bank facduy") ‘The senior bank
facility is an obligation of THI only, and not of the Company. The term loan facility bears interest at a variable
rate per annum equal to Canadian prime rate or alternatively, THI may elect to borrow by way of Bankers’
Acceptances (or loans equivalent thereto} plus a margin. On February 28, 2006, THI also entered into an
unsecured non-revolving $200 million Canadian dollar bridge loan facility. The bndge loan facﬂlty had interest
at Bankers’ Acceptances plus a margin. Qutstanding borrowings of $200 million Canadian at April 2, 2006 were
repaid on May 3, 2006 and the bridge facility was terminated as a result of the voluntary prepayment. In
connection with the term-loan facility, THI entered into a $100 million Canadian dollar interest rate swap on
March 1, 2006 to help manage its exposure to interest rate volatility. The interest ratelswap essentially fixed the
interest rate on one third of the $300 million Canadian dullar term loan facility to 5.175% and matures on
February 28, 2011.
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Income Taxes

¢ . .

The decrease in 2006 tax expense as a percent of pretax income primarily reflects the resolutlon of centain THI
tax audits in the second quarter 2006.

Baja Fresh

On November 28, 2006, the Company completed the sale of Baja Fresh for net cash proceeds of $25.0 million,
net of costs associated with the sale, resulting in a loss of $2.1 millton, which is included in discontinued
operations, net of tax on the Consolidated Statements of Income. The recordéd loss on sale may be subject to
certain post—close adjustmems according to the sale agreement. Accordingly, the results of operations of Baja
Fresh are reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

The table below presents the sngmﬁcanl components of Baja Fresh operatmg results included in income from
dlscontmued operattons for 2006, 2005 and 2004.

(In thousands) ‘ 2006 2005 2004
Revenues f - $ 147,736 $172,095  $ 176213
Loss before income taxes ‘ . $(147,492)  $(20,692)  $(227.116)
Income tax benefit ‘ . : (52,852) (5,319) (15,530)
Income (loss) from discontinued ope'ratio‘ns, net of tax ) $ (94,6400 $(15373) $(211,586)

The assets and liabilities of Baja Fresh reflected as discontinued operations in the consolidated balance sheet as
of January 1, 2006 are shown below. No assets or, Habilities of Baja Fresh are included in the consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2006

(In thousands) . : N L ‘ January 1, 2006
Cash . ' -t $ 92
Accounts receivable, net - ‘ 2,840
Deferred income taxes . . . 1,821
Inventories and other . - : o 2,509 -
Restricted assets : 1,840 .
Total current assets _ ‘ $ 9,102
Property and equipment, net $ 59,311
Deferred income taxes : 0’
Goodwill 46,933
Intangible assets, net . . ' . . 29,797
Other non current assets i , . ) . 527
Total non current assets : ‘ $136,568 -
Accounts payable © © : ' $ 2419
Accrued liabilities o 4,762
Restricted liabilities : ! ' . 1,840
Other current liabilities ! : ‘ s 2,976
Total current liabilities ' | - $ 11,997 |
Term debt 3 44
Deferred income taxes ‘ _ . " . 4,618
Other non current liabilities . . 5.147
Total non current liabilities ' . ©$ 9809

]
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Impairment Charges

4

In the third quarter 2006, the Company recorded pretax intangible and fixed asset impairment charges of $8.9
million ($5.5 million after-1ax) using the held for sale model in accordance with SFAS ‘No 144. The impairment
was required in the third quarter based on new market data received. The impairment charges are mcluded in the
income from dlscontmued operations line of the'Consolidated Statements of Income. , ‘
During the second quarter of 2006, as a result of continuing poor sales performance at Baja Fresh and the
Company’s consideration of alternatives for the Baja Fresh business, the Company tested goodwill of Baja Fresh.
for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 142 and tested other intangibles and fixed assets in accordance
with SFAS No. 144 using the held and used model, and recorded:a Baja Fresh goodwill pretax impairment
charge of $46.9 million ($46.1 million after-tax), a Baja Fresh impairment charge of $25 8 million (316.0 million
after-tax) related to the Baja Fresh trade name and $49.8 million ($30.9 million after-tax) in Baja Fresh fixed
asset impairment charges. The amount of the charges was determined using a probablhty -based approach using -
discounted cash flows and market data.

In the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company tested goodwill for impairment and recorde,d a pretax impairment
charge of $190.0 million ($186.6 million after-tax) related to Baja Fresh. The Company, with the assistance of an
indepéndent third- -party, determined the amount of the charge-based on an estimate of the fair value of Baja -
Fresh, which was primarily based on comparative market data. The declining average same-store sales for Baja
Fresh both in 2004 and 2003 were a significant consideration in the determination that/the recorded value of Baja
Fresh goodwill was impaired. ‘ o

In. 2004, as a result of a contmumg trend of negatlve cash flows and poor sales performance at Baja Fresh, the
Company recognized pretax store closure and fixed asset impairment charges of $21. 7, million. Store closure
charges of $9.5 million included $4.1 million of lease termination costs and $5.4 mllhon related primarily to
fixed asset write-offs. Fixed asset impairment charges for eight markets totaled-$12.2 mllhon which were based
on fair value estimates using discounted cash flows for four of the markets and expecled reahzable value for four
of the markets to be éxited. -

Taxes

Included in 2006 discontinued operations is a net tax benefit of approximately $11.5 million to recognize the .
outside book versus tax basis differential on the sale of the stock of Baja Fresh. The $ ll .5 million represents the
tax benefit of capital losses which can be carried back. The capital loss on the sale which will be carried forward
(approximately $218 million) has a full valuation allowance associated with it. In order to utilize the capital loss
in the five-year carry forward period, the Company must generate capital gain incomc:. The Company has
reviewed various SFAS No. 109 tax planning strategies, including sale and leasebacks, which might be used to
realize the benefit of these loss carryforwards. These strategies, at this time, do not meet the “prudent and
feasible” criteria of SFAS No. 109 and accordingly the valuation allowance has been recorded.-

: . : b . .

1.
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Cafe EXEI"BSS' - 'y T ' L

In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors appro;fed t‘he'futore sate of Cafe Eiprcss which

was historically included in the Developing Brands segment. Accordingly, the results
Express are reflected as discontinued-operations for all periods presented. In addition,
Cafe Express were held for sale at December 31, 2006.and are presented as current an
liabilities from dlscontmued operations at December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006.

of operations of Cafe
the assets and liabilities of
d non current assets and




The table below presents the significant components of Cafe Express operatinyg results included in income. from

. discontinued operations for 2006, 2005 and 2004‘
; i

'

! {In thousands) ‘ S S - 2006 . 2005 " 2004
Revenues ' " ; - $32327 $3199 $30 486
Loss before income taxes - ' (13,620) (20433) (2211)
Income tax benefit , A . (5.042)  (7.433) (714
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax . - . . $ (8,578) $(13,000) . $ (1, 437)

]

The assets and liabilities of Cafe Express are reflected as discontinued operations in the Con:;olidaled Balance

Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and Janvary 1, 2006 and are comprised of the following:

T

3

(In thousands) ‘ December 31,2006 - January 1, 2006

Cash - $2,273 $'2,474 °
Accounts receivable, net ' 124 272
Inventories and other ) ! ' ' ‘ ‘315 269
Total current assets . . ) $2,712 $ 3,015
Property and equipment, net Co o . $ 350 $ 7,233
Intangible assets, net ‘ _ : . . 180 3,487
Other non current assets : 495 . 329
Total non current assets $1,025 $11,049
Accounts payable ‘ ' ' : $1,476 $ 755
Accrued Liabilities _ ' : 742 - 422
Total current liabilities , L ‘ - $2,218 $ 1177
Other non current liabilities _ ) 1,519 1,450
Total non current liabilities $1,519 -$ 1,450

Impairment Charges :

determined using a probability-based approach using discounted cash flows and market data.

Based on available market data related to Cafe Express, in the fourth quarter of 2006 in accordance with SFAS
No. 144, the Company tested fixed asset and intangible assets for impairment using the held for sale model, and
recorded Cafe Express pretax impairment charges of $4.0 million ($2.4 million after-tax). The charges were

Based on available market data retated to Cafe Express, in the third quarter of 2006 in accordance with SFAS
No. 144, the Company tested fixed asset and intangible assets for impairment using the held and used model and

performance of the Cafe Express business.

related to Cafe Express.
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recorded a pretax impairment charge of $1.8 million ($1.1 million after-tax) related to the Cafe Express trade
name and other intangible assets and $3.4 million ($2.1 million after-tax) related to certain Cafe Express fixed
assets. The Company used a probability-weighted approach based on available market data and sales !

Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and other indefinite-lived-intangibles must be tested for impairment annually (or
in interim periods if events indicate possible 1mpa1rment) In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company tested
goodwill for impairment and recorded an impairment charge of $10.7 million related to Cafe Express. The
Company determined the amount of the charge based on an estimate of the fair market value of the reporting unit
based on historical performance and discounted cash flow projections. Lower than anticipated sales levels and
lower store development expectations were the primary considerations in the determination that the recorded
goodwill value for Cafe Express was impaired. The impairment charge fully eliminated the balance of goodwnll




In 20085, a pretax asset impairment charge of $4.9 million was recorded related to an u{ld6fp€ﬂ'0rmiﬂg Cafe
Express market. The fair value of the market was determined based on the estimated salvage value of the assets.

NOTE 11 CASHFLOWS

In order to maintain comparability between periods, intercompany cash flows have been eliminated from the
appropriate cash flow lines in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows| During 2006,
intercompany cash flows were comprised of $385.6 million in net cash payments made by THI to Wendy’s and
included $960.0 million for the repayment of an intercompany note. The $960.0 millic?n payment has been
eliminated as a cash outflow from discontinued operations financing activities and as a cash inflow from
continuing operations financing activities, respectively. Intercompany cash flows alsolincluded payments made
by THI to Weridy's totaling $25.6 million in ifitercompany interest, intercompany trade payables and taxes.
These payments have been eliminated as a cash outflow from discontinued operations] operating activities and as
a cash inflow from continuing operations’ operating activities, respectively.

Intercompany cash flows for 2006 also included net cash payments from Wendy’s to ]I-}aja Fresh for $4.2 million
and $0.9 million from Wendy’s to Cafe Express for intercompany trade payables and taxes. These payments have
been eliminated as a cash outflow from continuing operations’ operating activities and as a cash inflow from
discontinued operations’ operating activities, respectively. . . ' ‘ . :

During 2005, intercompany cash flows included $51.3 million in net cash payments made by THI to Wendy's.
These included $17.9 million in cash paid by THI to Wendy’s as loans to Wendy’s, $64.7 million in cash paid by
THI to Wendy’s for the repayment of borrowings from Wendy's and $31.3 million ininet cash paid by Wendy’s
to THI comprised of intercompany interest, intercompany trade payables and taxes. As described above for the
2006 cash flows, each of these amounts was eliminated and is not reflected in the cash flow activity for
continuing operations or discontinued operations in the investing, financmg or operatmg sections of the
Company’s Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for 2005

Similarly, during 2005, Baja Fresh made net payments of $2.0 million to Wendy’s and Wendy’s made net
payments of $4.7 million to Cafe Express for intercompany trade payables and taxes that were eliminated and are
not reflected in the cash flow activity for continuing operations or discontinued operauons in cash flows from
operaung activities in the Consohdated Statement of Cash Flow for 2005. :

i . L)

During 2004, intercompany cash flows included $48.9 million in net cash payments macle by THI to Wendy's
and included $99.5 million in'cash paid by THI to Wendy’s as loans to Wendy’s, $40 5 million in cash paid by
THI to-Wendy’s for the repayment of borrowings from Wendy’s, $41.5 million in cash paid by Wendy's to THI
as loans to THI, and $49.6 million in net cash paid by Wendy’s to THI comprised of i mtercompany interest,
intercompany trade payables and taxes. As described above for the 2006 cash flows, each of these amounts was
eliminated and is not reflected in the cash flow activity for contmumg operations or d1$c0ntmucd operations in
the investing, financing or operating sections of the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for 2004,

Similarly, during 2004, Wendy’s made net payments of $26.0 million to Baja Fresh and $2.6 million to Cafe
Express for intercompany trade payables and taxes that were eliminated and are not réflected in the cash flow
activity for continuing operations or discontinued operations in the operating section.! Also during 2004, Wendy's
made a payment of $13.8 million to Cafe Express for the payment of Cafe Express’ third party debt. This
payment was eliminated and is not reflected in the cash flow activity for continuing operations or discontinued
operations in cash flows from operatmg activities.

NOTE 12 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

At December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006, the Company’s reserves established for doubrful royalty receivables
were $3.1 million and $3.1 million, respectively. Reserves related to possible losses on notes receivable, real
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estate, guarantees, claims and contingencies involving franchiseés totaled $7.4 million and $7.4 million at
December 31, 2006 and Janwvary 1, 2006, respectively. These reserves are included in accounts receivable, notes
receivable and other accrued expenses.

The Company has guaranteed certain leases and debt payments, primarily related to franchisees, amounting to
$171.3 million for the continuing Wendy's business. In the event of default by a franchise owner, the Company
generally retains the right 10 acquire possession of the related restaurants. The Company is contingently liable for
certain leases for the continuing Wendy’s business. amounting to an additional $21.3 million. These leases have
been assigned to unrelated third parties, who have agreed to indemnify the Company against future liabilities
arising under the leases. These leases.expire-on various dates through 2022. The Company is also the guarantor
on $6.7 million in letters of credit with various parties for the continuing Wendy’s business, however, ;
management does not expect any material loss to result from these instruments because it does not believe
performance will be required. The length of the lease, loan and other arrangements guaranteed by the Company
or for which the Company is contingently liable.varies, but generally does not exceed 20 years. . :

The Company is self-insured for miost-domestic workers’ compensation, general liability and automotive liability
losses subject to per occurrence and aggregate annual liability limitations. The Company is also self-insured for
health care claims-for eligible participating employees subject to certain deductibles and limitations, The
Company determines its liability for claims incurred but not reported on an actuarial basis. -

The Company has entered into long-term purchase agreements with some of its suppliers. The range of prices
and volume of purchases under the agreements may.vary according to the Company’s demand for the products
and fluctuations in market rates. These agreements help the Company secure pricing and product availability.
The Company does not believe these agreements expose the Company to material risk.

* [

] ‘

In addition to the guarantees described above, the Company is party to many agreements executed in the ordinary
course of business that provide for indemnification of third parties, under specified circumstances, such as lessors
of real property leased by the Company, distributors, service providers for various types of services (including
commercial banking, investment banking, tax, actuarial and other services), sofiware licensors, marketing and
advertising firms, securities underwriters and others. Generally, these agreemenis obligate the Company to
indemnify the third parties only if certain events occur or claims are made, as these contingent events or claims
are defined in each of these agreements. The Company believes that the resolution of any claims that might arise
in the future, either individually or in the aggregate, would not materially affect the earnings or financial
condition of the Company. Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted FIM No. 45, “Guarantor’s
Accounting and Disclosure:Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of |
Others™. In accordance with FIN 45 and based cn available information, the Cormpany has accrued for certain
guarantees and indemnities as of December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006 which, in total, are not material.

The Company and its subsidiaries are‘par!ies to various legal actions and complilints arising in the ordinary
course of business. Many of these are covered by the Company’s self-insurance or other insurance programs.
Reserves related to the resolution of legal proceedings are included in accrued expenses other. It is the opinion of
the Company that the ultimate resolution of such n:iatters will not materially affect the Company’s financial
condition or earnings. . . , C
NOTE13 RETIREMENT PLANS .
The Compuﬁy has two domestic defined benefit plans, the account balance defined benefit pension plan (the

“ABP Plan’) and the Crew defined benefit plan (the “Crew Plan”), together referred to as the “Plans”, covering
all eligible employees of Wendy’s International, Inc. and certain subsidiaries that have adopted the Plans.

The Crew Plan discontinued employee participation and accruing additional employee benefits in 2001. In -
February 2006, the Company announced that it would freeze the ABP Plan as of December 31, 2006, Beginning
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January 1, 2007, no new participants will enter the ABP Plan, although participant account balances will continue
1o receive interest credits of approximately 6% in 2007 on existing account balances. Company benefits credited
to ABP Plan participant accounts which were historically made based on a percentage of participant salary and
years of service will no longer be made beginning January 1, 2007. Freezing of the ABP Plan was accounted for

as a curtailment in the first quarter of 2006 under SFAS No. 88, “Employers’ Accoumling for Settlements and
Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits”, and during the first quarter, the
Company recorded a $0.1 million curtailment charge related to service cost unrecogmzed prior to freezing the

ABP Plan, In the fourth quaner of 2006, the Company decided to termmate the Plans.

The Company has

requested or intends to request, termination determination letters on the Pians from the IRS and approval of the

termination by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation. Once approved the Compa
individual account balances or purchase annuities to settle the account balances.

ny intends to distribute -

The change in the projected benefit obhgatlon for the Plans for 2006 and 2005 consisted of the following:

(In thousands) B ' L - ' 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year I R $108,179 . § 96,811
Service cost : 6,034 5,570
Interest cost 5,767 5,639
Assumption change . 0 7,014
Actuarial loss—related to freezing the ABP Plan 11,669 1,549
Curtailments—related o freezing the ABP Plan (10,419) 0
‘Settlements (11,376) 0
Benefits and expenses paid (9,539) (8,404)

$100,315  $108,179

The change in fair value of plan assets for each year consisted of the following:

(tn thousands) s 2006 .. 2005
Balance at beginning of year $108,080 3$100,436
Actual return on plan assets 8,707 ' 5,541
Company contributions 2,239 . 10,507
Settlements (11,376) "0
Benefits and expenses paid (9 539) (8,404)

$ 98 111_$108,080

'The reconciliation of the funded status to the net amount recogmzed in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at each

year-end consisted of the following:

(In thousands) 2006 2005
Funded status ' ' ' i $(2,203) ' (98)
Unrecognized actuarial loss 36,244 43,406
Unrecognized prior service cost -0 (323

Prepaid benefit cost

$34,041 $42,985

In accordance with SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions”, the Company recorded'a pi‘etax' :
minimum pension liability of $36.2 million ($22.5 million after tax) through other comprehensive income at

December 31, 2006.

1 . .
In accordance with the transition disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans- an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106,
and 132R ", the Company has determined that the incremental effect of applying SFAS No. 158 at December 31,

2006 was to reduce both the prepaid pension asset and the long-term pension liability
prepaid pension asset was included in other assets and the long-term pensmn liability i
term liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. .
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The amount recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income consists of: !

2006

(In thousands) . L . -

Unfunded liability, net of tax of $833- ' . . ' : $ (1,370)
Prepaid benefit cost, net of tax of $12,865 - - '~ e i . {21,176)
Accumulated other comprehensive iricome (expense), net of tax ‘ Lo $(22,546)

Other comprehensive income for each of the last three years included the folllow'{ing income (expeﬂse), net of tax:

*

{In thousands) : . C S : : 2006 2005 2004
Pension liability C Lo $(21,450) $(183) $105
Net periodic pensioﬁ cost (credit) for each of tile last three yéars consisted of the following: ' l'

(In thousands) . . ' _ 2006 2005 . 2004
Service cost $ 6034 $5570 $5,002
Interest cost ‘ 5,767 5_,639 ' 5,067
Expected return on plan assets {8,004) -(7,755) ' (7.156)
Amortization of prior service cost : S . (438) (1,067) - (1,067)
Amortization of net loss - T 3,598 3,119 . 2,438
Settlements 4,111 0 0
Curtailments _ ) _ o 115 0 0
Net periodic pension cost . L . $11,183 $ 5506 $4.284

In 2007, assuming the Plans are not terminated (sée below), the Company expects to recognize amortization of
unrecognized actuarial gains/losses of approximately $2.7 million. -

o1

Assumptions

‘Weighted-average assumptions used to determiné benefit obligations at each of the last three years:

: . , 2006 2005 2004
Discount rate - , _' L 530% . 5.50% . 6.00%
Rate of compensation increase _ N/AW  age-graded age-graded

. . scale ' scale
(1) This assumption is no longer applicable based upon the Company’s decision to freeze the Plans. ‘
!

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost at ezch of the last three years:

2006 2005 2004

Discount rate . | _ : : 550% ° 600% ° 6.00%
Expected long-term return on plan assets .o 7.75% 7.75% “1.75%
Rate of compensation increase o age-graded age-graded age-graded -

scale  scale . scale

The Plans’ measurement date was December 31st ifor each respective year.

+

The discount rates used above are determined using various market indicators and reflect the available cost:in the
marketplace of settling all pension obligations. The 5.3% discount rate was selected based upon annuity purchase
rates. Based upon the decision to freeze and subsequently terminate the Plans, the Company determined that
long-term bond rates previcusly used were no longer commensurate with the expected cash flows of the Plans.
Annuity purchase rates are more indicative of the expected return through the duration of the Plans. - ‘
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Historically, the return on plan assets was determined using the Company’s investment;mix between debt and
equity securities, which had remained relatively constant year over year, and anticipated capital market returns. .

Plans’ assets

The Plans’ assets are comprised primarily of money market funds, which are consrdered a cash equivalent. The
Plans’ weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006, by asset calegory are as
follows:

»

Plans’ Assets 2006 2005

Equity securities 3 " 0% 57%
Debt securities ) ) 0% 39%
Cash and cash equivalents " s ' ) 100 % 4%

o 100%  100%

According to the Plans’ investment policy, the Plans may only invest in debt and equitv securities and cash and
cash-equivalents. In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company moved all of the Plans’ assets from debt and equity
securities to money market funds in order to reduce investment risk and preserve the value of the assets in
anticipation.of the liquidation of the Plans.

Other retirement plans

5 ' Tl et R ] t

The Company has a domestic profit sharing and savings plan. This plan covers certain 'qualiﬁed employees as
defined in the applicable plan document. Effective January 1, 2001, the profit sharing and savings plan includes
employer participation in accordance with the provisions of Section 401 (k) of the I_ntcr'nal Revenue Code. The
plan allows participants to make pretax contributions and the Company matches betwe:en 1% and 4% of
employee contributions depending on the employee’s contribution percentage. The profit sharing portion of the
plan is discretionary and non-contributory. All amounts contributed to the plan are deposited into a trust fund
administered by an independent trustee. The Company’s matching 401(k) contributions totaled $9.2 million for
2006, $8.6 million for 2005 and $8.8 million for 2004. i

The Company also provided for other profit sharing and supplemental retirement bt:nte| its under other defined
contribution plans in the amounts of approximately $3 million, $5 million and $5 million for 2006, 2005 and
2004, respecttvely ‘

- - - o
]

Cash flows

The Company makes contributions to the Plans in amounts sufficient, on an aCtuarial basis, to fund at a
minimum, the Plans’ normal cost on a current basis, and to fund the actuarial liability f for past service costs in
accordance with Department of Treasury Regulations. "The Company may make contnbuttons ofupto $10 °
million to its pension plans in 2007 unless approval to terminate the Plans is received, | in which case the
Company may be required to make additional contributions to the Plans of up to $25 rtlulllon in order to make
required distributions to settle plan participant account balances. When the Plans are tcrmmated the Company
would expect to recognize. pretax settlement charges of $34 million to $60 rmllron

Assuming the Plans are not terminated, estimated benefit payments for the next 10 ycars which reflect expected
future service, as appropriate, are shown below, These estimates are based on htstoncal experience and are highly
dependent on certain assumptions such as future pension asset performance and the ummg of employees leaving
the Company or retiring and are subject to change. If a favorable determination letter is received from the IRS,

.0
the Company expects to fully settle plan pamcrpant accounts within 120 days of receiving such letter

o
P
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. Co SR o L benefit
{In thousands) : s ‘ L B payments
i .
2007 ' 37382
2008 - _ 8,323
2009 o R L ¥ RN B e o . 9,349
gg:? . ) L P l‘._ FIL T :‘ ' i ST P o : g;gg
Years 2012 to 2016 | i ! ‘ 54,352

. P . -1
NOTE 14 ADVERTISING COSTS AND FUNDS T
' |
The Company participates in two advertising funds establlshed to collect and edminister funds contrtbuted for
use in advertlsmg and promotional programs designed to increase sales and enhance the reputation of the '
Company and its franchise owners. Separate advertising funds are administered for Wendy’s U.S.-.and Wendy’s -
of Canada. In accordance with SFAS No. 45, “Accountmg for Franchisee Fee Revenue”, the revenue, expenses
and cash flows of the advertising funds aré'not included in the Company s Consolidated Statements of Income or
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows because the contrlbutlons to these advartising funds are desrgnated for
specific putposes, and the Compay aéts as 4n,'in substance, agent with régard to these contributions. The assets
held by these advertising funds are considered restricted. The current restricted assets and related restricted:,
liabilities are identified on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. In addition, the Wendy’s U.S. -
advertising fund has debt which is classified in cdrrent liabilities on the December 31, 2006 ("onsolrdated
Balance Sheet (see also Note 3 to the Consohdated Financial Statements). X
, [T l., Bt 4™y L P
Contributions to the advemsmg funds are requrred to be made from both company operated .md franchise |
restaurants and are based on 4 peréent of restaurant retail sales. In addition to the contributions to the varlous
advertising fuhds, Compdny and franchise restaurants make addltlonal contnbutlons for local and reglonall

advemsmgprograms S L L ' b e

T B : Co o ‘
The following table summarizes the contribution rates, as a percent of restaurant retail sales, to the advemsmg
funds for franchise and company operated units as of the end of the fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004;

I [ T T 0 t o LN | : Contribution Rate

Wendy's US. "~ ! Shewin b e ‘ ' - 3.00%
Wendy’s Canada() : - 2,75%

(1) Excluding Quebec, where all advernsmg is done locally.
Company contributions to the two adverttsmg funds totaled $85.8 million, $60.5 million and $62.4 nnlhon in
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectlvely ‘The 2006 contnbuttons mclude'd a $25.0 million contribution to Wendy s
U.S. advemsmg fund made by the Company The total amoum spent by the two advemsrng funds in 2006, 2005
and 2004 amounted to $281.3 m]]l1on $278 0 m1lllon and $263 8 mllhon respnctwely - ,
Total adverttsmg expense of the Company, net oftrermbursements for mcremental costs incurred by the Colmpany
on behalf of the advertising funds and mcludmg amounts contnbuted to all of the adverttsmg funds, local
advertising costs and other marketmg and advertising expenses, ‘amounted to $134.1 million, $99.5 million and
$101.3 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. :

[ y b e P “ ‘

NOTEIS"SEGMENTREP()'R&‘ING ey i
: o o SR C e

The Company operates exclusively in the food-serv1ce mdustry and has determmcd that its reportable segments
are those that are based on the’ Company s methods of internal reportmg and management structure. In 2006, as a
result of the spin-off of THI, sale of Baja Fresh an_d future sale of Cafe Express, the results of the previously
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disclosed Hortons and Developing Brands segments are included in discontinued Qperatlions (see Note 10 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements) and are therefore no longer included as reportable ngments of the Company.
The Company has determined that the Wendy's brand is the Company’s only remaining reportable segment.

Revenues and long-lived asset information by geographic area follows:» ;- .~

'

I Other

(In thousands) - T us. Cinada ___International Totat

2006 S - - .

Revenues. . $2,196,949 $226,502 - [$15,826 $2,439,277

Long-lived assets 1,170,609 54,329+ 1,390 1,226,328

2005 .

Revenues $2,223,030 $218,091 $14,297 $2 455 418

Long-lived assets . 1,199,957 147,080 1,437 1,348,474

Revenies - - $2,284,772 $203,572 513,814 $2,502,158

Revenues consisted of the following: . ' ' . -

(In thousands) - . - 2006 2005 - 2004

Sales: . C ’ T - ]
Sales from company operated restaurants ) $2,058,454] $2,046,592 $2,096,734
Product sales to franchisees 96,153 91,773 97,297

$2,154,607 $2;138,365 $2,194,031

Franchise revenues:
Rents and royalties o,

'

281,072) 291,179 ' 298,230

Franchise fees " " , 1,208 4449 . 4285
Net gains on sales of properties to franchisees h 2,390, 021,425 5,612
3 . . . 284,670 - 317,053 308,127

Total revenues

$2,439,277: . $2,455,418 - $2,502,158

NOTE 16 RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 158 “Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendm'ent of SFAS Nos. 87, 88,
106, and 132(R)". This statement requires the recognition of the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined
benefit postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability int its consolidated balance
sheet and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes Accur through
comprehenswe income. This statement also requires the measurement of the funded status of a plan as of the date
of the year-end consolidated balance sheet and disclosure in the notes to financial statements additional
information about certain effects on net periodic benefit cost for the next fiscal year that arise from delayed
recognition of the gains or losses, prior service costs or credits, and transition asset orlobllgatlon This statement
is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2006. As a result of SFAS No. 158, the Company reduced
both the prepaid pension asset and the long-term pension liability by $34.0 million.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 “Fair Value Measurenients™. Thi's Statement defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements, SFAS No. 157 creates consistency and comparability in fair value
measurements among the many accounting pronouncements that require fair value measurements but does
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not require any new fair value measurements. This Statement is effective for liscal years beginning after
November 15, 2006. The adopuon of SFAS No 157 is not expected to have a material impact on the Comparny's
financial statements. '

In September 2006, the SEC issued SAB No. 108 expressing the staff’s views regarding the process of
quantifying financial statement misstatements. The staff believes that in making materiality evaluations of
correcting a financial statement misstatement, management should quantify the carryover and reversing effects of
prior year misstatements on the current year financial statements. The cumulative effect of the initial application,
if any, should be reported in the carrying amount of assets and liabilities as of the beginning of the fiscal year and
the offsetting adjustme'nt to the opening balance of retained earnings. This SAB is effective for fiscal years
ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB No. 108 did not have 4 material impact on the Company 5
financial statements.

In July 2006, the FASE issued FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”, which clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with
SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. An uncertain tax position will be recognized if it is determined.
that it is'more likely than not to be sustained upon examination. The tax position is measured at the largest
amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The
cumulative effect of applying the provisions of this Interpretation is to be reported as a separate adjustment to the
opening balance of retained eamings in the year of adoption. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2006. Upon adoption, management estimates that there will not be a significant adjustment to
retained earmings for a change in reserves for uncertain tax positions and is in the process of ﬁnahzmg its
analysis.’ : _ it

NOTE 17 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 20, 2007, the Company announced it had entered into an ASR transaction with a broker-dealer to’
purchase up to $300 million of its common shares. The common shares purchased will be placed into treasury to
be used for general corporate purposes. The number of shares that the Company may repurchase pursuant to the
ASR will not be known until conclusion of the transaction, which is expected to occur during the Company’s first
quarter; however, the Company expects to repurchase up to approximately 9 million shares. The price per share
to be paid by the Company will be determined by reference to the weighted average price per share actually paid
by the broker-dealer to purchase shares during a hedge period expected to be approximately one month, subject
to a cap and a floor. The ASR agreement includes the option to settle the contract in cash or shares of the
Company’s common stock and, accordingly, the contract will be classified in equity.
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Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None,

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures L ) i

(a) The Company, under the supervision, and with the participation, of its management, including its Chief
Executive Officer and Generat Controller, performied an evaluation of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures, as contemplated by Securities Exchange Act rule 13a-15. Based on that evaluation, the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and General Controller concluded, as ‘of the end of the period covered by this report, that
such disclosure controls and procedures were effective. : .

(b) In Item 8 above, management provided a report on internal control over financial reporting, in which
management concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2006. In addition, PncewatcrhouseCoopers LLP, the Company’s independent registered pubhc
accounting firm, provided an attestation report on management’s assessment of internal control over financial
reporting. The full text of managcment s report and PricewaterhouseCooper's attestation report appear at

pages 38 through 40 herein.

(c) No change was made in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during thelCom'pany‘s' fost
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s .
internal control over financial reporting. '

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

.
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PART Il

Items 10, 11,'12, and 13. ' Directors and Executive Officers and Corporate Govemance, Executive
Compensation; Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder
Matters; and Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by these Items, other than the information set forth below, is incorporated hereinby .
reference from the Company’s 2007 Proxy Statement, which will be filed no later than 120 days after

December 31, 2006. However, no information set forth,in the 2007 Proxy Statement regarding the Audit
Committee Report or the performance graph shall be deemed incorporated by reference.into this Form 10-K.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT " »
Name oy E : Posmon with Company . . o Qfficer Since

Kerrii B. Anderson * . 49  Chief Executive Officer and President . . 2000
David . Near 37 Chief Operations Officer - . <o 2006
Jonathan F. Catherwood 45 Executive Vice President and Treasurer . _ 2001
Jeffrey M. Cava 55 Executive Vice President’ w 2003
Leon M. McCorkle; Ir. 66 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary ‘ 1998
Ian B. Rowden ‘ 47 Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer . 2004
Brendan P. Foley, Jr. - 47 Semor Vice President, General Controller and Assistant Secretary 2004

+

No arrangements or understandings eXist pursuant to which any person has been, or is to be, selected as an
officer, except in the event of a change in control of the Company, as provided in the (Fompany’s Key Executive
Agreements. The executive officers of the Company are appointed by the Board of Directors. ’

Mrs. Anderson joined the Company in 2000 as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Prior to
joining thé Company, Mrs. Anderson had held the titles of Senior Vice President and Chlef Financial Officer of
M/1 Schottenstein Homes, Inc. since 1987. She was also Secretary of M/l Schottenslem Homes, Inc. from 1987
to 1994 and Assistant Secretary from 1994 until she joined the Company. She was named interim Chief
Executive Officer and President on April 17, 2006 and Chief Executive Officer and President on November 9,
2006.

Mr. Near joined the Company in 2006 as Chief Operations Officer. He has been a co-owner of Pisces Foods, L.P.
since 1995. Pisces Foods is a franchisee of 29 Wendy's restaurants in Austin, Texas. Upon joining the Company,
Mr. Near relinquished the management functions of Pisces Foods to his brother, but rémained a co-owner of the
franchised company. He also served as president of Wendy’s Franchise Advisory Couneil for two years prior to
assuming his current position.

Mr. Catherwood joined the Company in 2001 as Senior Vice President, Mergers and Acquisitions. In 2002,
Mr. Catherwood was named Executive Vice President, Mergers, Acquisitions and Buémess Integration.

Mr. Catherwood was named Treasurer of the Company in July 2004, Prior to joining the Company, he was a
partner at the Windsor Group, LLC from 1998 until 2001.

Mr. Cava joined the Company in 2003 as Executive Vice President, Human Resources Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Cava was a human resources consultant with JMC Consulting LLC from 2001 until 2003. From
1996 to 2001, Mr. Cava was Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer for NIKE, Inc.

Mr. McCorkle joined the Company in 1998 as Senior Vice President and General Counse] He was also named .
Secretary of the Company in 2000. In 2001, Mr. McCorkle was named Executive Vice President. Prior to joining
the Company, he was a senior partner of Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP.

Mr. Rowden joined the Company in 2004 as Executive Vice President and Chief Marketmg Officer. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Rowden held the titles of Executive Vice President and Chref Marketing Officer at
Callaway Golf from 2000 until 2004. He also sérved as Vice President and Director of Worldwide Advernsmg at
The Coca-Cola Company from 1995 until 2000.
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Mr. Foley joined the Company in 2003 as a director of corporate accounting, and was promoted a year later to
Vice President of Technical Compliance and Consolidations. He was named to his current positton in 2006. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Foley was with Borden Foods for 12 years, last serving as Vice President and
Assistant Generat Controller. L

Other ~ - ! et 0o :

. .
* b
. i

The Board of Directors has adoptéd and approved Principles of Governance, Governance Guidelines, the
Standards of Business Practices, a Code of Business Conduct (applicable to'directors) and written charters for its
Nominating and Corporate Govemnance, Audit and Compensauon Committees. In addition, the Audit Committee
has adopted a written Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy with respect to audit ‘and non-audit services to be
performed by the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm."All of the foregoing documents are
available on the Company’s investor website at www.wendys-invest.com and a copy of the foregoing will'be .
made available (without charge) to any shareholder upon request. ..

) .4 - P T !

Item 14,  Principal Accounting Fees and Services PR

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information under the headings
“Audit Committee” and “Audit and Other Servicé Fees” in the Company s 2007 Proxy Statement, which will be
filed no later than 120 days after December, 31, 2006.

‘ , .
‘ ' . i . 1 R '
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PARTIV J

Item 15,

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(1

fF

{a) (1)and (2)-———'I‘he following Consclidated Fmancral Stalemems of Wendy s lntemamonal< Inc. and
Subsidiaries, included in Item 8 herein. ~

(3)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Management’s Report on Intérnal Conitrol Over Financial Repotting.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

S
4

v

;o
Wi

LI

'
I

NN

Consolidated Statements of Income—Years ended December 31 2006 January 1, 2006 and January 2,

2005.

Consolidated Balance Sheéts—December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2006

t

Y

3 t
1

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—Years ended December 31, 2006, January l 2006 and

January 2, 2005.

F I

i :\"

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity—Years ended December 31, 2006, January 1, 2006

and January 2, 2005.

2006 and January 2, 2005. . e .

o1 S [

Listing of Exhibits—See Index t6 Exhibits.

-

.Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income—Years ended December 31, 2006, January 1,

!

The following management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements are required to be filed as

exhibits to this report:

Deferred Compensation Plan.

First Amendment to Deferred Compensation Plan.

Second Amendment to Deferred Compensation Plan.
Third Amendment to Deferred Compensation Plan.
Fourth Amendment to Deferred Compensation Plan.
Senior Executive Annual Performance Plan.

Executive Annual Performance Plan, as amended.
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan.

First Amendment td Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan.
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan No. 2.

1990 Stock Option Plan, as amended.

WeShare Stock Option Plan, as amended.

2003 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated.
Sample Restricted Stock Award Agreement.

Sample Formula Restricted Stock Award Agreement.
Sample Formula Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement.

Sample Stock Unit Award Agreement (ratable vesting).
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(b)
(©)

Sample Stock Unit Award Agreement (cliff vesting). . _ L

Sample 2006 Performance Share Award Agreement!

Sample Indemnification Agreement between the Company and each of Messrs. Keller, Kirwan, Lauer,
Levin, Lewis, Mlllar Oran Pickett, Rothschild, Thompson and Mses. Anderson, Crane and Hill.

Sample Indemnification Agregment for officers and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Sample Restated Key Executive Agreement between the Company and Messrs. Catherwood, Cava,
Foley, McCorklc Near, Rowden and Mrs. Anderson.

' Agreement with David Near. - .
Form of Retention letter entered into wjth Messrs. Catherwood and Cava.
Interim CE’Q R.etentigp Agreement with Kerrii B. Anderson (now superseded).

Employment Agreement with Kerrii B. Anderson.
I Sy, ‘. | N
Exhibits filed with this report ar:a listed in the Index to Exhibits beginning on page 87.

The following Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule of Wendy's International, Inc. and Subsidiaries is
included in Item 15(¢c): [I—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. .

» . . 0 . . . ) ' b . . I3 ) .
Ali other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission are not required under the related mstructlons are mapphcahle or the
information has been disclosed elsewhere.

'.:'ﬂl'l'l‘ . ' i ’ ! i A A , \
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Signatures

'

Pursuant to the requlremems of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly ‘caused [hlS report to be’ 51gned on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

13

- - -— - . - FR— -

WENDY’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. ©

, R By: /s/ KERRII B. ANDERSON " 31007

Kerrii B. Anderson
-0 ’ Chief Executive Officer and
President S PO | Lo

-’ . * ’

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secunnes Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
followmg persons on behalf of the Reglstranl and in the capacities and on the dates md cated.

[

o . 0 v
[ - .

/s/ KERRII B"ANDERSON - < 30107 /s/ BRENDANP.FOLEYJR. ' 311707
Kerrii B. Anderson, Chief Executive ) Brendan P.'Foley, Jr., Seni%)r Vice President, ' ‘,'
Officer and President, Director ~ . . General Controller and Assistant Secretary
/s/ ANN B. CRANE* 3/1/07  /s/ JANET HILL* T 307
Amn B. Crane, Director .~ - " - - . .= ' Janet Hill, Director e Bk
/s' THOMASF.KELLER* 3107 /s/ WILLIAM E. KIRWAN* 37
Thomas F. Keller D1rector LT William E. Kirwan, Directlor

TR - ' i ’
s/ DAV[D P.LAUER* 3/1/07 /s/ JERRY W, LEVIN* 341007
David P. Lauer, Dlrector., Jerry W. Levin, Director o '
lsr’ J. RANDOLPH LEWIS* 3/1/07 /s/ JAMES F. MILLAR* 3/1/07
J. Randolph Lewis, Director James F. Millar, Director
/st STUART L ORAN* 3/1/07 /s/ JAMES V. PICKETT* 37107
Stuart 1. Oran, Director James V. Pickett, Chairman of the Board
/s/ PETER H. ROTHSCHILD* 3/1/07 /s/ JOHN R. THOMPSON* 3/1/07
Peter H. Rothschild, Director John R. Thompson, Direcllor

*By: /s/ KERRII B. ANDERSON 3/1/07
Kerrii B. Anderson
Attorney-in-Fact
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WENDY’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS (in thousands)*

' 'y Charged : .
Balance at  (Credited) . Balance at
! i Beginning to Costs & Additions End of -
Classification of Year Expenses  (Deductions) (a) Year
Fiscal year ended Df:ccmber 31, 2006:
Reserve for royalty receivables $3,143 $ 364 $ (371)  $ 3,136
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance: 0 81,000 0 81,000
" Reserve for franchise reccwables 5,797 1,897 (911) 6,783
o L $8,940 $83,261 $(1,282) $90,919
Fiscal year ended January 1, 2006: '
Reserve for royalty receivables $2880 $ 370 $ (107) $ 3,143
Deferred tax asset vaiuation allowance ' 0 0" ) o 0
“Reserve for franchlse recewables : 3,882 2,440 (525 . 5797
' , $6,762 % 2,810 $ (632) $ 8,940
Fiscal year ended January 2, 2005: o o
. Reserve for royalty receivables $2814 % 272 $ (206) $,2.880
Deferred tax asset valuation ajlowance S0 0 .0 \ 0
Reserve for fl‘aﬂChISC recewables . 2,132 2,177 (427) 3,882
$4946 $ 2449 $ (633) $ 6,762

*  Amounts represent continuing operations only.
(a) Primarily represents reserves written off or reversed due to the resolution of certain fram.hlse sitvations. -

Year-end balances are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as follows:

L 2o

Deducted from accounts receivable
Deducted from notes receivable—current -

Deducted from notes receivable—long-term -
Component of deferred tax liability—long-term

P

£

86

December 31, January 1,
t 2006 2006 -

.Jaﬂuary 2,

* 2005

$ 4,756 $4978  §5.171
1,673 836 331
- 3,490 3,126 1,260,
81,000 "0 0

$90,919 $8,940

$6,762
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WENDY’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Exhibit  Description Where found
3(a) Articles of Incorporation, as amended to date Incorporated herein by rv:i:ference from Exhibit 3(a)
‘ of Form 10-K for the year ended January 3, 1999,
) New Regulations, as amended Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 3 of
.o - Form 10-Q for the quarler ended March 31, 2002,
*4(a)  Indentire between the Company and Bank One, Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 4(i)
National Association, pertaining to 6.25% Senior  of Form 10-K for the year ended December 30,
Notes due November 15, 2011 and 6.20% Senior 2001. o . '
Notes due June 15, 2014 sl
(b) Amended and Restated Rights Agreement between Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 1 of
the Company and American Stock Transfer and Amendment No. 2 to Form 8-A/A Registration
Trust Company Statement, File No. 1- 8116, filed on December 8,
' o 1997.
() Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Incorporated he_rein by reference from Exhibit 2 of
Rights Agreement between the Company and Amendment No. 3 to Form 8-A/A Registration
. American Stock Transfer and Trust Company Statement, File No. 1-8116, filed on January 26,
2001. _ _
(d) Wendy’sllntematiorral, Inc. Deferred [ncorporéted herein by teference from Exhibit 4{d)
Compensation Plan of Form $-8, File No. 333- 109952, filed on
_ October 24, 2003. ;
(e) First Amendment to Wendy’s International, Inc. Incorporated herein by 1|eference from Exhibit 4(e)
Deferred Compensation Plan of Form 10-K for the year ended December 28,
) . .. . 2003. , .
H Second Amendment to Wendy’s International, Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 4 of
Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan _Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 26,
) ' . 2004,
(3] Third Amendment to Wendy’s International, Inc. Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 4 of
Deferred Compensation Plan Form 8-K filed March 10 2005.
(h) Fourth Amendment to Wendy’s Intemauonal Inc. Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 4 of
Deferred Compensation Plan : Form 8-K filed December 20, 2005.
i) Notice Requirement Relating to the 2007 Annual - Attached hereto.
Meeting of Sharcholders '
10(a) Sample Restated Key Executive Agreernent Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit

between the Company and Messrs. Catherwood,
Cava, Foley, McCorkle, Near, Rowden, and
Mrs. Anderson '

10(a) of Form 10-K forI the year ended January 3,
1999,

*  Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are party to any other instrument with respect to long-term debt for
which securities authorized thereunder exceed 10% of the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries
on a consolidated basis. Copies of instruments with respect to long—term debl of ]esser amounts will be
furnished to the Commission upon request. '
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(b) Assignment of Rights Agreement between the
Company and Mr. Thomas

~(c) - Senior-Executive Annual Performance Plan

. v A T R

(d), . Executive Annual Performance Plan, as amended

(e) Supplemental Executive Retiremient Plan”

I ' o T

. i o ’

63)] First Amendment to Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan

(g)" ' .Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan No, 2 +°
() - 1990 Stock Optlon Plan as amended

@  WeShare Stock Option Plan, as ameénded '
. .\" P 5 O :
il
6)] Sample Indemnification Agreement between the
Company and each of Messs. Keller, Kirwan,
Lauer, Levin, Lewis, Millar, Oran, Pickett,

Rothschild, Thompson and Mses. Anderson, Crane

and Hill - .r Coe tS et b
(k) - 2003 Stock Incentive Plan; as a'r'nende'd” and
restated

L A Yo 4 s . - ot ' 1 I
m * Sample Restricted Stock' Award Aéreer'nent
'l..l 4. o - R I ' i
(m) Sample Formula Resmcted Stock Award
Agreement L : Cer o N

L NI

(n) Sample Formula Restricted Stock-Unit Award
Agreement .

(o) . Sample Stock Unrt Award Agreement (ratable
vesting) ’ 4

(p) Sample 2006 Performance Share Award
Agreemem B -

Lt - Lo are o et

()] lSarnple Stock Umt Award Agreement (clrff
vesting)

(r) Sample Indemnification Agreement for officers
and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries
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. Attached hereto, .+ ' BT

. Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit .

10(c) of Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, Z000.

Incorporated herein by reference from’Annex B'to-
.the Company’s Definitive 2002 Proxy Statement,
* dated March 5, 2002.

Attached hereto.

Incorporated herein by referenice r‘rom Exhibit

., 10(f) of Form 10-K for the year ended

December 29, 2002.

Attached hereto.

Incorporated herein by referencé from E)rhibit
10(c) of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
October 1, 2006,

Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit
10(1) of Form'10-K for the : year ended
December 28, 2003.

Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10
of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 29, 2003.

L ek

Incorporated herzin by reference from Exhibit
1{f) of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 2,

-2006. -

Incorporated'hen,in by reference from Exhibit
10(p) of Form 10-K for the year ended January 2,
2005.

" Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit
" .. 10(b) of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 2,

2006. ‘“© o

Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit

10(c) of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 2,

2006. , .

. Incorporated herein oy reference from Exhibit |
. 10(d) of Form 10-Q for-the quarter ended April 2,

2006. .

) Incorporaled herein by reference from Exhibit
'10¢e) of Form 10 Q for the quarter ended Apnl 2,

2006.

g R ' "". . »l-

' 'Attached hereto. : S

Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10

of Form 8-K filed July 12, 2005.




(s)

®
(u)
)

(w)
(x)
4]
(z)
21
23

24
31(a)

L)
32(a)

32(b)
99

Agreement Among the Company, Trian Fund
Management, L.P. and Certain Affiliates and
Sandell Asset Management Corp. and Certain
Affiliates dated March 2, 2006 .

Retirement Agreement of John T. Schuessler

Interim CEO Retention Agreement with Kerrii B.
Anderson {(now superseded by Exhibit 10(z) )

Agreement with David Near

-

Settlement Agreement and Release with John M.
Deane

Form of Retention Letter entered into with Messrs.
Catherwood and Cava

Stock Purchase Agreement related to Baja Fresh
Mexican Grill

Employment Agreement with Kerrii B. Anderson
Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Powers of Attomey

Rule 13a-14(a)15d-14(a) Certification of Chief
Executive Officer

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Cemﬁcatlon of General

Controller

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive
Officer

Section 1350 Certification of General Controller

Safe Harbor under the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act 1995

29

Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit
10(v) of Form 10-K for the year ended January I,
2006. ’

Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit
10(a) of Form 10- Q for the quarter ended April 2,

© 2006.

Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit
10(a) of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
October 1, 2006.

Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit
10(d) of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
October 1, 2006.

Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10
of Forth 8-K filed June 6, 2006.

Incorporated herein by reference from Exh1b1t 10
of Form 8-K filed June 12 2006.

Attached hereto.

Attached hereto.
Attached hereto.
Attached hereto.
Attached hereto.
Attached hereto.

Attached hereto.
Attached hereto.

Attached hereto.
Attached hereto.




Exhibit 4(i)

]

Notice Requirement Relatmg to the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders . '

The Board of Directors has adopted the following requirement which is- dpphcable to the 2007 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders of the Company. Any shareholder that intends to propose a nomination of a director
candidate or otherwise submit any proposal relating to the composition of the Board of Directors for
consideration at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders must notify the Corporate Secretary of such nomination or
proposal in writing by no later than the close of business on March 15, 2007 in order to be considered tnmely and
appropriate for consideration by the shareholders at the Annual Meeting, The notice should contain all
information concerning any such nominee that would be required to be included in a proxy statement relating to
any solicitation of proxies with respect to such nominee by the shareholder and the text of any such proposal; the
name and address, as they appear in the Company’s books, of the shareholder; the number of common shares of°
the Company that are beneficially owned by the sharecholder; and any material interest of the shareholder in such
business. Written notice must be sent to: Corporate Secretary, P.O. Box 256, Dublin, Ohio 43017-0256. No'
matter will be submitted to vote at the Annual Meeting if written notice has not been given 1o the Corporate
Secretary by such date. No other business other than that st forth in the formal notice of the meeting shall be
considered timely for consideration at the 2007 Annual Meelil}g.
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I, Kerrii B. Anderson, certify that:
1.

2.

Exhibit 31(a)

Certifications

o

.1

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Wendy’s'[lilema'tional, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of 2 material fact or omit to
staté a material fact necessary to maKe thc statements made, in light of the c1rcumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial i'n'formation included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of] operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; :

The reglstrant s other certifying officer and I are responsibte for establlshmg and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15(e) and 15d- lS(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 133-15(1’) and 15d-15(D)) for
the registrant and have:

‘a) Designed such disclosure controls and’ procedures, or caused'such disclosure controls and

‘ procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensuie that matenal,mformauon relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsididries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particalarly during the period in which this report is being prepared; !

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to'be deqigned under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finhncial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting’ ‘principles;

" ¢) ~Evaluatéd the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

" this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and -

d) Disclosed in this fepori any change in the registrant’s internal control 6|Jer'ﬁnancial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registranlt’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reportifig; and * o

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent'evaluation of

- internal control ‘over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commlttee of the

registrant’s board of directors (or pérsons performing the equivalent functidns).

a) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
‘over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affectjthe registrant’s ability to
record, process, sumnarize and report financial information; and * '

‘b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or otherjemployees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. =~

Date: March 1, 2007 .

e /s/ KERRII B. ANDERSON

' ? e Name: Kerrii B.= Andersorl'l
Title: Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31(b)

Certifications

I, Brendan P. Foley, Jr., certify that:

1.
.2

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Wendy's International, Inc.;

]

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a matenal fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respegt to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, zesults of operations and cash
flows of the regisirant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disq'losure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

4

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures; as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

.4 Disclosed in this report any change in the registrani’s internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ablllty to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 1, 2007

/s/ BRENDAN P. FOLEY, JR.

t Name: Brendan P. Foley, Jr.
! Title: General Controller




Certification of CEQ Pursuant to”
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 32(a)

This certification is provided pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and accompanies the annual teport on Form 10-K (the “Form 10-K”) for the- year :

ended December 31, 2006 of Wendy’s International, Inc. (the “Issuer”). -

1, Kerrii B. Anderson, the Chief Executive Officer of Issuer certify that, to the best of my knowledge: -

(i) the Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a)_or section 15(d) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a) or 780(d)); and

(ii) the information contairied in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all malena
condition and results of operations of the Issuer, et

Dated: March 1, 2007

. ' ts/ KERRII B. ANDERSON

respects, the financial

v .I-

teo o Name: Kerrii B. Anderson

A signéd original of this'written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Wendy'’s Intematlonal
Inc. and will be retained by Wendy’s International, Inc. and furnished to the Secuntles and Exchange ’

Commission or its staff upon request.

N [ )




Exhibit 32(b)

Certification of General Controller Pursuant to - . "
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

This certiﬁca_tion is provided pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and accompanies the annual report on Form 10-K (the “Form 10-K”) for the year
ended December 31, 2006 of Wendy’s International, Inc. (the “Issuer™).

I, Brendan P. Foley, Jr., the General Controller of Issuer certify that, to the best of my knowledge:,

(i) the Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or sectlon 15(d) of the -
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a) or 780(d)}; and

. (ii} the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Issuer.

Dated: March 1, 2007

k . /sf BRENDAN P. IFOLEY, JR.

- Name: Brendan P. Foley, Ir.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Wendy's International,
Inc. and will be retained by Wendy's International, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.




Exhibit 99

Safe Harbor Under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 -

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”) provides a “safe harbor’ for forward-looking
stalements to encourage companies to provide prospective information, so long as'thost:I statements are identified
as forward-looking and are accompanied by meaningful cautionary statements identifying important factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those discussed in the statement. Wendy's International, Inc.
(the “Company”) desires to take advantage of the “safe harbor” provisions of the Act. .| . - ' B
Certain information in this annual report on Form 10-K, particularly information regarding future economic '
performance and finances, and plans, expectations and objectives of management, is forward looking. The
following factors, in addition to other possible factors not listed, could affect the Compény’s actual results and
cause such results to differ materially from those expressed in forward-looking statements: '

Competition. The quick-service restaurant industry is intensely competitive-with respect to price, service, )
location, personnel and type and quality of food. The Company and its franchisees compete with international,
regional and local organizations primarily through the quality, variety and value perception of food products
offered. The number and location of units, quality and speed of service, attractiveness of facilities, effectiveness
of advertising and marketing programs, and new product development by the Company' and its competitors are
also important factors. The Company anticipates that intense competition will continue/to focus on pricing.
Certain of the Company’s competitors have substantially larger marketing budgets. S
Economic, Market and Other Conditions. The quick-service restaurant industry is affected by changes in
international, national, regional, and local economic conditions, consumer preferences and spending patterns,
demographic trends, consumer perceptions of food safety, weather, traffic patterns, the type, number and location
of competing restaurants, and the effects of war or terrorist activities and any governmental responses thereto. -
Factors such as inflation, food costs, labor and benefit costs, legal claims,.and the avail:ability ‘of management and
hourly employees also affect restaurant operations and administrative expensés. The ability of the Company and
its franchisees to finance new restaurant developmeht, improvements and additions to existing restaurants, and
the acquisition of restaurants from, and sale of restaurants to franchisees is affected by economic conditions,
including interest rates and other government policies impacting land and construction|costs and the cost and

availability of borrowed funds. : . . S

- . . . i . - E i ,
Importance of Locations. The success of Company and franchised restaurants is depenldent in substantial part on
location. There can be no assurance that'current locations will continue to be atuactivcr as demographic patterns
change. It is possible the.neighborhood or economic conditions where restaurants are located could decline in the

future, thus resulting in potentially reduced sales in those locations. Ca

Government Regulation. The Company and its franchisees are subject to various federal, state, and local laws
affecting their business. The development and operation of restaurants depend to a significant extent on the
selection and acquisition of suitable sites, which are subject to zoning, land use, envirgnental, traffic, and other
regulations. Restaurant operations are also subject to licensing and regulation by state :and local'departments
relating to health, sanitation and safety standards, federal and state labor laws (including applicable minimum
wage requirements, overtime, working and safety conditions, and citizenship requirements), federal and state
laws which prohibit discrimination and other laws regulating the design and operation of facilities, such as the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Changes in these laws and regulations, particularly increases in
applicable minimum wages, may adversely affect financial results. The operation of the Company’s franchisee
system is also subject to regulation enacted by a number of states and rules promulgati:d by the Federal Trade
Commission. The Company cannot predict the effect on its operations, particularly on its relationship with
franchisees, of the future enactment of additional legislation regulating the franchise r[elationship. The
Company’s financial results could also be affected by changes in applicable accounting rules.




Growth Plans. The Company plans to increase the number of systemwide restaurants open of under construction.
There can be no assurance that the Company or its franchisces will be able to achieve growth objectives or that
new restaurants opened or acquired will be profitable.

The opening and success of restaurants depends on various factors, including the identification and availability of
suitable and economically viable locations, sales levels at existing restaurants, the negotiation of acceptable lease
or purchase terms for new locations, permitting and regulatory compliance, the ability to meet construction
schedules, the financial and other development capabilities of franchisees, the ability of the Company to hire and-
train qualified management personnel, and general economic and business conditions. oo .

International Operations. The Company’s business outside of the United States is subject to a number of
additional factors, including international economic and political conditions, differing cultures and consumer
preferences, currency regulations and fluctuations, diverse government reguiations and tax systems, uncertain or
differing interpretations of rights and obligations in connection with international franchise agreements and the
collection of royalties from international franchisees, the availability and cost of land and construction costs, and
the availability of experienced management, appropriate franchisees, and joint venture partners. Although the
Company believes it has developed the support structure required for international growth, there is no assurance
that such growth will occur or that international operations will be profitable. .

Disposition of Restaurants. The disposition of company operated restaurants to new or existing franchisees is part
of the Company’s strategy to develop the overall health of the sysiem by acquiring restaurants from, and |
disposing of restaurants to, franchisees where prudent. The realization of gains from future dispositions of ..
restaurants depends in part on the ability of the Company to complete disposition transactions on acceptable
terms. a1 N . -

. ! ’ * . A
Transactions to Improve Return on Investment. The sale of real estate previously leased to franchisees is .
generally part of the program to improve the Company’s return on invested capital. There are various reasons
why the program might be unsuccessful, including changes in economic, credit market, real estate market or.
other conditions, and the ability of the Company to complete sale transactions on acceptable terms and at or near
the prices estimated as attainable by the Company. :

o b . T . J ] . .
Mergers, Acquisitions and Other Strategic Transactions. The Company intends to evaluate potential mergers,
acquisitions, joint venture investments, alliances, vertical integration opportunities and divestitures as part of its
strategic planning initiative. These transactions involve various inherent risks, including accurately assessing the
value; future growth potential, strengths, weaknesses, contingent and other liabilities and potential profitability of
acquisition candidates; the potential loss of key personnel of an acquired business; the Company’s ability to ..
achieve projected economic and operating synergies; and unanticipated changes in business and economic

conditions affecting an acquired business. . .

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date
thereof. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly release any revisions to the forward-looking
statements contained in this annual report on Form 10-K, or to update them to reflect events or circumstances
occurring after the date of this annual report on Form 10-K, or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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Certain information contained in

.this summary annual report,

particularly information regarding

-« future economic perforrmance and.
. finances, and plans, expectations
- and objectives of management, is

forward locking. Factors set forth in
our Safe Harbor under the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995, in addition to other possuble
factors not listed, could affect the.
Company’s actual results and cause
such results to differ materially from
.those expressed in forward-looking

" statements. Please review the -
Company’s Safe Harbor statement at
www.wendys-invest.com/safeharbor.
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CEO and CFO Certifications °

|
Kern'iB] Anderson, Chief Executive
Officer and President, and Brendan P.

- Foley, Jr Senior Vice President and

Genaral Controller, have issued the'

camﬁcatrons required by Sections 302 .

and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley. Act of
2002 and applicable Securities and
Exchange Commission regulations -
with respect to the Company's 2006
AnnuaJ Report on Form 10-K. The full
text of|the certifications are set forth in
Exhibits 31 and 32 to the Company's,

2006 f\nnual Report on, Form 10-K. --

. In addition, Mrs. Anderson submitted

her annual certification to the'New”
York Stock Exchange (NYSE)on !
May 18 2006 statung that she was -
not aware of any violation by the -
Company of the NYSE's corporate
governance listing standards, as
requmad by Section 303A.12(a) of the
NYSE Listed Company Manual.
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Corboréfe and Shareholder Information

Wendy's International, Inc,

Stack Symbal/Exchange: WEN (NYSE)

NYSE

Corporate Offices

Wendy's International, Inc.
One Dave Thomas Boulevard
Dublin, Chio 43017-0256
{614) 764-3100

Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Columbus, Chio

Legal Counsel

Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP
Columbus, Ohio

Common Shares

Wendy's shares ars traded primarily
on the New York Stock Exchange.
Options in Wendy's shares are

traded on the Pacific Stock Exchange.

General Infoermation
Consumer inquiries:
(614) 764-3100
Media ?nquiries:
General:
. Denny Lynch R
SVP, Communications
{614) 764-3413.7 . L
Marketing and Product:
Bob Bertini .
Director, Consumer Commumcatlons
(614) 764- 3327
Franchise i mqumeS'

U.S. & Canada = (614} 764-8434
International = (614) 764-8434

Corporate and Brand Web sites:
www, wendys-mvest com b
WWW, wendys com

Annual Meeting -

The 2007 Annual Meetlng ‘of Shareholders
of Wenay's international, Inc. will be held
at 8:00 a.m., April 26, 2007, at the.
Company's Corporate Headquarters,
Ore Dave Thomas Boulevard (4288 Wast
Dublin- Gran\nlle Road), Dubhn Ohio
4301 ? .

-
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' Wendys Wonderful Kids and design and Dave Thomas Foundation for
¥ _:Adoption and design are registered trademarks of Oldemark LLC and are

.ﬂ:qe_nsed to the Dave Thomas Foundation for Adoption.
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Shareholders are invited to attend, but
must present an admission ticket or other
evidence of stock ownership ag of

March 5, 2007, and a government-issued
picture identification to enter the mesting.
More details about the admission
requirements are described in the
Company's 2007 Proxy Statement.

“Investors Choice” Dividend
Reinvestment, Direct Stock Purchase
and Sale Plan )

For information or enroliment in the
Investors Choice Plan, contact American
Stock Transfer & Trust Company:
Internet: www.InvestPower.com
Telephone: (877) 681-8121 {toll free)
Mail: See address under Transfer Agent
& Registrar -

Market Price
of Common Stock

2006 High Low  Close

1Q $6635 $5390 $62.06
20 $6365 $56.25 $58.29
3Q $6719 §5754 $67.00
4Q $3595 $31.75 $33.09
2008 High Low Close

1Q $4115 $3673 $39.15
2Q $4850 $3804 $47.64
3Q $5362 $4358 $45.15
4Q $56.40 $43.88 $55.26

Note: On Septerber 29, 20086, the
Company distributed 1,.3542759 shares of
Tim Hortons Inc. (TH)) common stock for
each outstanding share of Wendy's-
common stock in the fomm of a pro rata
stock dividend. See the disclosures in the
Company’s Annuat Report on Form 10-K
for more information.

The following shows the fourth quarter
2006 high, low and close THI share values
added to the above fourth quarter 2006
Wendy's share values, adjustung for the

1. 3542759 ratio.

2006 - _High Low

Close
4O0WENS$ 3595 $31.75 3$33.09
C4AQTHL $41.97  $3467 $30.22
$77.92 $66.42 $72.31

e ey

Dividend History

In February, 2007, Wendy's announced a
47% increase in its annual dividend rate
from $0.34 cents per share to $0.50
cents per share beginning with the May,
2007 quarterly dividend payment. The
quarterly dividend will increase to $0.125
per share from $0.085. Wendy's has paid
116 consecutive quarterly dividends, as
of February 27, 2007.

Debt Rating {as of March 5: 2007)
Standard & Poors: BB+ '
Moody’s: Ba2

tnvestor Contacts

Analysts, portfolio managers
and financial media:

John Barker

(614) 764-3044

Fax: (14) 766-3775
john_barker@wendys.com
David Poplar _

(614) 764-3547 -
Fax: (614) 766-3775
david_poplar@wendys.com

Kimberly Messner

(B14) 7684-5796

Fax: (614) 766-3775 °
kim_messner@wendys.com

Individual investors
and brokers: 1

Marsha Gordon

(614) 764-3019

Fax: (614} 766-3775
marsha_gordon@wendys.com

Shareholder Communications

The Annual Report and Proxy Statement
are generaliy maited to shareholders in
mid-March. Please visit the corporate
Web site at www.wendys-invest.com for
updates and e-mail alerts throughout the
year,

Shareholder Inquiries

Inquiries regarding address corrections,
lost certificates, dividends, direct deposit,
changes of registration, direct stock
purchase, dividend reinvestment, and
other shargholder account matters should
be directed to Wendy's transfer agent,
Armerican Stock Transfer & Trust
Company.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Arnerican Stock Transfer & Trust Company
Shareholder Services Departrnent

£9 Maiden Lane, Plaza Level

New York, NY 10038

{718) 921-8200

1-877-681-8121 (toll free)
www.amstock.com




About the back cover:

%Y DAvE THOMAS
FOUNDATION
FOrR ADOPTION®

Finding Forever Families for Children in Foster Care

" The Dave Thomas Foundation for Adoption is a
non-profit 501{c)3 public charity dedicated to
dramatically increasing the adoptions of the
.more than 130,000 children in North America’s
foster care systermns waiting tc be adopted.
Created by Wendy's founder Dave Thomas,
who was adopted as a child, the Foundation -
spearheads programs such as Wendy's

- Wonderful Kids, which puts adoption recruiters
in all 50 states and Canada to find permanent,
loving families for children in the foster care

system.

_ The Dave Thomas Foundation for Adoption is the only national foundation dedicated exclusively to foster care
adoption, and is driven by Dave's simple value: Do what's best for the child - assure that every child has a
permanent home and a loving family,
endy S

. o Wo ndErful Today there are more than 600,000 children in North America’s
foster care systems and 130,000 of them are available for
adoption. Many of these children wait{five years or more to be

A Signature Program of the

Dave Thomas Foundation for Adoption matched with a family. Five years is a lifetime to a child.

in response to this critical need and Dave's visioﬁ of a family for every child, the Dave Thomas Foundation for
Adopﬁon created its signature program, Wendy's Wonderful Kids. The model is simple and effective: Wendy's
restaurants and their customers raise funds for the Foundation, which in turn issues grants to local adoption
organizations that hire adoption recruiters. Wendy's Wonderful Kids recruiters focus 100 percent of their time on

finding permanent, loving families for children in the local foster care systém.

Wendy'’s Wonderful Kids is the first nationwide program that partners a major corporation with a national
foundation and local communities to place foster care children in permanent homes. The single critical goal of
the program is to match 8,000 - 10,000 children with adoptive famities by 2010.

- To learn more about the Dave Thomas Foundation for Adoption and Wendy’s Wonderful Kids please call
1-800-ASK-DTFA or visit www.DaveThomasFoundationforAdoption.org.
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